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PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (UNAUDITED)
(amounts in thousands, except share amounts and par value)

June 30, March 31,
2023 2024
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 76,750 $ 101,443

Accounts receivable, net 380,845 503,828

Inventories 338,008 442,797

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 44,300 71,182

Total current assets 839,903 1,119,250
Property and equipment, net 108,933 110,399
Goodwill 349,505 352,119
Intangible assets, net 140,857 142,056
Other assets 116,488 107,251

Total assets $ 1,555,686 $ 1,831,075

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Bank lines of credit $ 215,000 $ 349,000

Current portion of long-term debt 8,076 8,212

Accounts payable 139,011 172,115

Accrued payroll and related expenses 51,243 43,554

Advances from customers 21,250 65,888

Other accrued expenses and current liabilities 137,114 122,913

Total current liabilities 571,694 761,682
Long-term debt 136,491 131,214
Deferred income taxes 6,571 7,293
Other long-term liabilities 114,765 117,473

Total liabilities 829,521 1,017,662
Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value—10,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued or outstanding — —
Common stock, $0.001 par value—100,000,000 shares authorized; issued and outstanding,

16,755,772 shares at June 30, 2023 and 17,048,704 shares at March 31, 2024 9,835 16,667
Retained earnings 735,957 816,551
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (19,627) (19,805)

Total stockholders’ equity 726,165 813,413

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 1,555,686 $ 1,831,075

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

Net revenues:
Products
Services
Total net revenues
Cost of goods sold:
Products
Services
Total cost of goods sold
Gross profit
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative
Research and development
Restructuring and other charges, net
Total operating expenses
Income from operations
Interest and other expense, net
Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net income
Earnings per share:
Basic
Diluted
Shares used in per share calculation:
Basic

Diluted

(amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Three Months Ended March 31,

Nine Months Ended March 31,

2023

2024

2023

2024

223,724 $ 327360 $ 637,563 $ 817,248
79,165 78,046 228,994 240,603
302,889 405,406 866,557 1,057,851
156,534 223,570 458,197 547,938
42,569 45,741 120,870 133,772
199,103 269,311 579,067 681,710
103,786 136,095 287,490 376,141
53,707 66,584 161,148 197,986
14,852 17,144 43,848 49,416
890 1,004 4,366 2,496
69,449 84,732 209,362 249,898
34,337 51,363 78,128 126,243
(5.727) (7,407)  (14,339) (19,689)
28,610 43,956 63,789 106,554
(6,802) (9.913)  (14,392) (23,079)
21,808 $ 34043 $ 49397 § 83,475
130 $ 200 $ 293 $ 4.92
127 $ 195 § 288 § 4.82
16,809 17,042 16,858 16,954
17,184 17,425 17,151 17,301

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (UNAUDITED)
(amounts in thousands)

Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,
2023 2024 2023 2024
Net income $ 21,808 § 34,043 $ 49,397 § 83,475
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax 1,569 (2,300) (3,309) (77)
Net unrealized gain (loss) on investments and derivatives, net of tax (1,430) 1,731 1,098 (512)
Other, net of tax 332 137 997 411
Other comprehensive income (loss) 471 (432) (1,214) (178)
Comprehensive income $§ 22279 § 33611 $§ 48,183 § 83,297

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (UNAUDITED)

(amounts in thousands, except share data)

Balance—December 31, 2022
Exercise of stock options
Vesting of RSUs
Shares issued under employee stock purchase program
Stock-based compensation expense
Repurchase of common stock
Taxes paid related to net share settlement of equity
awards
Net income
Other comprehensive income

Balance—March 31, 2023

Balance—December 31, 2023
Exercise of stock options
Vesting of RSUs
Shares issued under employee stock purchase program
Stock-based compensation expense
Taxes paid related to net share settlement of equity
awards
Net income
Other comprehensive loss
Balance—March 31, 2024

Three Months Ended March 31, 2023

Accumulated
Common Stock Other
Number of Retained Comprehensive
Shares Amount Earnings Loss Total
16,819,609 $ 2,530 $ 672,371 $§ (27,147) 647,754
11,848 891 — — 891
5,510 — — — —
30,652 2,072 — — 2,072
— 7,112 — — 7,112
(138,469) (12,362) (603) — (12,965)
(2,029) (226) — — (226)
— — 21,808 — 21,808
— — — 471 471
16,727,121  § 17 $ 693,576 $ (26,676) 666,917
Three Months Ended March 31, 2024
Accumulated
C Stock Other
Number of Retained Comprehensive
Shares Amount Earnings Loss Total
17,011,639 $ 7,308 $ 782,508 $ @ (19,373) 770,443
2,278 203 — — 203
4,428 — — — —
31,968 2,296 — — 2,296
— 7,069 — — 7,069
(1,609) (209) — — (209)
— — 34,043 — 34,043
— — — (432) (432)
17,048,704 $ 16,667 $ 816,551 $ (19,805) $ 813,413
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OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (UNAUDITED)

(amounts in thousands, except share data)

Balance—1June 30, 2022
Exercise of stock options
Vesting of RSUs
Shares issued under employee stock purchase program
Stock-based compensation expense
Repurchase of common stock
Taxes paid related to net share settlement of equity
awards
Net income
Other comprehensive loss
Balance—March 31, 2023

Balance—June 30, 2023
Exercise of stock options
Vesting of RSUs
Shares issued under employee stock purchase program
Stock-based compensation expense
Taxes paid related to net share settlement of equity
awards
Net income
Other comprehensive loss
Balance—March 31, 2024

Nine Months Ended March 31, 2023

Accumulated
C Stock Other
Number of Retained Comprehensive
Shares Amount Earnings Loss Total
16,870,050 $ 17 $§ 663,869 § (25462) $ 638,424
19,614 1,330 — — 1,330
312,038 — — — —
59,255 4,041 — — 4,041
— 21,528 — — 21,528
(400,230) (17,067) (17,682) — (34,749)
(133,606) (9,832) (2,008) — (11,840)
— — 49,397 — 49,397
— — — (1,214) (1,214)
16,727,121  § 17 $ 693,576 $§ (26,676) $ 666917
Nine Months Ended March 31, 2024
Accumulated
C Stock Other
Number of Retained Comprehensive
Shares Amount Earnings Loss Total
16,755,772 $ 9,835 $ 735957 $ (19,627) $ 726,165
16,767 1,387 — — 1,387
389,042 — — — —
61,781 4,327 — — 4,327
— 21,486 — — 21,486
(174,658) (20,368) (2,881) — (23,249)
— — 83,475 — 83,475
— — — (178) (178)
17,048,704 $§ 16,667 §$ 816,551 $ (19,805) $ 813,413
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OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)

(amounts in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities, net of

effects from acquisitions:

Depreciation and amortization
Stock-based compensation expense
Provision for (recovery of) losses on accounts receivable

Deferred income taxes

Amortization of debt discount and issuance costs

Other

Changes in operating assets and liabilities—net of business acquisitions:

Accounts receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other
Accounts payable

assets

Accrued payroll and related expenses

Advances from customers
Deferred revenue
Other

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of property and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

Purchases of certificates of deposit

Proceeds from maturities of certificates of deposit

Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired

Payments for intangible and other assets

Net cash used in investing

activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net borrowings on bank lines of credit

Proceeds from long-term debt
Payments on long-term debt

Proceeds from exercise of stock options and employee stock purchase plan
Payments of contingent consideration

Repurchases of common stock
Taxes paid related to net share

settlement of equity awards

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes

on cash

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents—beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents—end of period

Supplemental disclosure of cash

flow information:

Cash paid, net during the period for:

Interest
Income taxes

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.

Nine Months Ended March 31,

2023 2024
49397 $ 83475
28,819 30,485
21,528 21,486
(4,890) 2,059

942 (524)
196 —
(46) 10
13,248 (118,989)
(37,860) (101,446)
(4,924) (41,503)
2,134 32,933
2,151 (8,155)
13,963 43,805
11,101 3,105
(23,081) (5,199)
72,678 (58,458)
(12,691) (13,604)
309 293
(4,940) —
3,827 10,329
(4,616) (9,046)
(12,275) (12,906)
(30,386) (24,934)

155,000 134,000

100,654 1,110

(247,818) (6,248)

5,371 5,714
(3,668) (602)
(34,749) —
(11,840) (23,249)
(37,050) 110,725
(3,822) (2,640)
1,420 24,693
64,202 76,750
65622 $ 101,443
14,648 $ 18,868
15769 § 33,703
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OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

1. Basis of Presentation

The condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of OSI Systems, Inc. and our subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The condensed consolidated financial statements have
been prepared by management in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”)
and in conjunction with the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Certain information and footnote
disclosures required for annual financial statements have been condensed or excluded in accordance with SEC rules and regulations and
GAAP applicable to interim unaudited financial statements. Accordingly, the condensed consolidated financial statements do not include
all information and footnotes required by GAAP for audited annual financial statements. In management’s opinion, the condensed
consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments of a normal and recurring nature that are considered necessary for a fair
presentation of the results for the interim periods presented. These unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and the
accompanying notes should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes included
in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 filed with the SEC. The results of operations for the three
and nine months ended March 31, 2024 are not necessarily indicative of the operating results to be expected for the full 2024 fiscal year
or any future periods.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of sales, costs of sales and expenses during the reporting period. The most significant of these estimates and
assumptions for our company relate to contract revenue, fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in business combinations,
values for inventories reported at lower of cost or net realizable value, stock-based compensation expense, income taxes, accrued
warranty costs, contingent consideration, allowance for doubtful accounts, and the recoverability, useful lives and valuation of recorded
amounts of long-lived assets, identifiable intangible assets and goodwill. Changes in estimates are reflected in the periods during which
they become known. Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in making estimates, our actual amounts reported in future periods could
differ materially from these estimates.

Earnings Per Share Computations

We compute basic earnings per share by dividing net income available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period. We compute diluted earnings per share by dividing net income available to common
stockholders by the sum of the weighted average number of common shares and dilutive potential common shares outstanding during the
period. Potential common shares consist of the shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options and restricted stock unit awards under
the treasury stock method.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,

2023 2024 2023 2024

Net income available to common stockholders $ 21,808 $ 34,043 $ 49,397 $ 83,475
Weighted average shares outstanding—basic 16,809 17,042 16,858 16,954
Dilutive effect of equity awards 375 383 293 347
Weighted average shares outstanding—diluted 17,184 17,425 17,151 17,301
Basic earnings per share $ 130 § 200 $ 293 § 4.92
Diluted earnings per share $ 1.27 § 195 §$ 288 § 4.82
Shares excluded from diluted earnings per share due to their anti-dilutive

effect 60 22 75 11
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Cash and Cash Equivalents
We consider all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less as of the acquisition date to be cash equivalents.

Our cash and cash equivalents totaled $101.4 million at March 31, 2024. Of this amount, approximately 78% was held by our foreign
subsidiaries and subject to repatriation tax considerations. These foreign funds were held primarily by our subsidiaries in India, the
United Kingdom, Malaysia, Singapore, Australia, and Canada and to a lesser extent in Mexico, Albania, Indonesia and Germany, among
other countries. We have cash holdings in financial institutions that exceed insured limits for such financial institutions; however, we
mitigate this risk by utilizing international financial institutions which we believe to be of high credit quality.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Our financial instruments consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, insurance company contracts, accounts receivable, accounts
payable, debt instruments, an interest rate swap contract and foreign currency forward contracts. The carrying values of financial
instruments, other than long-term debt instruments and our interest rate swap contract, are representative of their fair values due to their
short-term maturities. The carrying values of our long-term debt instruments are considered to approximate their fair values because the
interest rates of these instruments are variable or comparable to current rates for financing available to us. The fair values of our foreign
currency forward contracts were not significant as of June 30, 2023 and March 31, 2024.

Fair value is the price that would be received in the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The “Level 1 category comprises assets and liabilities measured at quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets and liabilities. The “Level 2” category comprises assets and liabilities measured from observable inputs other than
quoted market prices. The “Level 3” category comprises assets and liabilities for which valuation inputs are unobservable and significant
to the fair value measurement. Our contingent payment obligations related to acquisitions, which are further discussed in Note 10 to the
condensed consolidated financial statements, are in the “Level 3” category for valuation purposes.

The fair values of our financial assets and liabilities are categorized as follows (in thousands):

June 30, 2023 March 31, 2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets—Insurance company contracts $§ ~ — $47,181 § — $47,181 $ — $48982 § — § 48,982
Assets — Interest rate swap contract $ — $ 5369 $ — % 5369 $ — $ 4660 $ — $ 4,660
Liabilities—Contingent consideration ~ $ — S — $21,181 $ 21,181 $ — 3 — $ 18,888 $ 18,888

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activity

Our use of derivatives consists of foreign currency forward contracts and an interest rate swap agreement. Our foreign currency forward
contracts are utilized to partially mitigate certain balance sheet exposures or used as a net investment hedge to protect against potential
changes resulting from short-term foreign currency fluctuations. These contracts have original maturities of up to three months. We also
manage our risk to changes in interest rates using derivative instruments. We use fixed interest rate swaps to effectively convert a portion
of the variable interest rate payments to fixed interest rate payments. We do not use hedging instruments for speculative purposes.

The net gains or losses from our foreign currency forward contracts, which are not designated as hedge instruments, are reported in our
consolidated statements of operations. The amounts reported in the consolidated statements of operations for the three and nine months
ended March 31, 2023 and 2024 were not significant. The fair value of our foreign currency forward contracts is estimated using a
standard valuation model and market-based observable inputs over the contractual term. Unrealized gains are recognized as assets and
unrealized losses are recognized as liabilities. As of June 30, 2023 and March 31, 2024, we held foreign currency forward contracts with
notional amounts totaling $21.6 million and $57.3 million, respectively. Unrealized gains and losses from our foreign currency forward
contracts as of June 30, 2023 and March 31, 2024 were not significant.

10
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The interest rate swap agreement was entered into to improve the predictability of cash flows from interest payments related to our
variable, Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”) based debt. The interest rate swap matures in December 2026. The interest rate
swap is considered an effective cash flow hedge, and as a result, the net gains or losses on such instrument are reported as a component
of other comprehensive income (loss) in our consolidated financial statements and are reclassified as net income when the underlying
hedged interest impacts earnings. A qualitative and quantitative assessment of the interest rate swap hedge effectiveness is performed on
a quarterly basis, unless facts and circumstances indicate that the hedge may no longer be highly effective.

As of June 30, 2023 and March 31, 2024, the notional amount of the interest rate swap hedge derivative instrument was $175 million.
The fair value of the interest rate swap contract as of June 30, 2023 and March 31, 2024 is recorded in Other assets within the

consolidated balance sheet.

The effect of the cash flow hedges on other comprehensive income (loss) and earnings for the periods presented was as follows:

Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,

2023 2024 2023 2024
Total interest and other expense, net presented in the condensed consolidated
statements of operations in which the effects of cash flow hedges are
recorded $§ 5,727) §  (7,407) § (14,339) § (19,689)
Gain (loss) recognized in other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax $ (1,430) $ (1,732) $ 1,098 §$ 512
Amount reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) to
interest expense, net $ 543 $ 897 § 587 $ 2,681

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

From time to time, new accounting pronouncements are issued by the FASB and other regulatory bodies that are adopted as of the
specified effective dates. Unless otherwise discussed below, management believes that the impact of recently issued standards, which are
not yet effective for the Company, will not have a material impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements upon adoption. There were
no new pronouncements adopted in the third quarter of fiscal year 2024.

In November 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update 2023-07, “Improvements
to Reportable Segment Disclosures” (“ASU 2023-07"), which requires disclosures of significant expenses by segment and interim
disclosure of items that were previously required on an annual basis. ASU 2023-07 is to be applied on a retrospective basis and is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023 and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024
with early adoption permitted. We are evaluating the impact of ASU 2023-07 on disclosures in our Consolidated Financial Statements.

In December 2023, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2023-09, “Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures” (“ASU 2023-
09”), which provides for additional disclosures primarily related to the income tax rate reconciliations and income taxes paid. ASU 2023-
09 requires entities to annually disclose the income tax rate reconciliation using both amounts and percentages, considering several
categories of reconciling items, including state and local income taxes, foreign tax effects, tax credits and nontaxable or nondeductible
items, among others. Disclosure of the reconciling items is subject to a quantitative threshold and disaggregation by nature and
jurisdiction. ASU 2023-09 also requires entities to disclose net income taxes paid or received to federal, state and foreign jurisdictions, as
well as by individual jurisdiction, subject to a five percent quantitative threshold. ASU 2023-09 may be adopted on a prospective or
retrospective basis and is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024 with early adoption permitted. We are evaluating
the impact of ASU 2023-09 on disclosures in our Consolidated Financial Statements.

11
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2. Business Combinations

Under Accounting Standards Codification Topic 805, Business Combinations (“ASC 8057), the acquisition method of accounting
requires us to record assets acquired less liabilities assumed from an acquisition at their estimated fair values at the date of acquisition.
Any excess of the total estimated purchase price over the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired should be recorded as goodwill.
Such valuations require management to make significant estimates and assumptions, especially with respect to intangible assets.
Significant estimates in valuing certain intangible assets include, but are not limited to, future expected cash flows from acquired
customers, acquired technology, trade names, useful lives and discount rates. Management’s estimates of fair value are based upon
assumptions which are believed to be reasonable, but which are inherently uncertain and unpredictable and, as a result, actual results may
differ from estimates. During the measurement period, which is up to one year from the acquisition date, as additional information that
existed at the acquisition date becomes available for preliminary estimates, we may record adjustments to the preliminary assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. Upon the conclusion of the measurement period, any subsequent adjustments are included in earnings.

Fiscal Year 2024 Business Acquisitions

In December 2023, we (through our Optoelectronics and Manufacturing division) acquired a privately held contract manufacturer for
approximately $6.3 million. The acquisition was financed with cash on hand. The goodwill recognized for this business acquisition is
deductible for income tax purposes.

In October 2023, we (through our Security division) acquired a privately held provider of radiation detection technology for
approximately $2.8 million, plus up to $3.6 million in potential contingent consideration. The acquisition was financed with cash on
hand. The goodwill recognized for this business acquisition is not deductible for income tax purposes.

Fiscal Year 2023 Business Acquisitions

In April 2023, we (through our Optoelectronics and Manufacturing division) acquired a privately held provider of engineering and
contract manufacturing solutions for approximately $2.5 million, plus up to $2.5 million in potential contingent consideration. The
acquisition was financed with cash on hand.

In February 2023, we (through our Healthcare division) acquired a privately held provider of software and solutions for approximately
$2.1 million plus up to $5.0 million in potential contingent consideration. The acquisition was financed with cash on hand.

Through our Security division, we acquired (i) in December 2022 certain assets of a provider of baggage and parcel inspection systems
for approximately $1.6 million and (ii) in August 2022 a privately held provider of training software and solutions for approximately
$1.9 million plus an immaterial amount of potential contingent consideration. These acquisitions were financed with cash on hand.

The goodwill we recognized for each of the fiscal year 2023 business acquisitions is not deductible for income tax purposes. The
acquisitions we completed in fiscal 2023 and 2024, individually and in the aggregate, were not material to our consolidated financial
statements. Accordingly, pro-forma historical results of operations and other disclosures related to these businesses have not been
presented.

12
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3. Balance Sheet Details

The following tables set forth details of selected balance sheet accounts (in thousands):

June 30, March 31,
Accounts receivable, net 2023 2024
Accounts receivable $ 395218 § 519,476
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (14,373) (15,648)
Total $ 380,845 $ 503,828
June 30, March 31,
Inventories 2023 2024
Raw materials $ 233217 $ 257,846
Work-in-process 56,329 88,323
Finished goods 48,462 96,628
Total $ 338,008 $ 442,797
June 30, March 31,
Property and equipment, net 2023 2024
Land $ 15,691 $ 15,524
Buildings, civil works and improvements 49,166 48,648
Leasehold improvements 13,553 13,642
Equipment and tooling 135,703 142,962
Furniture and fixtures 3,632 3,397
Computer equipment 24,119 22,367
Computer software 26,981 30,532
Computer software implementation in process 9,705 6,212
Construction in process 4,108 6,137
Total 282,658 289,421
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (173,725) (179,022)
Property and equipment, net $ 108,933  $ 110,399

Depreciation and amortization expense for property and equipment was $4.9 million and $5.1 million for the three months ended March
31,2023 and 2024, respectively, and $14.6 million for each of the nine months ended March 31, 2023 and 2024.

4. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The changes in the carrying value of goodwill by segment for the nine-month period ended March 31, 2024 were as follows (in
thousands):

Optoelectronics

Security Manu?:c(:uring Healthcare
Division Division Division Consolidated
Balance as of June 30, 2023 $ 230,662 § 70,388 $§ 48,455 $ 349,505
Goodwill acquired 2,072 828 — 2,900
Foreign currency translation adjustment 25 (310) (1) (286)
Balance as of March 31, 2024 $ 232,759 § 70906 $ 48454 § 352,119
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Intangible assets consisted of the following (in thousands):

June 30, 2023 March 31, 2024
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Intangibles Carrying Accumulated Intangibles
Value Amortization Net Value Amortization Net
Amortizable assets:
Software development costs $ 77844 $§ (20,285) $ 57,559 § 86,576 $ (19,986) $ 66,590
Patents 8,636 (3,404) 5,232 9,003 (3,745) 5,258
Developed technology 68,274 (38,353) 29,921 71,208 (44,174) 27,034
Customer relationships 55,780 (39,101) 16,679 51,536 (39,894) 11,642
Total amortizable assets 210,534 (101,143) 109,391 218,323 (107,799) 110,524
Non-amortizable assets:
In-process R&D 533 — 533 — — —
Trademarks 30,933 — 30,933 31,532 — 31,532
Total intangible assets $ 242,000 $(101,143) $ 140,857 $ 249,855 $(107,799) $ 142,056

Amortization expense related to intangible assets was $4.8 million and $5.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and
2024, respectively. For the nine months ended March 31, 2023 and 2024, amortization expense related to intangible assets was $14.2
million and $15.9 million, respectively.

At March 31, 2024, the estimated future amortization expense for intangible assets was as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year

2024 (remaining 3 months) $ 4,922
2025 16,299
2026 12,704
2027 8,522
2028 5,659
Thereafter 62,418

Total $ 110,524

Software development costs for software products incurred before establishing technological feasibility are charged to operations.
Software development costs incurred after establishing technological feasibility are capitalized on a product-by-product basis until the
product is available for general release to customers at which time amortization begins. Annual amortization, charged to cost of goods
sold, is the amount computed using the ratio of current revenues for a product compared to the total current and anticipated future
revenues for that product. In the event that future revenues are not estimable, such costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the
remaining estimated economic life of the product. Amortizable assets that have not yet begun to be amortized are included in Thereafter
in the table above. For the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2024, we capitalized software development costs in the amounts of
$4.1 million and $4.3 million, respectively. For the nine months ended March 31, 2023 and 2024, we capitalized software development
costs in the amounts of $12.0 million and $12.3 million, respectively.

5. Contract Assets and Liabilities

We enter into contracts to sell products and provide services, and we recognize contract assets and liabilities that arise from these
transactions. We recognize revenue and corresponding accounts receivable according to ASC Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (“ASC 606”). When we recognize revenue in advance of the point in time at which contracts give us the right to invoice a
customer, we record this as unbilled revenue, which is included in accounts receivable, net, on the consolidated balance sheets. We may
also receive consideration, per the terms of a contract, from customers prior to transferring control of goods to the customer. We record
customer deposits as contract liabilities. Additionally, we may receive payments, most typically under service and warranty contracts, at
the onset of a contract and before services have been performed. In such instances, we record a deferred revenue liability in either Other
accrued expenses and current liabilities or Other long-term liabilities. We recognize these contract liabilities as sales after all revenue
recognition criteria are met.
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The table below shows the balance of contract assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2023 and March 31, 2024, including the change
between the periods. There were no substantial non-current contract assets for the periods presented.

Contract Assets (in thousands),

June 30, March 31,
2023 2024 Change % Change
Unbilled revenue (included in accounts receivable, net) $ 86,818 $ 241,092 $ 154,274 178 %
Contract Liabilities (in thousands),
June 30, March 31,
2023 2024 Change % Change
Advances from customers $ 21250 $ 65,888 $ 44,638 210 %
Deferred revenue—current 43,861 45,779 1,918 4
Deferred revenue—long-term 22,200 23,446 1,246 6

Contract assets increased during the nine months ended March 31, 2024, primarily from the timing and nature of milestones met in
contracts for a number of customers in our Security division where we met the revenue recognition criteria under ASC 606 in advance of
the time when contracts give us the right to invoice customers. The net increase in contract liabilities was primarily due to activity in our
Security division for deposits received on contracts, partially offset by recognition of revenue on service contracts included in deferred
revenue.

Remaining Performance Obligations. Remaining performance obligations related to ASC 606 represent the portion of the transaction
price allocated to performance obligations under an original contract with a term greater than one year which are fully or partially
unsatisfied at the end of the applicable period. As of March 31, 2024, the portion of the transaction price allocated to remaining
performance obligations was approximately $925.1 million. We expect to recognize revenue on approximately 57% of the remaining
performance obligations over the next 12 months, and the remainder is expected to be recognized thereafter. During the nine months
ended March 31, 2024, we recognized revenue of $53.6 million from contract liabilities existing at the beginning of the period.

Practical Expedients. In cases where we are responsible for shipping after the customer has obtained control of the goods, we have
elected to treat the shipping activity as a fulfillment activity rather than as a separate performance obligation. Additionally, we have
elected to capitalize the cost to obtain a contract only if the period of amortization is longer than one year. We only give consideration to
whether a customer agreement has a financing component if the period of time between transfer of goods and services and customer
payment is greater than one year.

6. Leases

The components of operating lease expense were as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,

2023 2024 2023 2024
Operating lease cost $ 2,850 $ 2,822 §$ 8,525 $ 8,433
Variable lease cost 328 289 1,055 823
Short-term lease cost 261 372 685 1,038

$ 3,439 § 3483 $ 10,265 § 10,294
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Supplemental disclosures related to operating leases were as follows (in thousands):

Balance Sheet Category June 30, 2023 March 31, 2024
Operating lease ROU assets, net Other assets $ 32,618 $ 28,792
Other accrued expenses and current 9.787

Operating lease liabilities, current portion liabilities $ ? $ 9,373
Operating lease liabilities, long-term Other long-term liabilities 23,733 20,141

Total operating lease liabilities $ 33,520 $ 29,514
Weighted average remaining lease term 3.8 years
Weighted average discount rate 4.1 %

Supplemental cash flow information related to operating leases was as follows (in thousands):

Nine Months Ended March 31,

2023 2024
Cash paid for operating lease liabilities $ 8,631 § 9,114
ROU assets obtained in exchange for new lease obligations 2,658 3,780

Maturities of operating lease liabilities at March 31, 2024 were as follows (in thousands):

March 31, 2024

Less than one year $ 10,344
1 -2 years 8,894
2 — 3 years 7,754
3 —4 years 4,230
4 — 5 years 934
Thereafter 278
32,434
Less: imputed interest (2,920)
Total lease liabilities $ 29,514

7. Restructuring and Other Charges

We endeavor to align our global capacity and infrastructure with demand by our customers as well as fully integrate acquisitions and
thereby improve operational efficiency.

During the three months ended March 31, 2024, we recognized $1.0 million in restructuring and other charges, which primarily included
$0.5 million for facility closure costs for operational efficiency activities, and $0.5 million for employee terminations. During the nine
months ended March 31, 2024, we recognized $2.5 million in restructuring and other charges, which included $0.8 million for facility
closure costs for operational efficiency activities, $0.8 million for employee terminations, $0.4 million in acquisition related costs, and
$0.4 million in legal charges.

During the three months ended March 31, 2023, we recognized $0.9 million in restructuring and other charges, which included $0.5
million for employee terminations, $0.3 million in legal charges primarily related to government investigations, and $0.1 million in
acquisition - related costs and facility closure costs. During the nine months ended March 31, 2023, we recognized $4.4 million in
restructuring and other charges, which included $3.2 million in legal charges primarily related to class action litigation and government
investigations, $1.0 million for employee terminations, and $0.2 million in acquisition-related costs and facility closure costs.
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The following tables summarize restructuring and other charges (benefits), net for the periods set forth below (in thousands):

Acquisition-related costs
Employee termination costs
Facility closures/consolidation
Legal costs, net

Total

Acquisition-related costs
Employee termination costs
Facility closures/consolidation
Legal costs, net

Total

Acquisition-related costs
Employee termination costs
Facility closures/consolidation
Legal costs, net

Total

Acquisition-related costs
Employee termination costs
Facility closures/consolidation
Legal costs, net

Total

Three Months Ended March 31, 2023

Optoelectronics and
Manufacturing Healthcare

Security Division Division Division Corporate Total
$ — 3 — — 3 50 50
413 32 81 — 526
35 — — — 35
45 — 226 8 279
$ 493 § 32§ 307 § 58 890
Three Months Ended March 31, 2024
Optoelectronics and
Manufacturing Healthcare
Security Division Division Division Corporate Total
$ 8 11 3 — 3 — 19
129 60 311 2 502
38 433 — — 471
10 — — 2 12
$ 185 § 504 $ 311§ 4 1,004
Nine Months Ended March 31, 2023
Optoelectronics and
Manufacturing Healthcare
Security Division Division Division Corporate Total
$ 23§ — 93 — § 127 150
688 47 291 — 1,026
35 — — — 35
612 — 2,462 81 3,155
$ 1,358 3 47 3 2,753 $ 208 4,366
Nine Months Ended March 31, 2024
Optoelectronics and
Manufacturing Healthcare
Security Division Division Division Corporate Total
$ 243§ 201 $ — 3 = 444
279 102 311 122 814
38 777 — — 815
61 — — 362 423
$ 621 $ 1,080 $ 311§ 484 2,496
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The accrued liability for restructuring and other charges is included in other accrued expenses and current liabilities in the condensed
consolidated balance sheets. The changes in the accrued liability for restructuring and other charges for the nine-month period ended
March 31, 2024 were as follows (in thousands):

Facility
Acquisition- Employee Closure/ Legal
Related Termination Consolidation Costs and
Costs Costs Cost Settlements Total
Balance as of June 30, 2023 $ 7 $ 107 $ 1,609 $ 656 $ 2,379
Restructuring and other charges, net 444 814 815 423 2,496
Payments, adjustments and reimbursements, net (451) (750) (2,082) (622) (3,905)
Balance as of March 31, 2024 $ — 3 171 $ 342§ 457 $ 970

8. Borrowings
Revolving Credit Facility

Our senior secured credit facility comprises a term loan and a $600 million revolving credit facility which mature in December 2026.
The revolving credit facility includes a $300 million sub-limit for letters of credit. Under certain circumstances and subject to certain
conditions, we have the ability to increase the revolving credit facility by an amount equal to the greater of $250 million or such amount
as would not cause our secured leverage ratio to exceed a specified level. Borrowings under the facility bear interest at SOFR plus a
margin of 1.0% as of March 31, 2024 (which margin can range from 1.0% to 1.75% based on our consolidated net leverage ratio as
defined in the credit facility). Letters of credit reduce the amount available to borrow under the credit facility by their face value amount.
The unused portion of the facility bears a commitment fee of 0.10% as of March 31, 2024 (which fee can range from 0.10% to 0.25%
based on our consolidated net leverage ratio as defined in the credit facility). Our borrowings under the credit agreement are guaranteed
by certain of our U.S.-based subsidiaries and are secured by substantially all of our assets and substantially all the assets of certain of our
subsidiaries. The credit facility contains various representations and warranties, affirmative, negative and financial covenants and events
of default. As of March 31, 2024, there were $349.0 million of borrowings outstanding under the revolving credit facility, $74.7 million
outstanding under the letters of credit sub-facility, and $137.5 million outstanding under the term loan. As of March 31, 2024, the amount
available to borrow under the revolving credit facility was $176.3 million. Loan amounts under the revolving credit facility may be
borrowed, repaid and re-borrowed during the term. The principal amount of each loan is due and payable in full on the maturity date. We
have the right to repay each loan in whole or in part from time to time without penalty. It is our practice to routinely borrow and repay
several times per year under the revolving facility and therefore, borrowings under the revolving credit facility are included in current
liabilities. As of March 31, 2024, we were in compliance with all financial covenants under this credit facility. In September 2022, we
entered into an interest rate swap in order to mitigate the interest rate risk on a portion of the interest payments expected to be made on
the borrowings outstanding under the revolving credit facility and term loan. Refer to Note 1 for details. Interest expense related to the
credit facility and term loan was $5.9 million and $8.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2024, respectively, and
$12.9 million and $21.5 million for the nine months ended March 31, 2023 and 2024, respectively.

1.25% Convertible Senior Notes (“Notes”) Due 2022

In February 2017, we issued $287.5 million of the Notes in a private offering. On September 1, 2022, we repurchased and cancelled the
then - remaining $242.3 million balance of the Notes. Total interest expense recognized, through the cancellation date, during the nine
months ended March 31, 2023 related to the Notes was $0.7 million, which consisted of $0.5 million of contractual interest expense and
$0.2 million of amortization of debt issuance costs.

Other Borrowings

Several of our foreign subsidiaries maintain bank lines of credit, denominated in local currencies and U.S. dollars, primarily for the

issuance of letters of credit. As of March 31, 2024, $54.5 million was outstanding under these letter-of-credit facilities. As of March 31,
2024, the total amount available under these credit facilities was $21.4 million.
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Long-term debt consisted of the following (in thousands):

June 30, March 31,
2023 2024
Term loan $ 143,125  § 137,500
Other long-term debt 1,442 1,926
144,567 139,426
Less current portion of long-term debt (8,076) (8,212)
Long-term portion of debt $ 136491 § 131,214

9. Stockholders’ Equity
Stock-based Compensation

As of March 31, 2024, we maintained the Amended and Restated 2012 Incentive Award Plan (the “OSI Plan”) as a stock-based employee
compensation plan.

We recorded stock-based compensation expense in the consolidated statements of operations as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,

2023 2024 2023 2024

Cost of goods sold $ 229 $ 214§ 686 § 701
Selling, general and administrative 6,757 6,650 20,467 20,326
Research and development 126 205 375 459
Stock-based compensation expense $ 7,112 $ 7,069 $ 21,528 $§ 21,486

As of March 31, 2024, total unrecognized compensation cost related to share-based compensation grants under the OSI Plan were
estimated at $1.0 million for stock options and $15.6 million for restricted stock units (“RSUs”). We expect to recognize these costs over
a weighted average period of 2.2 years with respect to the stock options and 2.2 years with respect to the RSUs.

The following summarizes stock option activity during the nine months ended March 31, 2024:

Weighted
Average Weighted-Average Aggregate
Number of Exercise Remaining Contractual  Intrinsic Value
Options Price Term (in thousands)
Outstanding at June 30, 2023 83,677 $ 87.09
Granted 22,438 119.45
Exercised (16,767) 82.90
Expired or forfeited (4,375) 86.09
Outstanding at March 31, 2024 84,973 §$ 96.51 7.5 years $ 3,935
Exercisable at March 31, 2024 40,578 5.8 years $ 2,264

The following summarizes RSU award activity during the nine months ended March 31, 2024:

Weighted-
Average

Shares Fair Value
Nonvested at June 30, 2023 455,515 § 85.15
Granted 333,001 95.41
Vested (389,042) 79.75
Forfeited (5,253) 84.59
Nonvested at March 31, 2024 394,221 $ 99.16
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In December 2023, our shareholders approved an amendment to the OSI Plan, which increased the shares available under the OSI Plan
by 2.4 million shares. As of March 31, 2024, there were approximately 2.5 million shares available for grant under the OSI Plan. Under
the terms of the OSI Plan, RSUs and restricted stock granted from the pool of shares available for grant reduce the pool by 1.87 shares
for each award granted. RSUs and restricted stock forfeited and returned to the pool of shares available for grant increase the pool by
1.87 shares for each award forfeited.

We granted 110,811 and 75,988 performance-based RSUs during the nine months ended March 31, 2023 and 2024, respectively. These
performance-based RSU awards are contingent on the achievement of certain performance metrics. The payout related to these awards
can range from zero to 376% of the original number of shares or units awarded. Compensation cost associated with these performance-
based RSUs are recognized based on the estimated number of shares that we ultimately expect will vest. If the estimated number of
shares to vest is revised in the future, then stock-based compensation expense will be adjusted accordingly.

Stock Repurchase Program

In September 2022, our Board of Directors increased the stock repurchase authorization to a total of 2 million shares. This program does
not expire unless our Board of Directors acts to terminate the program. The timing and actual numbers of shares purchased depend on a
variety of factors, including stock price, general business and market conditions and other investment opportunities. Repurchases may be
made from time to time under the program through open-market purchases or privately-negotiated transactions at our discretion. Upon
repurchase, the shares are restored to the status of authorized but unissued shares, and we record them in our consolidated financial
statements as a reduction in the number of shares of common stock issued and outstanding, with the excess purchase price over par value
recorded as a reduction of additional paid-in capital. If additional paid-in capital is reduced to zero, we record the remainder of the excess
purchase price over par value as a reduction of retained earnings.

During the nine months ended March 31, 2024, we did not repurchase shares of our common stock. As of March 31, 2024, there were
1,721,870 shares remaining available for repurchase under the authorized repurchase program.

Dividends

We have not paid any cash dividends since the consummation of our initial public offering in 1997 and we do not currently intend to pay
any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Our Board of Directors will determine the payment of future cash dividends, if any. Certain
of our current bank credit facilities restrict the payment of cash dividends and future borrowings may contain similar restrictions.

10. Commitments and Contingencies
Acquisition-Related Contingent Obligations

Under the terms and conditions of the purchase agreements associated with certain acquisitions, we may be obligated to make additional
payments based on the achievement of certain sales or profitability milestones through the acquired operations. For agreements that
contain contingent consideration obligations that are capped, the remaining maximum amount of such potential future payments is $48.6
million as of March 31, 2024.

Projections and estimated probabilities are used to estimate future contingent earnout payments, which are discounted back to present
value to compute contingent earnout liabilities. The following table provides a roll-forward from June 30, 2023 to March 31, 2024 of the
contingent consideration liability, which is included in other accrued expenses and current liabilities and other long-term liabilities in our
consolidated balance sheets (in thousands):

Beginning fair value, June 30, 2023 $ 21,181
Addition of contingent earnout obligations 1,766
Foreign currency translation adjustment (14)
Changes in fair value for contingent earnout obligations (3,443)
Payments on contingent earnout obligations (602)
Ending fair value, March 31, 2024 $ 18,888
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Environmental Contingencies

We are subject to various environmental laws. We conduct environmental investigations at our manufacturing facilities in North
America, Asia-Pacific, and Europe, and, to the extent practicable, on all new properties in order to identify, as of the date of such
investigation, potential areas of environmental concern related to past and present activities or from nearby operations. In certain cases,
we have conducted further environmental assessments consisting of soil and groundwater testing and other investigations deemed
appropriate by independent environmental consultants.

We have not accrued for loss contingencies relating to environmental matters because we believe that, although unfavorable outcomes
are possible, they are not considered by our management to be probable and reasonably estimable. If one or more of these environmental
matters are resolved in a manner adverse to us, the impact on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flow could
be material.

Indemnifications and Certain Employment-Related Contingencies

In the normal course of business, we have agreed to indemnify certain parties with respect to certain matters. We have agreed to hold
certain parties harmless against losses arising from breaches of representations, warranties or covenants, or intellectual property
infringement or other claims made by third parties. These agreements may limit the time within which an indemnification claim can be
made and the amount of the claim. In addition, we have entered into indemnification agreements with our directors and certain of our
officers. It is not possible to determine the maximum potential liability amount under these indemnification agreements due to, among
other things, the limited history of prior indemnification claims and the unique facts and circumstances involved in each particular
agreement. We have not recorded any liability for costs related to contingent indemnification obligations as of March 31, 2024.

On December 31, 2017, we and Deepak Chopra, our Chief Executive Officer, entered into an amendment to Mr. Chopra’s employment
agreement that, among other things, provided for a $13.5 million bonus payment to Mr. Chopra on or within 45 days of January 1, 2024.
This amount was included in accrued payroll and related expenses as of December 31, 2023 and was paid in full in February 2024.

Product Warranties

We offer our customers warranties on many of the products that we sell. These warranties typically provide for repairs and maintenance
of the products if problems arise during a specified time period after original shipment. Concurrent with the sale of products, we record a
provision for estimated warranty expenses with a corresponding increase in cost of goods sold. We periodically adjust this provision
based on historical experience and anticipated expenses. We charge actual expenses of repairs under warranty, including parts and labor,
to this provision when incurred. The current obligation for warranty provision is included in other accrued expenses and current
liabilities and the noncurrent portion is included in other long-term liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.

The following table presents changes in warranty provisions (in thousands):

Nine Months Ended March 31,

2023 2024
Balance at beginning of period $ 13,347 $ 11,149
Additions 2,622 3,524
Reductions for warranty repair costs and adjustments (5,831) (4,145)
Balance at end of period $ 10,138  $ 10,528

Legal Proceedings

In February 2023, one of our subsidiaries received a subpoena from the U.S. Department of Justice (“DoJ”). The subpoena was issued as
part of a DoJ case against a former employee of an OSI Systems subsidiary for embezzlement and other conduct occurring before he was
hired by our subsidiary and while he was employed by another company in the United States and Mexico. The subpoena requests
documents and records relating to, among other things, the former employee and the Company’s business dealings in Mexico since 2020.
In February 2024, we received a follow-up subpoena requesting the same categories of documents but extending the relevant time period
through to the date of the second subpoena. We have produced documents in response to these subpoenas and intend to cooperate with
any further subpoenas or other requests in connection with this or any ensuing investigation.

21




Table of Contents

We are involved in various other potential or actual claims and legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. In our
opinion after consultation with legal counsel, the ultimate disposition of such proceedings is not likely to have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. We have not accrued for loss contingencies relating to any non-
ordinary course matters because we believe that, although unfavorable outcomes in the proceedings are possible, they are not considered
by management to be probable and reasonably estimable. If one or more of these matters are resolved in a manner adverse to our
company, the impact on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows could be material.

11. Income Taxes

The determination of the annual effective tax rate is based upon a number of significant estimates and judgments, including the estimated
annual pretax income in each tax jurisdiction in which we operate and the development of tax planning strategies during the year. In
addition, as a global commercial enterprise, our tax expense can be impacted by changes in tax rates or laws, the finalization of tax audits
and reviews and other factors that cannot be predicted with certainty. As such, there can be significant volatility in interim tax provisions.

The effective tax rates for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2024 were 23.8% and 22.6%, respectively. During the three
months ended March 31, 2024, we recognized a net discrete tax benefit of $0.2 million related to equity-based compensation under ASU
2016-09 and changes in prior year tax estimates. During the three-month period ended March 31, 2023, we recognized a net discrete tax
expense of $0.2 million related to equity-based compensation under ASU 2016 - 09 and changes in prior year tax estimates.

The effective tax rates for the nine months ended March 31, 2023 and 2024 were 22.6% and 21.7%, respectively. During the nine months
ended March 31, 2024, we recognized net discrete tax benefits of $0.8 million related to equity-based compensation under ASU 2016-09
and $2.3 million for changes in prior year tax estimates. During the nine months ended March 31, 2023, we recognized a net discrete tax
benefit of $0.6 million related to equity-based compensation under ASU 2016-09 and changes in prior year tax estimates.

12. Segment Information

We have determined that we operate in three identifiable industry segments: (a) security and inspection systems (Security division),
(b) optoelectronic devices and manufacturing (Optoelectronics and Manufacturing division) and (c) medical monitoring systems
(Healthcare division). We also have a corporate segment (Corporate) that includes executive compensation and certain other general and
administrative expenses, expenses related to stock issuances and legal, audit and other professional service fees not allocated to industry
segments. Both the Security and Healthcare divisions comprise primarily end-product businesses, whereas the Optoelectronics and
Manufacturing division primarily supplies components and subsystems to external OEM customers, as well as to the Security and
Healthcare divisions. Sales between divisions are at transfer prices that approximate market values. All other accounting policies of the
segments are the same as described in Note 1, Basis of Presentation.
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The following tables present our results of operations and identifiable assets by industry segment (in thousands):

Revenues (1) —by Segment:
Security division

Optoelectronics and Manufacturing division, including intersegment

revenues

Healthcare division

Intersegment revenues elimination
Total

Income (loss) from operations —by Segment:
Security division
Optoelectronics and Manufacturing division
Healthcare division
Corporate
Intersegment eliminations
Total

Assets (2) —by Segment:
Security division
Optoelectronics and Manufacturing division
Healthcare division
Corporate
Eliminations (3)
Total

Three Months Ended
March 31,

Nine Months Ended
March 31,

2023 2024

2023 2024

$ 178,752 § 285,960

93,888 87,974
43,911 41,493
(13,662)  (10,021)

$ 491,188 $ 700,564

286,513 282,199
130,994 121,130
(42,138) (46,042)

$ 302,889 $ 405,406

$ 866,557 $ 1,057,851

$ 29496 § 50,127

$ 66,014 § 122,592

12,493 9,435 35,963 32,493
1,787 1,564 4,819 2,157
(10,148)  (9,733) (29,572) (30,832)
709 (30) 904 (167)

$ 34337 § 51,363

$ 78,128 $§ 126,243

June 30, March 31,

2023 2024
$ 948,126 $ 1,231,843
310,930 245,746
245,856 298,027
94,678 101,804
(43,904) (46,345)
$ 1,555,686 $ 1,831,075

(1) For the three months ended March 31, 2023, one Security division customer accounted for 13% of net revenues while no customers
represented over 10% of net revenues for the nine months ended March 31, 2023. For the three months ended March 31, 2024, one
Security division customer accounted for 26% of net revenues. For the nine months ended March 31, 2024, two Security division

customers accounted for 13% and 12% of net revenues, respectively.

(2) As of June 30, 2023, no customer accounted for greater than 10% of accounts receivable, net. As of March 31, 2024, two customers
in the Security division accounted for 27% and 14%, respectively, of accounts receivable, net.
(3) Eliminations in assets reflect the amount of inter-segment profits in inventory and inter-segment ROU assets under ASC 842 as of
the balance sheet date. Such inter-segment profit will be realized when inventory is shipped to the external customers of the Security

and Healthcare divisions.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

In this report, “OSI”, the “Company”, “we”, “us”, “our” and similar terms refer to OSI Systems, Inc. together with our wholly-owned
subsidiaries.

This management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition as of March 31, 2024 and results of operations for the three and nine
months ended March 31, 2024 should be read in conjunction with management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and
results of operations included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 filed with the SEC.

Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains ‘forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, Section
274 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange
Act”). Forward-looking statements relate to our current expectations, beliefs, and projections concerning matters that are not historical
facts. Words such as “project,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “plan,” “expect,” “intend,” “may,” “should,” “will,” “would,” and similar
words and expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future
performance and involve uncertainties, risks, assumptions and contingencies, many of which are outside our control. Assumptions upon
which our forward-looking statements are based could prove to be inaccurate, and actual results may differ materially from those
expressed in or implied by such forward-looking statements. Important factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially
from our expectations are disclosed in this report, our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 (including
Part I, Item 1, “Business,” Part I, Item 1A, “Risk Factors” and Part II, Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations”) and other documents filed by us from time to time with the SEC. Such factors, of course, do not
include all factors that might affect our business and financial condition. We could be exposed to a variety of negative consequences as a
result of delays related to the award of domestic and international contracts, failure to secure the renewal of key customer contracts;
delays in customer programs, delays in revenue recognition related to the timing of customer acceptance; the impact of potential
information technology, cybersecurity or data security breaches; changes in domestic and foreign government spending, budgetary,
procurement and trade policies adverse to our businesses; the impact of the Russia-Ukraine conflict or conflicts in the Middle East,
including the potential for broad economic disruption; global economic uncertainty; material delays and cancellations of orders or
deliveries thereon, supply chain disruptions, plant closures, or other adverse impacts on our ability to execute business plans;
unfavorable currency exchange rate fluctuations; effect of changes in tax legislation; market acceptance of our new and existing
technologies, products and services, our ability to win new business and convert any ovders received to sales within the fiscal year;
contract and regulatory compliance matters, and actions, which if brought, could result in judgments, settlements, fines, injunctions,
debarment or penalties; as well as other risks and uncertainties, including but not limited to those factors described in our other SEC
filings, which could have a material and adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operation. All forward-
looking statements contained in this report are qualified in their entirety by this Section. Moreover, we operate in a very competitive and
rapidly changing environment and new risks emerge from time to time. It is not possible for our management to predict all risks, nor can
we assess the impact of all factors on our business or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results
to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements we may make. In light of these risks, uncertainties, and
assumptions, the future events and trends discussed in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q may not occur, and actual results could differ
materially and adversely from those anticipated or implied in the forward-looking statements. Investors should not place undue reliance
on forward-looking statements as a prediction of actual results. We undertake no obligation other than as may be required under
securities laws to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or
otherwise.

e

Executive Summary

We are a vertically integrated designer and manufacturer of specialized electronic systems and components for critical applications. We
sell our products and provide related services in diversified markets, including homeland security, healthcare, defense and aerospace. We
have three operating divisions: (a) Security, providing security and inspection systems and turnkey security screening solutions; (b)
Optoelectronics and Manufacturing, providing specialized electronic components for our Security and Healthcare divisions, as well as to
third parties for applications in the defense and aerospace markets, among others; and (c) Healthcare, providing patient monitoring,
cardiology and remote monitoring, and connected care systems and associated accessories.
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Security Division. Through our Security division, we provide security screening products and services globally, as well as turnkey
security screening solutions. These products and services are used to inspect baggage, parcels, cargo, people, vehicles and other objects
for weapons, explosives, drugs, radioactive and nuclear materials and other contraband. Revenues from our Security division accounted
for 57% and 66% of our total consolidated revenues for the nine months ended March 31, 2023 and 2024, respectively.

Optoelectronics and Manufacturing Division. Through our Optoelectronics and Manufacturing division, we design, manufacture and
market optoelectronic devices and flex circuits and provide electronics manufacturing services globally for use in a broad range of
applications, including aerospace and defense electronics, security and inspection systems, medical imaging and diagnostics,
telecommunications, office automation, computer peripherals, industrial automation and consumer products. We also provide our
optoelectronic devices and electronics manufacturing services to OEM customers and to our own Security and Healthcare divisions.
Revenues from external customers in our Optoelectronics and Manufacturing division accounted for 28% and 22% of our total
consolidated revenues for the nine months ended March 31, 2023 and 2024, respectively.

Healthcare Division. Through our Healthcare division, we design, manufacture, market and service patient monitoring, cardiology and
remote monitoring, and connected care systems globally for sale primarily to hospitals and medical centers. Our products monitor
patients in critical, emergency and perioperative care areas of the hospital and provide information, through wired and wireless networks,
to physicians and nurses who may be at the patient’s bedside, in another area of the hospital or even outside the hospital. Revenues from
our Healthcare division accounted for 15% and 12% of our total consolidated revenues for the nine months ended March 31, 2023 and
2024, respectively.

Trends and Uncertainties

The following is a discussion of certain trends and uncertainties that we believe have influenced, and may continue to influence, our
results of operations.

Global Economic Considerations. Our products and services are sold in numerous countries worldwide, with a large percentage of our
sales generated outside the United States. Therefore, we are exposed to and impacted by global macroeconomic factors, U.S. and foreign
government policies and foreign exchange fluctuations. There is uncertainty surrounding macroeconomic factors in the U.S. and globally
characterized by the supply chain environment, inflationary pressure, rising interest rates, and labor shortages. Increasing diplomatic and
trade friction between the U.S. and China has also created significant uncertainty in the global economy. These global macroeconomic
factors, coupled with the volatile U.S. political climate and political unrest internationally, have created uncertainty and impacted
demand for certain of our products and services. Conflicts in Gaza and nearby regions have created political and economic uncertainty in
the Middle East. Also, the continued conflict between Russia and Ukraine and the sanctions imposed in response to this conflict have
increased global economic and political uncertainty. While the impact of these factors remains uncertain, we will continue to evaluate the
extent to which these factors will impact our business, financial condition or results of operations. We do not know how long this
uncertainty will continue. These factors could have a material negative effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

Global Trade. The current domestic and international political environment, including in relation to recent and further potential changes
by the U.S. and other countries in policies on global trade and tariffs, have resulted in uncertainty surrounding the future state of the
global economy and global trade. This uncertainty is exacerbated by sanctions imposed by the U.S. government against certain
businesses and individuals in select countries. Continued or increased uncertainty regarding global trade due to these or other factors may
require us to modify our current business practices and could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

Healthcare Considerations. As described below, our Healthcare division experienced some increased demand for its patient monitoring
products as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic during the earlier stages of the pandemic. Certain hospitals are facing significant
financial pressure as supply chain constraints and inflation drive up operating costs, higher interest rates make access to credit more
expensive, and fiscal stimulus programs enacted during the COVID-19 pandemic wind down. To the extent macroeconomic conditions
remain challenging, it is likely that hospitals’ spend on capital equipment will be adversely impacted.

Government Policies. Our results of operations and cash flows could be materially affected by changes in U.S. or foreign government
legislative, regulatory or enforcement policies.
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Changes in Costs and Supply Chain Disruptions. Our costs are subject to fluctuations, particularly due to changes in raw material,
component, and logistics costs. Our manufacturing and supply chain operations, including freight and shipping activities, have been and
may continue to be impacted by increased vendor costs as well as the current global supply chain challenges. Specifically, we are
impacted by the global shortage of electronic components and other materials needed for production and freight availability. We expect
continued disruptions in obtaining material and freight availability as the world economies react to and recover from supply chain
shortages. If we are unable to mitigate the impact of increased costs through pricing or other actions, there could be a negative impact on
our business, results of operations, and financial condition.

Russia’s Invasion of Ukraine. The invasion of Ukraine by Russia and the sanctions imposed in response to this conflict have increased
global economic and political uncertainty. This has the potential to indirectly disrupt our supply chain and access to certain resources.
While we have not experienced significant adverse impacts to date and will continue to monitor for any impacts and seek to mitigate
disruption that may arise, we have certain research and development activities within Ukraine for our Healthcare division which have
been somewhat impacted. The conflict also has increased the threat of malicious cyber activity from nation states and other actors.

Currency Exchange Rates. On a year-over-year basis, currency exchange rates positively impacted reported sales by approximately
2.2% for the nine months ended March 31, 2024 compared to the nine months ended March 31, 2023, primarily due to the weakening of
the U.S. dollar against other foreign currencies in 2024. Any strengthening of the U.S. dollar against foreign currencies would adversely
impact our sales for the remainder of the fiscal year, and any further weakening of the U.S. dollar against foreign currencies would
positively impact our sales for the remainder of the fiscal year.

Coronavirus Pandemic. The coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) pandemic dramatically impacted the global health and economic
environment, with millions of confirmed cases, business slowdowns and shutdowns, and market volatility. The COVID-19 pandemic
caused, and may continue to cause, significant economic disruptions and impacted, and may continue to impact, our operations and the
operations of our suppliers, logistics providers and customers as a result of supply chain disruptions and delays, as well as labor
challenges. During the early stages of the pandemic, our Healthcare division experienced increased demand for certain products as a
result of COVID-19. In our Security division, throughout the pandemic, receipt of certain orders was delayed, most notably with respect
to our aviation and cargo products, and our revenues were adversely impacted as a result of the pandemic.

Significant International Security Contracts. During fiscal years 2023 and 2024, our Security division was awarded three significant
international contracts valued in aggregate greater than $800 million with expected revenues to be recognized over multiple years.

Results of Operations for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2023 (Q3 Fiscal 2023) Compared to the Three Months Ended March
31, 2024 (Q3 Fiscal 2024) (amounts in millions)

Net Revenues

The table below and the discussion that follows are based upon the way in which we analyze our business. See Note 12 to the condensed
consolidated financial statements for additional information about our business segments.

Q3 % of Q3 % of
Fiscal 2023 Net Revenues Fiscal 2024 Net Revenues $ Change % Change
Security $ 178.8 59.0 % $ 286.0 70.6 % $ 107.2 60.0 %
Optoelectronics and Manufacturing 80.2 26.5 77.9 19.2 2.3) (2.9)
Healthcare 43.9 14.5 41.5 10.2 2.4) (5.5)
Total net revenues $ 302.9 100.0 % $ 405.4 100.0 % $ 102.5 33.8%
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Revenues for the Security division during Q3 fiscal 2024 increased year-over-year due to an increase in product revenues. The increase
in product revenue was primarily driven by growth in cargo and vehicle inspection systems sales associated with the two large
international contracts received in fiscal 2023 and with growth in aviation and checkpoint system sales. Service revenue in Q3 fiscal
2024 was comparable with the same prior year period.

Revenues for the Optoelectronics and Manufacturing division during Q3 fiscal 2024 decreased year-over year as a result of a decrease in
revenue in our optoelectronics business and contract manufacturing business of approximately $2.8 million and $0.5 million,
respectively.

Revenues for the Healthcare division during Q3 fiscal 2024 decreased year-over-year due primarily to a reduction in patient monitoring
sales of $1.9 million, cardiology sales of $0.7 million, and service revenue of $1.3 million.

Gross Profit
Q3 % of Q3 % of
Fiscal 2023  Net Revenues Fiscal 2024 Net Revenues
Gross profit $ 103.8 343 %$  136.1 33.6 %

Gross profit is impacted by sales volume, productivity, and changes in overall manufacturing-related costs, such as raw materials and
component costs, warranty expense, provision for inventory, freight, and logistics. Our cost of goods sold increased year-over-year
primarily as a result of the increase in net revenues described above which was driven by our Security division. Gross profit as a
percentage of net revenues (“gross margin”) during the quarter ended March 31, 2024 decreased on a year-over-year basis due to a
decrease in the Optoelectronics and Manufacturing division gross margins due to a decrease in net revenues and less favorable sales mix,
partially offset by an increase in gross margin in the Security division due to a more favorable sales mix and higher sales volume.

Operating Expenses
Q3 % of Q3 % of
Fiscal 2023 Net Revenues Fiscal 2024 Net Revenues $ Change % Change
Selling, general and administrative $ 53.7 177 % $ 66.6 16.4% $ 12.9 24.0 %
Research and development 14.8 4.9 17.1 4.2 2.3 15.5
Restructuring and other charges, net 0.9 0.3 1.0 0.2 0.1 11.1
Total operating expenses $ 69.4 229% $ 84.7 209 % $ 15.3 22.0 %

Selling, general and administrative. Our significant selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expenses include employee
compensation, sales commissions, travel, professional services, marketing expenses, foreign currency translation, changes in fair value of
contingent earnout liabilities and depreciation and amortization expense. SG&A expense for Q3 fiscal 2024 increased on a year-over-
year basis primarily due to increases in employee compensation, professional services, unfavorable impact of recovery of losses on
accounts receivable, changes in fair value of certain contingent earnout liabilities, and an unfavorable impact of foreign currency
exchange rates in Q3 fiscal 2024 compared to the same prior-year period.

Research and development. Research and development (“R&D”) expenses include research related to new product development and
product enhancements. R&D expense during Q3 fiscal 2024 was $2.3 million higher than the same prior-year period with investments to
support new product development initiatives primarily in our Security division driven primarily by compensation costs.

Restructuring and other charges. Restructuring and other charges generally consist of charges relating to reductions in our workforce,
facilities consolidation, costs related to acquisition activity, and other non-recurring charges. During Q3 fiscal 2024, restructuring and
other charges primarily consisted of $0.5 million for facility closure costs for operational efficiency activities, and $0.5 million for
employee terminations. During Q3 fiscal 2023 restructuring and other charges primarily consisted of $0.5 million for employee
terminations, $0.3 million in legal charges primarily related to government investigations and $0.1 million in acquisition-related costs
and facility closure costs.
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Interest and Other Expense, Net

Q. % of Q3 % of
Fiscal 2023  Net Revenues Fiscal 2024  Net Revenues

Interest and other expense, net $ 5.7 1.9% $ 7.4 1.8 %

Interest and other expense, net. For Q3 fiscal 2024, interest and other expense, net was $7.4 million as compared to $5.7 million in the
same prior-year period. This increase was driven by higher average interest rates and higher average levels of borrowing under our credit
facility during Q3 fiscal 2024 in comparison with the same period in the prior year. Interest expense for Q3 fiscal 2024 and 2023
included a benefit of $0.9 million and $0.5 million, respectively, from the interest rate swap.

Income taxes. The effective tax rate for a particular period varies depending on a number of factors, including (i) the mix of income
earned in various tax jurisdictions, each of which applies a unique range of income tax rates and income tax credits, (ii) changes in
previously established valuation allowances for deferred tax assets (changes are based upon our current analysis of the likelihood that
these deferred tax assets will be realized), (iii) the level of non-deductible expenses, (iv) certain tax elections (v) tax holidays granted to
certain of our international subsidiaries and (vi) discrete tax items. For Q3 fiscal 2024 and 2023, the provision for income taxes was $9.9
million and $6.8 million, respectively. The effective tax rates for Q3 fiscal 2024 and 2023 were 22.6% and 23.8%, respectively. During
Q3 fiscal 2024, we recognized a net discrete tax benefit of $0.2 million related to equity-based compensation under ASU 2016-09 and
changes in prior year estimates. During Q3 fiscal 2023, we recognized a net discrete tax expense of $0.2 million related to equity-based
compensation under ASU 2016-09.

Results of Operations for the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2023 (YTD Q3 Fiscal 2023) Compared to the Nine Months Ended
March 31, 2024 (YTD Q3 Fiscal 2024) (amounts in millions)

Net Revenues

The table below and the discussion that follows are based upon the way in which we analyze our business. See Note 12 to the condensed
consolidated financial statements for additional information about our business segments.

YTD Q3 % of YTD Q3 % of
Fiscal 2023 Net Revenues Fiscal 2024 Net Revenues $ Change % Change

Security $ 4912 56.7% $ 700.6 66.2 % $ 209.4 42.6 %
Optoelectronics and Manufacturing 244.4 28.2 236.2 22.3 (8.2) 3.4)
Healthcare 131.0 15.1 121.1 11.5 9.9) (7.6)

Total net revenues $ 866.6 100.0 % $ 1,057.9 100.0 % $ 191.3 22.1%

Revenues for the Security division during the nine months ended March 31, 2024 increased year-over-year due to an increase in product
and service revenues of approximately $200.6 million and $8.8 million, respectively. The increase in product revenue was primarily
driven by growth in cargo and vehicle inspection systems sales. The increase in service revenue was due primarily to the increase in the
installed base of products.

Revenues for the Optoelectronics and Manufacturing division during the nine months ended March 31, 2024 decreased year-over year as
a result of a decrease in revenue in our optoelectronics business of approximately $9.8 million, partially offset by an increase in revenue
of approximately $1.6 million in our contract manufacturing business.

Revenues for the Healthcare division during the nine months ended March 31, 2024 decreased year-over-year due primarily to a
reduction in patient monitoring sales of $13.8 million, partially offset by increases in service revenue of $1.3 million, cardiology sales of
$0.7 million and supplies and accessories revenue of $0.5 million.

Gross Profit
YTD Q3 % of YTD Q3 % of
Fiscal 2023  Net Revenues Fiscal 2024 Net Revenues
Gross profit $ 2875 332% $  376.1 35.6 %
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Gross profit is impacted by sales volume, productivity, and changes in overall manufacturing-related costs, such as raw materials and
component costs, warranty expense, provision for inventory, freight, and logistics. Our cost of goods sold increased year-over-year
primarily as a result of the increase in net revenues described above which was driven by our Security division. Gross margin during the
nine months ended March 31, 2024 increased on a year-over-year basis due to an increase in the Security division gross margins due to a
more favorable sales mix and economies of scale associated with the increase in net revenues, partially offset by a reduction in the sales
in the Optoelectronics and Manufacturing and Healthcare divisions.

Operating Expenses
YTD Q3 % of YTD Q3 % of
Fiscal 2023 Net Revenues Fiscal 2024 Net Revenues $ Change % Change
Selling, general and administrative $ 161.1 18.6 % $ 198.0 18.7 %$ 36.9 22.9 %
Research and development 43.9 5.1 49.4 4.7 5.5 12.5
Restructuring and other charges, net 4.4 0.5 2.5 0.2 (1.9) (43.2)
Total operating expenses $ 209.4 242% $ 2499 23.6 %% 40.5 19.3 %

Selling, general and administrative. Our significant selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expenses include employee
compensation, sales commissions, travel, professional services, marketing expenses, foreign currency translation, changes in fair value of
contingent earnout liabilities and depreciation and amortization expense. SG&A expense for the first nine months of fiscal 2024 was
$36.9 million higher than in the same prior-year period, primarily due to increases in employee compensation, professional services,
provision for losses on accounts receivable, changes in fair value of certain contingent earnout liabilities, and an unfavorable impact of
foreign currency exchange rates the first nine months of fiscal 2024 compared to the same prior-year period.

Research and development. Research and development (“R&D”) expenses include research related to new product development and
product enhancements. R&D expense during the nine months ended March 31, 2024 was $5.5 million higher than the same prior-year
period driven primarily by compensation costs related to investments to support new product development initiatives, mainly in our
Security division.

Restructuring and other charges. Restructuring and other charges generally consist of charges relating to reductions in our workforce,
facilities consolidation, costs related to acquisition activity, and other non-recurring charges. During the nine months ended March 31,
2024, restructuring and other charges consisted of $0.4 million in acquisition related costs, $0.4 million in legal charges, $0.8 million for
facility closure costs for operational efficiency activities and $0.8 million for employee terminations. During the nine months ended
March 31, 2023, restructuring and other charges primarily consisted of $3.2 million in legal charges primarily related to class action
litigation and government investigations, $1.0 million for employee terminations and $0.2 million in acquisition-related costs and facility
closure costs.

Interest and Other Expense, Net

YTD Q3 % of YTD Q3 % of
Fiscal 2023  Net Revenues Fiscal 2024  Net Revenues
Interest and other expense, net $ 14.3 1.7% $ 19.7 1.9 %

Interest and other expense, net. During the nine months ended March 31, 2024, interest and other expense, net was $19.7 million as
compared to $14.3 million in the same prior-year period. This increase was driven by higher average interest rates and higher average
levels of borrowing under our credit facility during the nine months ended March 31, 2024 in comparison with the same period in the
prior year. The 1.25% convertible notes were retired on September 1, 2022 using borrowings from our credit facility. Interest expense
during the nine months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023 included a benefit of $2.7 million and $0.6 million, respectively, from the
interest rate swap.

Income taxes. The effective tax rate for a particular period varies depending on a number of factors, including (i) the mix of income
earned in various tax jurisdictions, each of which applies a unique range of income tax rates and income tax credits, (ii) changes in
previously established valuation allowances for deferred tax assets (changes are based upon our current analysis of the likelihood that
these deferred tax assets will be realized), (iii) the level of non-deductible expenses, (iv) certain tax elections (v) tax holidays granted to
certain of our international subsidiaries and (vi) discrete tax items. For the nine months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, the provision
for income taxes was $23.1 million and $14.4 million, respectively. The effective tax rates for the nine months ended March 31, 2024
and 2023 were 21.7% and 22.6%, respectively. For the nine months ended March 31, 2024, we recognized a discrete tax benefit of $0.8
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million related to equity-based compensation under ASU 2016-09 and a benefit of $2.3 million from changes in prior year estimates. For
the nine months ended March 31, 2023, we recognized a discrete tax benefit of $0.6 million related to equity-based compensation under
ASU 2016-09 and changes in prior year estimates.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal sources of liquidity are our cash and cash equivalents, cash generated from operations and our credit facilities. Cash and
cash equivalents totaled $101.4 million at March 31, 2024, an increase of $24.6 million, or 32%, from $76.8 million at June 30, 2023. We
currently anticipate that our available funds, credit facilities and cash flow from operations will be sufficient to meet our operational cash
needs for the next 12 months and thereafter for the foreseeable future. In addition, we anticipate that cash generated from operations,
without repatriating earnings from our non-U.S. subsidiaries, and our credit facilities will be sufficient to satisfy our obligations in the
U.s.

Our senior secured credit facility comprises a term loan and a $600 million revolving credit facility which includes a $300 million sub-
facility for letters of credit. As of March 31, 2024, there was $349.0 million outstanding under our revolving credit facility, $74.7 million
of outstanding letters of credit and $137.5 million outstanding under the term loan.

Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities. Cash flows from operating activities can fluctuate significantly from period to period,
as net income, adjusted for non-cash items, and working capital fluctuations impact cash flows. For the nine months ended March 31,
2024, cash used in operations was $58.5 million compared to cash provided by operations of $72.7 million in the prior period. The net
change in cash flows from operating activities was due primarily to a net increase in accounts receivable and inventories associated with
certain international contracts in the Security division, partially offset by other changes in net working capital and the increase in net
income for the nine months ended March 31, 2024 compared with the same period last year.

Cash Used in Investing Activities. Net cash used in investing activities was $24.9 million for the nine months ended March 31, 2024 as
compared to $30.4 million in the same prior-year period. Cash used to acquire businesses was $9.0 million for the nine months ended
March 31, 2024 compared to $4.6 million in the prior year. Capital expenditures for the nine months ended March 31, 2024 were $13.6
million compared to $12.7 million in the same prior-year period. Expenditures for intangible and other assets for the nine months ended
March 31, 2024 were $12.9 million compared to $12.3 million in the same prior-year period.

Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities. Net cash provided by financing activities was $110.7 million for the nine months ended
March 31, 2024, compared to net cash used in financing activities of $37.1 million during the same prior-year period. The net change
from the prior-year period was primarily due to (1) higher net borrowings for the nine months ended March 31, 2024 to fund working
capital associated with international contracts in the Security division as discussed above and (2) no repurchases of common stock during
the nine months ended March 31, 2024 compared to repurchases of common stock of $34.7 million in the same prior-year period, which
were partially offset by higher taxes paid related to settlement of equity awards of $23.2 million during the nine months ended March 31,
2024 compared to $11.8 million in the same prior-year period.

Borrowings

See Note 8 to the condensed consolidated financial statements for a detailed discussion regarding our revolving credit facility and other
borrowings.

Cash Held by Foreign Subsidiaries

Our cash and cash equivalents totaled $101.4 million at March 31, 2024. Of this amount, approximately 78% was held by our foreign
subsidiaries and subject to repatriation tax considerations. These foreign funds were held primarily by our subsidiaries in India, the
United Kingdom, Malaysia, Singapore, Australia, and Canada and to a lesser extent in Mexico, Albania, Indonesia and Germany, among
other countries. We intend to permanently reinvest certain earnings from foreign operations, and we currently do not anticipate that we
will need this cash in foreign countries to fund our U.S. operations. In the event we repatriate cash from certain foreign operations and if
taxes have not previously been withheld on the related earnings, we would provide for withholding taxes at the time we change our
intention with regard to the reinvestment of those earnings.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
We did not repurchase any shares of common stock during the third quarter of fiscal year 2024.
Contractual Obligations

During the nine months ended March 31, 2024, there were no material changes outside the ordinary course of business to the information
regarding specified contractual obligations contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. See
Notes 1, 6, 8 and 10 to the condensed consolidated financial statements for additional information regarding our contractual obligations.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

From time to time, new accounting pronouncements are issued by the FASB and other regulatory bodies that are adopted as of the
specified effective dates. Unless otherwise discussed in the notes to condensed consolidated financial statements, management believes
that the impact of recently issued standards, which are not yet effective for the Company, will not have a material impact on our
Consolidated Financial Statements upon adoption. There were no new pronouncements adopted during the third quarter of fiscal year
2024.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

For a discussion of our exposure to market risk, refer to our market risk disclosures set forth in Part I, Item 7A “Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. There have
been no material changes in our exposure to market risk during the nine months ended March 31, 2024 from that described in the Annual
Report.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of March 31, 2024, the end of the period covered by this report, our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our
Chief Financial Officer, reviewed and evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e)
or 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act). Based upon management’s review and evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer have concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in our Exchange Act reports is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the SEC and is accumulated and communicated to
management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the third quarter of fiscal 2024 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls and Procedures

In designing and evaluating our controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well
designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management is required to
apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Because of the inherent limitations in
all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud within the
Company have been detected.
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PART II—OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we are subject to legal proceedings, claims, and litigation arising in the ordinary course of our business or otherwise.
More information regarding legal proceedings in which we are involved can be found under Note 10, “Commitments and Contingencies”
of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Part I, Item 1 of this Report, which is incorporated by reference into this Item 1.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The discussion of our business, financial condition and results of operations in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
March 31, 2024 should be read together with the risk factors contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2023, filed with the SEC on August 29, 2023, which describe various risks and uncertainties that could materially affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations in the future. There have been no material changes to the risk factors included in our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

See Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities discussion under Part I, Item 2 - Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations, which is incorporated by reference into this Item 2.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable

ITEM S. OTHER INFORMATION

Rule 10b5 - 1 Trading Plans

Our directors and officers (as defined in Rule 16a-1 under the Exchange Act) may from time to time enter into plans or other
arrangements for the purchase or sale of our shares that are intended to satisfy the affirmative defense conditions of Rule 10b5-1 (c) or
may represent a non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement under the Exchange Act. During the third quarter of fiscal 2024, none of our
directors or officers informed us of the adoption, modification or termination of a “Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement” or “non-Rule 10b5-
1 trading arrangement” as those terms are defined in Regulation S-K, Item 408.

Employment Agreements

On April 29, 2024, Alan Edrick, our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Victor Sze, our Executive Vice President and
General Counsel, and Ajay Mehra, our Executive Vice President and President of OSI Cargo & Solutions Group business unit, entered

into Amended and Restated Employment Agreements.

Alan Edrick’s and Victor Sze’s Employment Agreements

For purposes of this section, Messrs. Edrick and Sze are each individually referred to as the “Executive.” Other than differences
described herein, the terms of such agreements are substantially identical to each other. Unless the agreement is terminated earlier in
accordance with its terms, the agreement has a one year term that shall automatically be extended for successive one year periods, unless
either party delivers notice of non-renewal to the other party at least 30 days prior to the end of the initial term or any renewal period
then in effect. The agreements provide for an initial annual base salary of $519,120 for Mr. Edrick and $448,050 for Mr. Sze. The
Executive is also eligible to receive bonus payments from the bonus pool established by us for our officers and employees and to
participate in incentive compensation and other employee benefit plans established by us. The agreement contains certain restrictive
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covenants and other prohibitions that protect our proprietary and confidential information following termination and preclude the
Executive during the term of the agreement and for 18 months thereafter from soliciting for hire any individual that was an executive,
supervisor or manager of the Company on, or within 90 days prior to, the Executive’s last date of employment with us. Each Executive’s
agreement also contains a clawback provision whereby the Executive’s incentive or performance-based compensation shall be subject to
reduction or repayment by reason of a correction or restatement of our financial information if and to the extent such reduction or
repayment is required by any applicable law.

Under the terms of the agreement, the Company may terminate the Executive’s employment at any time for “cause” (as defined in the
agreement), or for the following additional reasons: (i) in the event of the Executive’s death; (ii) because of physical or mental incapacity
or disability, failure to perform the essential functions of his position for an aggregate period of 180 days within any 12 month period; or
(iii) without cause on 30 days written notice, each as further detailed in the agreement. The Executive may also terminate his
employment agreement for “good reason” (as defined in the agreement) or at any time on 30 days written notice.

In the event of the termination of the Executive’s employment by the Company without cause, the Company’s non-renewal of the
Executive’s employment agreement or the termination of such employment by the Executive for good reason, the Executive shall be
entitled to: (i) an amount equal to 24 months’ salary at the Executive’s then-current base salary plus an amount equal to two times the
average of the highest three annual bonuses paid by us to the Executive in the five years preceding such termination; (ii) continuation of
the Executive’s car usage or allowance payments for a period of six months after separation from service; (iii) an allowance of $6,000 for
outplacement services; and (iv) acceleration of vesting of all stock options, equity grants and other incentive compensation awards
(excluding any cash bonus attributable to performance in fiscal years that are not complete as of the Executive’s last date of employment)
from us to Executive as follows: (a) grants vesting over time shall be fully vested on separation from service, (b) grants vesting based on
performance shall be accelerated and fully vested at target performance levels on separation from service without regard to whether the
performance targets are projected to be met for such performance period, and (c) the time to exercise nonqualified stock options shall be
extended such that Executive’s right to exercise such stock options shall continue until the first anniversary of the Executive’s last date of
employment, but in no event later than the expiration date of the options.

In the event of the termination of the Executive’s employment by the Company without cause or by the Executive for good reason,
within 90 days prior to or 12 months after a “change in control” (as defined in the agreement), then the Executive shall be entitled to
either (i) the severance payment described in the applicable paragraph above except that incentive compensation awards shall, to the
extent unvested, immediately vest at maximum performance levels or (ii) an alternative amount calculated in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 280G.

Ajay Mehra’s Employment Agreement

Unless the agreement is terminated earlier in accordance with its terms, the agreement has a one year term that shall automatically be
extended for successive one year periods, unless either party delivers notice of non-renewal to the other party at least 30 days prior to the
end of the initial term or any renewal period then in effect. The agreement provides for an initial annual base salary of $492,340. Mr.
Mehra is also eligible to receive bonus payments from the bonus pool established by us for our officers and employees and to participate
in incentive compensation and other employee benefit plans established by us. The agreement contains certain restrictive covenants and
other prohibitions that protect our proprietary and confidential information following termination and preclude Mr. Mehra during the
term of the agreement and for 18 months thereafter from soliciting for hire any individual that was an executive, supervisor or manager
of the Company on, or within 90 days prior to, Mr. Mehra’s last date of employment with us. Mr. Mehra’s agreement also contains a
clawback provision whereby Mr. Mehra’s incentive or performance-based compensation shall be subject to reduction or repayment by
reason of a correction or restatement of our financial information if and to the extent such reduction or repayment is required by any
applicable law.

Under the terms of the agreement, the Company may terminate Mr. Mehra’s employment at any time for “cause” (as defined in the
agreement), or for the following additional reasons: (i) in the event of Mr. Mehra’s death; (ii) because of physical or mental incapacity or
disability, failure to perform the essential functions of his position for an aggregate period of 180 days within any 12 month period; or
(iii) without cause on 30 days written notice, each as further detailed in the agreement. Mr. Mehra may also terminate his employment
agreement for “good reason” (as defined in the agreement) or at any time on 30 days written notice.

In the event of the termination of Mr. Mehra’s employment by the Company without cause, the Company’s non-renewal of Mr. Mehra’s

employment agreement or the termination of such employment by Mr. Mehra for good reason, he shall be entitled to: (i) an amount equal
to two times the sum of: (a) annual salary at Mr. Mehra’s then-current base salary and (b) cash bonus at target
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performance for the then-current year, (ii) continuation of Mr. Mehra’s car usage or allowance payments for a period of six months after
separation from service; (iii) an allowance of $6,000 for outplacement services; and (iv) acceleration of vesting of all stock options and
equity grants and other cash incentive compensation awards from us to Mr. Mehra as follows: (a) grants vesting over time shall be fully
vested on separation from service, (b) grants vesting based on performance shall be accelerated and fully vested on separation from
service without regard to whether the performance targets (excluding any overperformance provisions) have been met for such
performance period, (c) cash incentives compensation for the then-current year shall be accelerated on the basis of the assumption that
the target performance has been met; and (v) the time to exercise nonqualified stock options shall be extended such that Mr. Mehra’s
right to exercise such stock options shall continue until the first anniversary of his last date of employment, but in no event later than the
expiration date of the options.

In the event of the termination of Mr. Mehra’s employment by the Company without cause or by Mr. Mehra for good reason, within 90
days prior to or 12 months after a “change in control” (as defined in the agreement), then Mr. Mehra shall be entitled to either (i) the
severance payment described in the applicable paragraph above except that incentive compensation awards shall, to the extent unvested,
immediately vest at maximum performance levels or (ii) an alternative amount calculated in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
Section 280G.

The foregoing description of each employment agreement is qualified in its entirety by reference to the provisions of the applicable
employment agreement, each of which is filed as an exhibit to this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Number __ Description
10.1%+ Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated April 29, 2024 between Alan Edrick and OSI Systems, Inc.
10.2%+ Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated April 29, 2024 between Ajay Mehra and OSI Systems, Inc.
10.3%+ Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated April 29, 2024 between Victor Sze and OSI Systems, Inc.
31.1 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1 Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
322 Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
101.INS XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
101.CAL  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase
101.DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
101.LAB  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase
101.PRE Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase
104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL with applicable taxonomy extension information contained in
Exhibits 101)
Filed herewith

T Denotes a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Hawthorne, State of California on the 30th day of April 2024.

OSI SYSTEMS, INC.

By: /s/ Deepak Chopra
Deepak Chopra
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

By: /s/ Alan Edrick
Alan Edrick
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made and entered into as of April
29, 2024 (“Effective Date”) by and between OSI Systems, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), and Alan Edrick
("Executive").

1. ENGAGEMENT AND DUTIES.

1.1 Commencing upon the Effective Date, and upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement, the
Company hereby engages and employs Executive with the title and designation of Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
of the Company. Executive shall report to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer.

1.2 Executive agrees to devote his primary business time, energies, skills, efforts and attention to his duties hereunder and
will not, without the prior consent of the Company, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld, render any material services to any
other business concern. Reasonable bases for the Company to withhold consent include, without limitation, unreasonable interference
with, or other incompatibility with, Executive’s duties to the Company, so long as such bases are stated in writing by the Company.

1.3 Except for routine travel incident to the business of the Company or the performance of his duties, Executive shall
perform services hereunder primarily at the Company's offices in Hawthorne, California, or at such other place as Executive and the
Company may from time to time agree.

2. TERM. The Term of this Agreement shall commence as of the Effective Date and shall continue until the first anniversary of
the Effective Date (“Initial Term”), unless sooner terminated as provided under Section 4, and shall automatically be extended for
successive one (1) year periods (“Renewal Periods™), unless either party delivers notice of non-renewal to the other party at least thirty
(30) days prior to the end of the Initial Term or any Renewal Period then in effect, or unless sooner terminated under Section 4. The
Initial Term and any Renewal Period(s) shall collectively be referred to as the “Term”. For purposes of this Agreement, the “Completion
Date” shall be defined as the Executive’s actual final date of employment and shall coincide with the Executive’s “Separation from
Service” as such term is defined in Section 8.13.

3. COMPENSATION. During the Term of this Agreement the Executive shall be provided with the following Compensation:

3.1 Base Salary. Executive’s Base Salary shall be Five Hundred and Nineteen Thousand, One Hundred and Twenty
Dollars ($519,120) per annum, less applicable withholdings (“Base Salary”). The Base Salary shall be payable at such times and in such
manner as the Company customarily pays other similarly situated executives but in no event less frequently than twice per month.
Executive’s Base Salary shall be reviewed annually.

3.2 Equity Participation.

321 To the extent that the Company or its Affiliates maintain one or more equity participation plans, Executive
shall be eligible to participate in such plans; provided, however, that Executive’s participation in such equity participation plans, and the
extent of any such participation, shall be at the Company’s sole discretion.

322 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, all stock options, equity awards and other incentive
compensation awards and any special incentive bonuses to which the




Alan Edrick Amended and Restated Employment Agreement

parties mutually agree in writing (“Special Bonus Programs”) granted to Executive by the Company shall become fully vested and
nonforfeitable upon a Change in Control (as defined herein).

33 Bonuses. Executive shall participate in the Company’s bonus pool and Executive’s bonus (if any) shall be determined
and paid on the same or similar basis as the bonuses of other similarly-situated executives. Each bonus payment shall be made in the
calendar year that contains the last day of the fiscal year or performance year to which the bonus payment is attributable, no later than
September 14th,

34 Fringe Benefits. Executive shall be entitled to participate in and receive benefits under any plan of the Company
made available from time to time to any other similarly situated executive, provided he is otherwise eligible to participate. Such benefits
may include, without limitation, life insurance, disability insurance, medical/dental/vision insurance, and retirement benefits, including
participation in the Company’s deferred compensation plan. With respect to Executive’s life insurance benefits, the Company shall
during the Term facilitate the purchase by Executive of an individual term life insurance policy on the life of Executive having a death
benefit in the amount of no less than Two Million, Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($2,500,000) (the “Policy”), and the reasonable
premiums for such Policy shall be reimbursed to Executive by the Company during the period of time Executive is employed by the
Company. The Policy shall be owned by Executive or Executive’s permitted assigns. It shall be the responsibility of Executive to apply
for and obtain the Policy and the Company makes no representation or guarantee Executive will be eligible for any such life insurance
coverage. Upon termination of employment for any reason, the Company will have no further obligation to reimburse Executive for
such premiums; however, Executive shall be entitled to continue such Policy at his own expense.

3.5 Business Expenses/Car Allowance. Company shall advance to or reimburse Executive for all reasonable, ordinary
and necessary business expenses incurred by Executive as a result of Executive's services hereunder, in accordance with Company policy
as established from time to time. Company shall provide the Executive with the use of a Company car, subject to compliance with the
Company policy regarding the provision of allowances and in-kind benefits referenced in Section 8.13.

3.6 PTO. Executive shall be entitled to paid time off in accordance with the Company’s policy applying to other similarly-
situated executives, but in no event less than four (4) weeks of paid time off in each year during the Term.

3.7 Relocation Package. In the event of relocation, during the Term, of Executive’s principal office location more than 25
miles from its location as of the Effective Date (but not closer to the Executive’s principal residence), and, as a result thereof, Executive

relocates his principal residence, the Company shall offer Executive a reasonable relocation package.

4. TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT.

4.1 By the Company For Cause. The Company may terminate Executive’s employment under this Agreement for
“Cause" at any time upon notice to Executive. As used in this Agreement “Cause" shall be defined as: (a) Executive's admission or
conviction of, or entering of a plea of nolo contendere as to any felony, or any lesser crime involving fraud, embezzlement or theft; (b)
Executive’s failure to substantially perform his duties, which failure cannot be cured or is not cured within ten (10) business days after
written notice from the Company, as long as Executive is not prevented from performing or curing by actions outside his control; or (c)
Executive’s material breach of any provision of this Agreement, which breach
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cannot be cured or is not cured within thirty (30) business days after written notice from the Company, as long as Executive is not
prevented from performing or curing by actions outside his control.

4.2 By _the Company Other Than For Cause. The Company may terminate the Executive’s employment under this
Agreement at any time other than for Cause, for any of the following reasons, under the following terms:

4.2.1 Death. In the event of Executive’s death, this Agreement shall automatically terminate and all rights of
Executive and his heirs, executors and administrators to compensation and other benefits under this Agreement shall cease; provided,
however, that Executive’s participation in the Company’s employee benefit plans or programs shall cease in accordance with the terms of
such plans or programs as then in effect.

422 Disability. The Company may, at its option, terminate the Executive’s employment upon written notice to
Executive if Executive, because of physical or mental incapacity or disability, fails to perform the essential functions of his position
required of him hereunder for an aggregate period of one hundred eighty (180) days within any twelve-month period. Upon such
termination, all obligations of the Company hereunder shall cease; provided, however, that Executive’s participation in the Company’s
employee benefit plans or programs shall cease in accordance with the terms of such plans or programs as then in effect.

423 Without Cause. The Company may terminate Executive’s employment without Cause upon 30 calendar
days’ written notice (“Notice Period”) to Executive. The Company may elect whether or not Executive shall perform duties under this
Agreement during all or a portion of the Notice Period but shall be required to pay Executive all wages and other compensation
(including but not limited to continued vesting of any equity awards) as provided for in Section 3 until the end of the Notice Period
(“Notice Period Compensation”). Any decision by the Company not to renew this Agreement at any time during the Term, or to
terminate this Agreement for any reason other than for Cause, death or disability, shall be treated as a termination without Cause.

43 Termination By Executive. Executive may terminate this Agreement at any time upon 30 calendar days’ notice
(“Executive Notice Period”) to the Company, whether or not such termination is for Good Reason as described below. The Company
may elect whether or not Executive shall perform duties under this Agreement during all or a portion of the Executive Notice Period but
shall be required to pay Executive all Notice Period Compensation as provided for in Section 3 until the end of the Executive Notice
Period.

43.1 Good Reason. Executive may terminate this Agreement for “Good Reason,” which shall mean the
occurrence of any of the following events, unless Executive specifically agrees in writing that such event is not Good Reason provided
that (x) Executive terminates this Agreement within six (6) months following the initial existence of one or more of the following events
that occur without Executive’s consent and (y) Executive provides written notice to the Company of the existence of one or more of the
following events within ninety (90) days of the initial existence of such event or events, the Company fails to remedy such event or
events within thirty (30) days of receiving such notice, and termination is effective within sixty (60) days following the end of such cure
period:

(a) Substantial Change in Duties. Any substantial negative change in the nature and status of duties assigned to
Executive such that Executive is given duties not commensurate with Executive’s title. (For avoidance of doubt, duties may be changed
to
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comparable duties of similar importance and stature commensurate with the title of an Executive Vice President, without constituting
Good Reason. Furthermore, changes in service or participation on the Company’s Board of Directors (“Board”) shall not constitute Good
Reason.);

(b) Relocation. Following a Change in Control, the relocation of Executive’s principal office location more than
twenty-five (25) miles from its location as of the Effective Date (but not closer to Executive’s principal residence);

(c) Reduction in Salary. Executive's Base Salary is reduced by more than ten percent (10%) of Executive’s
initial Base Salary specified in Section 3.1. or, following a Change in Control, any reduction in Executive’s Base Salary (for avoidance of
doubt, a reduction of less than 10% of Base Salary from Executive’s initial Base Salary prior to a Change in Control shall not be
considered a breach of this Agreement);

(d) Material Breach. Any material breach of the Agreement by the Company;

(e) Change in Title. Any change in Executive’s titles such that Executive no longer holds the titles (and
privileges commensurate with such titles) set forth in Section 1.1 and instead is given a title or privileges of less importance and stature;

(63} Change in Reporting Relationship. Any change in the reporting relationship, such that Executive no longer
reports to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer; and

(g Change in Role. In the event that, for whatever reason, the Company is no longer the parent entity in its
organizational framework, such that Executive is no longer the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the parent entity.

(h) Company No Longer Public. The Company’s stock is no longer publicly traded.

432 Without Good Reason. Executive may terminate this Agreement without Good Reason as defined herein.

4.4 Payments Upon Termination. Upon expiration, non-renewal or termination of this Agreement for any reason by
either party as described in this Section 4, Executive shall be entitled to receive payment of (a) any unpaid Base Salary through the
Completion Date payable on such date; (b) any unused vacation and paid time off accrued through the Completion Date payable on such
date; and (c) vested incentive compensation and applicable employee benefits to which Executive is entitled upon Separation from
Service with the Company, payable in accordance with the terms of the plans or programs of the Company then in effect (a-c is referred
to together as “Accrued Compensation”). In addition to the above, and subject to Executive’s execution of a customary and reasonable
release of liabilities in favor of the Company and its Affiliates, all of the following shall apply:

44.1 Involuntary Termination. In the event of termination of Executive’s employment either by the Company
without Cause pursuant to Section 4.2.3 or by Executive for Good Reason pursuant to Section 4.3.1, subject to the provisions of Section
4.4.2 below, Executive shall also be entitled to the following in addition to the Accrued Compensation above: (a) a single lump sum
payable as provided in Section 4.4.5, equal to twenty-four (24) months of Base Salary at Executive’s then-current Base Salary (which
shall be the Base Salary before any temporary reduction pursuant to Section 4.3.1(c), or otherwise), plus two (2) times the average of the
highest three (3) annual bonuses paid by the Company to Executive over the five (5) calendar years preceding such termination; (b)
continuation of Executive’s car usage or allowance
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payments, as set forth in Section 3.5, for a period of six (6) months after Separation from Service, (c) a six thousand dollars ($6,000)
allowance for outplacement services payable at the same time as the severance payment provided under 4.4.1(a), and (d) acceleration of
vesting of all stock options, equity grants and other incentive compensation awards (excluding any cash bonus attributable to
performance in fiscal years that are not complete as of the Completion Date) from the Company to Executive as follows: (i) grants
vesting over time shall be fully vested on Separation from Service, (ii) grants vesting based on performance shall be accelerated and fully
vested on Separation from Service at target performance levels without regard to whether the performance targets are met for such
performance period, and (iii) the time to exercise nonqualified stock options shall be extended such that Executive’s right to exercise
such stock options shall continue until the first anniversary of the Completion Date, but in no event later than the Expiration Date of the
options, as defined under the stock option agreement covering such options.

442 Change in Control. Within ninety (90) days prior to or twelve (12) months after a Change of Control, if there
is either (A) a notice of termination of this Agreement by the Company without Cause pursuant to Section 4.2.3, or (B) a notice of
termination of this Agreement by Executive for Good Reason pursuant to Section 4.3.1, and such notice under (A) or (B) results in a
Separation from Service of the Executive, then:

(a) Executive shall receive the payments and benefits set forth in Section 4.4.1, provided, however, that incentive
compensation, whether cash-based or equity-based, shall be calculated on the basis of maximum payment for individual, group and
Company performance, as applicable. contemplated under each planin lieu of, and not in addition to, any amount Executive receives
under Section 4.4.1(d).

(b) If a termination of this Agreement covered by this Section 4.4.2 is contingent upon a change in ownership or
effective control of Company or a change in the ownership of a substantial portion of the assets of the Company (within the meaning of
Section 280G(b)(2)(i) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), and the regulations thereunder (collectively, a
“280G Event)), then Executive shall receive the greater on a net-after tax basis of: (i) the compensation and benefits otherwise payable
under Section 4.4.2(a) , or (ii) the Alternative Payment (as defined below). For purposes of this Agreement, “Alternative Payment”
means a lump sum payment made by Company to Executive as provided in Section 4.4.5, in immediately available funds in an amount
equal to the product of 2.99 (or, if Code Section 280G(b)(2)(A)(ii) is amended providing for a multiple other than 3, then the multiple as
amended, less 0.01) multiplied by Executive’s “base amount” (as defined in Code Section 280G(b)(3)); reduced by the value of
acceleration of any equity, stock options and incentive compensation accelerated hereunder under Section 4.4.2(a) or the value of other
payment contingent upon the 280G Event that is not described in Section 4.4.2(a) above, in each case as valued and determined under
Code Section 280G and the regulations thereunder. Payments to Executive upon termination of this Agreement under this Section 4.4.2
shall be subject to mitigation as provided in Treasury Regulations Section 1.280G-1 Q&A 42(c)(5). The value (as determined under
Code Section 280G and the regulations thereunder) of acceleration of vesting of equity, stock options and incentive compensation and
any other amount granted by the Company to Executive shall be taken into account to the minimum extent necessary so as not to violate
Treasury Regulations Section 1.280G-1 Q&A 42(c). Rules governing the determination and calculation of the Alternative Payment are
set forth in Exhibit A, which shall be enforceable as if set forth in this Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, it is the intention of the
parties that the Alternative Payment in no event shall be subject to the 20% excise tax under Section 4999 of the Code (the “Excise
Tax”).
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443 Definition of Change in Control. “Change in Control” means the occurrence of any of the following events
during the Term of the Agreement: (i) any sale, lease, license, exchange or other transfer (in one transaction or a series of related
transactions) of all, or substantially all, of the business and/or assets of the Company; (ii) a merger or consolidation of the Company and
the Company is not the surviving entity; (iii) a reorganization or liquidation of the Company; (iv) a merger, consolidation, tender offer or
any other transaction involving the Company if the equity holders of the Company immediately before such merger, consolidation,
tender offer or other transaction do not own, directly or indirectly, immediately following such merger, consolidation, tender offer or
other transaction, more than fifty percent (50%) of the combined voting power of the outstanding voting securities of the entity resulting
from such merger, consolidation, tender offer or other transaction; (v) Deepak Chopra ceases to be Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, unless his termination from employment with the Company is by reason of a voluntary termination; (vi) a change in the
composition of the Company’s Board as a result of which fewer than a majority of the directors are Incumbent Directors; or (v) the
consummation of any other transaction involving a significant issuance of the Company’s securities, or other material event, that the
Company’s Board determines to be a Change in Control. The term “Incumbent Directors” shall mean directors who either: (A) are
directors of the Company as of the Effective Date hereof; or (B) are nominated for election to the Board of the Company with the
affirmative votes of at least a majority of the directors of the Company who are Incumbent Directors ("Approved Successors") described
in (A) above at the time of such nomination; or (C) are nominated for election to the Board of the Company with the affirmative votes of
at least a majority of the directors of the Company who are Incumbent Directors or their Approved Successors. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, “Incumbent Directors” shall not include an individual whose election or nomination is in connection with an actual or
threatened proxy contest relating to the election of directors to the Company.

444 Benefit Continuation. Subject to the terms of the Company’s benefit plans, in the event of a termination of
this Agreement by the Company without Cause pursuant to Section 4.2.3 or by Executive for Good Reason pursuant to Section 4.3.1, if
at the Completion Date, the Executive was covered as an active employee under the Company’s group health plan(s), the Executive will
be entitled to purchase continuation coverage under Company’s group health plan pursuant to the provisions of the Consolidated
Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act, 29 U.S.C. Section 1161, et. seq. (‘COBRA”) and applicable state law (“Continuation Coverage”)
for himself and his dependents, if such dependents constitute “qualified beneficiaries” under COBRA, and the following provisions will
apply thereto:

(a) The Company will pay the premiums for the Executive’s and, as applicable, his eligible dependents’
Continuation Coverage for coverage at the same level in which the Executive and, as applicable, his eligible dependents were enrolled as
of the day before the Executive’s termination of employment for the period beginning on his termination from employment and ending
on the last day of the twelfth calendar month after the Executive’s termination of employment (the “Continuation Period”). For purposes
of this Agreement, the amounts contributed by the Company for Continuation Coverage on behalf of the Executive and, as applicable, his
eligible dependents, are referred to as the “Premium Payments.”

(b) In the event and on the date that the Executive becomes covered under another group health plan without any
preexisting condition limitations or exclusions, the Company’s obligation to pay the premiums for Continuation Coverage will cease.
The Executive acknowledges that he is not entitled to the Premium Payments except as a contribution for Continuation Coverage and
only as specifically provided herein. The Executive will promptly notify the Company in writing if he becomes covered under another
group health plan prior to the
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end of the Continuation Period.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Company’s payment of the cost of BeniComp (or other healthcare expense reimbursement plan) for the
Executive and his spouse and dependents with respect to the Company’s group medical coverage shall be treated as Premium Payments
for purposes of this Section 4.4.4.

445 Timing_of Severance Payments. Unless otherwise specified herein, amounts payable upon termination of
employment under this Section 4.4 shall be made in a single lump-sum cash payment, less appropriate deductions and withholding,
within forty-five (45) days of the Executive’s “Separation from Service” as such term is defined in Section 8.13 and subject to the
limitations thereof. The Company’s liability for wages and benefits upon termination of this Agreement is limited to the obligations set
forth herein. For avoidance of doubt, during the period of any severance benefits after the Completion Date, Executive shall not be
entitled to any Company provided matching with respect to any 401(k) plan of the Company. In the event of the acceleration of incentive
compensation awards such as restricted stock units and stock appreciation rights (other than equity or stock options) in connection with a
termination of Executive’s employment by the Company, the value of such accelerated incentive compensation shall be payable in
accordance with this Section 4.4.5.

5. PROTECTION OF CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; NON-SOLICIT.

5.1 Executive acknowledges that his work for the Company will bring him into close contact with many confidential
affairs of the Company not readily available to the public, and hereby agrees that he will not at any time (both during the Term and
thereafter) disclose to any person, including any legal entity (except the Company and its Affiliates), any Confidential Information, and
will only use Confidential Information for the Company’s benefit; provided, however, that Executive may use and disclose Confidential
Information to the extent necessary to assert any right or defend against any claim arising under this Agreement or pertaining to
Confidential Information or its use, to the extent necessary to comply with any applicable statute, constitution, treaty, rule, regulation,
ordinance or order, or if Executive receives a request to disclose all or any part of the information contained in the Confidential
Information under the terms of a subpoena, order, civil investigative demand or similar process issued by a court of competent
jurisdiction or by a governmental body or agency after giving prior notice to the Company so the Company can interpose any objection it
may have. “Confidential Information” includes but is not limited to information or documents Executive has access to during the Term
which relate to the Company’s or its Affiliates’ or related entities’ operations, marketing, sales, or product development including,
without limitation, records that are identified as, or that can reasonably be characterized as, confidential; employee names, duties and
contact information; customer identities and lists, customer contacts, information about customer requirements and preferences;
forecasts, budgets, and other financial information; plans, strategic, tactical or otherwise; data, computer programs, manuals, formulae,
specifications, processes, methods, intangible rights and other similar items; provided that "Confidential Information" does not include
information that at the time of disclosure has previously been made generally available to the public by any authorized action of the
Company or is otherwise available to the public. "Affiliate" is a person or entity that directly, or indirectly, through one or more
intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the Company.

52 Executive acknowledges that Executive has been notified in accordance with the federal Defend Trade Secrets Act (18
U.S. Code § 1833(b)(1)) that an individual shall not be held criminally or civilly liable under any federal or state trade secret law for the
disclosure of a trade secret that: (a) is made (i) in confidence to a federal, state, or local government official, either
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directly or indirectly, or to an attorney; and (ii) solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation of law; or (b) is
made in a complaint or other document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding, if such filing is made under seal.

5.3 Executive also acknowledges that nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to prohibit Executive from reporting
possible violations of law or regulation to any governmental agency or regulatory body or making other disclosures that are protected
under any law or regulation, or from filing a charge with or participating in any investigation or proceeding conducted by any
governmental agency or regulatory body. Additionally, Executive’s confidentiality obligations set forth herein shall not be interpreted or
applied in a manner that would conflict with Executive’s rights, if any, under the NLRA, as defined and further described in Section 8.5
below.

5.4 Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, Executive shall immediately return to the Company all
Confidential Information in his possession, custody or control.

5.5 Executive agrees that he will not, during the Term and for a period of eighteen (18) months thereafter, solicit, directly
or indirectly, (other than by means of general publication or advertisement) any individual who was an executive, supervisor or manager
of the Company as of the Completion Date, or within 90 days prior to the Completion Date, to terminate his/her employment with the
Company. Nothing herein shall prevent Executive from, at some point in the future, working for an entity which may also employ
former employees of the Company.

6. GRANT OF RIGHTS.

6.1 Executive hereby grants, transfers, conveys and assigns to the Company, its successors and assigns, all right, title, and
interest in and to all work, materials and intellectual property of any and all forms constituting or otherwise relating to his performance of
his duties hereunder, including the copyright, patent, trade secret rights, and all other right, title, and interest therein, and consisting of all
source code, object code, documentation, flow charts, design documents, and record and file layouts relating thereto, and all trademarks,
service marks, logos and trade dress associated therewith, and any discovery, concept or idea, whether or not patentable, made during
such performance including, but not limited to, processes, methods, formulae and techniques, improvements thereof and know-how
relating thereto (collectively, the “Property”). This exclusive conveyance shall include, but is not limited to, all rights to publish,
reproduce, transmit, adapt, prepare derivative works, sell, or otherwise make use of the Property (including all subsequent additions,
revisions, supplements to, and versions of the Property and derivatives, regardless of nature) throughout the world, in any form or
medium and in any language, and to license or otherwise transfer to others the rights commensurate herewith in connection with the
Property, to file copyright and patent applications in the United States and throughout the world for the Property in the name of the
Company, its successors and assigns. Executive hereby agrees that the Company, it successors and assigns may act as attorney-in-fact to
execute any document that the Company, its successors or assigns deem necessary to record this grant with the United States Copyright
Office, the United States Patent and Trademark Office, or elsewhere. If requested, Executive agrees to execute any and all copyright,
patent, or trade secret assignments, certificates, applications or documents requested by the Company, its successors and assigns related
to the Property. Executive's grant of rights in this Agreement is irrevocable and without right of rescission by Executive.

6.2 In furtherance of, and not in contravention, limitation and/or in place of, the provisions of Section 6.1 above, Company
hereby notifies Executive of California Labor Code Section 2870, which provides:
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6.2.1 “(a) Any provision in an employment agreement which provides that an employee shall assign, or offer to
assign, any of his or her rights in an invention to his or her employer shall not apply to an invention that the employee developed entirely
on his or her own time without using the employer's equipment, supplies, facilities, or trade secret information except for those
inventions that either: (1) Relate at the time of conception or reduction to practice of the invention to the employer's business, or actual or
demonstrably anticipated research or development of the employer; or (2) Result from any work performed by the employee for the
employer.

6.2.2 (b) To the extent a provision in an employment agreement purports to require an employee to assign an
invention otherwise excluded from being required to be assigned under subdivision (a), the provision is against the public policy of this
state and is unenforceable."

6.3 Executive acknowledges that he has been notified by the Company of this law, and understands that this Agreement
does not apply to Property which is otherwise fully protected under the provisions of said Labor Code Section 2870. Therefore,
Executive agrees to promptly disclose in writing to the Company all Property, whether or not Executive personally considers it
patentable, which Executive alone, or with others, conceives or makes during his employment with Company or as is otherwise required
and set forth under this Section 6.2. Company shall hold said information in strict confidence to determine the applicability of California
Labor Code Section 2870 to said Property and, to the extent said Section 2870 does not apply, Executive hereby assigns and agrees to
assign all his right, title and interest in and to the Property which relates to business of the Company and Executive agrees not to disclose
any of such Property to others without the prior written express consent of Company. Executive agrees to notify Company in writing
prior to making any disclosure or performing any work during the term of his employment with Company which may conflict with any
proprietary rights or technical know-how claimed by Executive as his property. In the event Executive fails to give Company notice of
such conflict, Executive agrees that Executive shall have no further right or claim with respect to any such conflicting proprietary rights
or technical know-how.

7. EQUITABLE REMEDIES. The parties hereto intend that the covenants contained in Sections 5 and 6 shall be enforced to the
fullest extent permissible under the laws of the State of California. Executive acknowledges and agrees that his breach of any provision
of Sections 5 and 6 will result in irreparable harm and injury to the Company, and further acknowledges and agrees that in the event of
any such breach it would be extremely difficult to fix or assess actual damages resulting therefrom. In addition to any other remedy that
may be available to the Company at law or in equity, the Company shall be entitled, from any court of competent jurisdiction, to a decree
of specific performance and to a temporary and permanent injunction enjoining and restricting the breach, or a threatened breach, by
Executive of any such provision of this Agreement.

8. MISCELLANEOUS.

8.1 Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the plans and policies referenced herein constitutes the entire agreement
between the parties pertaining to the subject matter hereof and supersedes and preempts any prior understandings, agreements or
representations by or between the parties, written or oral, which may have related in any manner to the subject matter hereof. No
supplement, modification or amendment of this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing by all the parties. The rule that a
contract is construed against the party
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drafting the contract is hereby waived, and shall have no applicability in construing this Agreement or the terms hereof.

8.2 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

8.3 Successors and Assigns. Except as provided herein, this Agreement shall be binding on, and shall inure to the benefit
of, the parties to it and their respective heirs, legal representatives, and permitted successors and assigns.

8.4 Notices. All notices required under this Agreement shall be given in writing and shall be served in person, by express
mail, by certified mail, by overnight delivery, or by facsimile. Delivery shall be deemed conclusively made (i) at the time of service, if
personally served, (ii) five days after deposit in the United States mail, properly addressed and postage prepaid, if delivered by express
mail or certified mail, (iii) upon confirmation of delivery by the private overnight deliverer, if served by overnight delivery, and (iv) at
the time of electronic transmission (as confirmed in writing), provided a copy is mailed within 24 hours after such transmission. Notices
to the Company shall be delivered to the Company’s then-current principal offices, to the attention of the Chief Executive Officer.

Notices to the Executive shall be delivered to the address (or facsimile number, if any) provided to the Company by the Executive as his
principal residence, or such other address or facsimile number as Executive may designate by written notice.

8.5 NLRA Compliance. All terms of this Agreement shall be interpreted and applied in a manner that complies with the
National Labor Relations Act (“NLRA”), including without limitation, Section 7 thereof. Thus, to the extent Executive is covered by the
NLRA, no provision of this Agreement, notwithstanding the language thereof, shall prohibit Executive, alone or with other Company
employees, from (i) filing unfair labor practice charges; (ii) assisting others who are filing such charges; (iii) cooperating with the
investigative process of National Labor Relations Board (the “NLRB) and other government agencies; (iv) self-organizing, forming,
joining or assisting labor organizations; (v) bargaining collectively through representatives of their own choosing; (vi) discussing wages,
hours, working conditions, other labor policies, or unionism for the purpose of collective bargaining or other mutual aid or protection;
(vii) taking or posting pictures or videos of employees engaged in such activities or other activities involving collective bargaining or
other mutual aid or protection; (viii) taking other action with one or more co-workers to improve working conditions by, among other
means, raising work-related complaints directly with the Company or with a government agency, or seeking help from a union; or (ix)
choosing not to engage in any of the foregoing activities.

8.6 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of
California.
8.7 Venue. The Parties (i) agree that any dispute between the Parties, including, without limitation, any dispute concerning

or arising out of this Agreement or Executive’s employment hereunder (or termination thereof) that is not subject to the arbitration
provisions of Section 8.15 shall be litigated exclusively in an appropriate state or federal court in or closest to Los Angeles, California;
(ii) hereby consent, and waive any objection, to the jurisdiction of any such court; (iii) agree that service of process in any such litigation
may be effected by mailing a copy of such process by registered or certified mail (or any substantially similar form of mail), postage
prepaid, to such Party at Executive’s or the Company’s address as provided herein; and (v) agree that nothing in this Agreement shall
affect the right to effect service of process in any other manner permitted by the laws of California.
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8.8 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement, as applied to any party or to any circumstance, shall be found by a
court or arbitrator of competent jurisdiction to be void, invalid or unenforceable, the same shall in no way affect any other provision of
this Agreement, the application of any such provision in any other circumstance, or the validity or enforceability of this Agreement, and
any provision which is found to be void, invalid or unenforceable shall be curtailed and limited only to the extent necessary to bring such
provision within the requirements of the law.

8.9 Headings. Titles or captions contained herein are inserted as a matter of convenience and for reference, and in no way,
define, limit, extend or describe the scope of this Agreement or any provision thereof. No provision in this Agreement is to be
interpreted for or against either party because that party or its legal representative drafted such provision.

8.10 Further Assurances. Each party agrees to execute and acknowledge such other instruments as may be reasonably
necessary to effect the transactions contemplated herein.

8.11 Remedies Cumulative. All remedies shall be cumulative and pursuit of any one shall not waive any other.

8.12 Waiver. No waiver by any party at any time of any breach by any other party of, or compliance with, any condition or
provision of the Agreement to be performed by any other party shall be deemed a waiver of any other provisions or conditions at the
same time or at any prior or subsequent time.

8.13 Application of Section 409A. To the extent applicable, it is intended that this Agreement comply with the provisions
of Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code and the guidance promulgated thereunder (“Section 409A”). This Agreement shall be
administered in a manner consistent with this intent, and any provision that would cause the Agreement to fail to satisfy Section 409A
shall have no force and effect until amended by the parties to comply with Section 409A (which amendment may be retroactive to the
extent permitted by Section 409A). Unless otherwise expressly provided, any payment of compensation by the Company to Executive,
whether pursuant to this Agreement or otherwise, shall be made no later than the 15th day of the third month (i.e., 2}» months) after the
later of the end of the calendar year or the Company’s fiscal year in which Executive’s right to such payment vests (i.e., is not subject to a
“substantial risk of forfeiture” for purposes of Code Section 409A). For purposes of this Agreement, “Separation from Service” shall
have the meaning given to such term under Section 409A. Each payment and each installment of any severance payments provided for
under this Agreement shall be treated as a separate payment for purposes of application of Section 409A. To the extent that any
severance payments come within the definition of “short term deferrals” or “involuntary severance” under Section 409A, such amounts
shall be excluded from “deferred compensation” as allowed under Section 409A, and shall not be subject to the following Section 409A
compliance requirements. All payments of “nonqualified deferred compensation” (within the meaning of Section 409A) are intended to
comply with the requirements of Section 409A, and shall be interpreted in accordance therewith. Neither party individually or in
combination may accelerate, offset or assign any such deferred payment, except in compliance with Section 409A. No amount shall be
paid prior to the earliest date on which it is permitted to be paid under Section 409A and Executive shall have no discretion with respect
to the timing of payments except as permitted under Section 409A. Any payments to which Section 409A applies which are subject to
execution of a waiver and release which may be executed and/or revoked in a calendar year following the calendar year in which the
payment event (such as Separation from Service) occurs shall commence payment only in the calendar year in which the release
revocation period ends if necessary to comply with Section 409A. In the event that Executive is determined to be a “key
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employee” (as defined and determined under Section 409A) of the Company at a time when its stock is deemed to be publicly traded on
an established securities market, payments determined to be “nonqualified deferred compensation” payable upon Separation from
Service shall be made no earlier than (i) the first day of the seventh (7th) complete calendar month following such termination of
employment, or (ii) Executive’s death, if required and consistent with the provisions of Section 409A. Any payment delayed by reason
of the prior sentence shall be paid out in a single lump sum at the end of such required delay period in order to catch up to the original
payment schedule. All expense reimbursement or in-kind benefits subject to Section 409A provided under this Agreement or, unless
otherwise specified in writing, under any Company program or policy, shall be subject to the following rules to the extent necessary to
comply with Section 409A: (i) the amount of expenses eligible for reimbursement or in-kind benefits provided during one calendar year
may not affect the benefits provided during any other year; (ii) reimbursements shall be paid no later than the end of the calendar year
following the year in which Executive incurs such expenses, and Executive shall take all actions necessary to claim all such
reimbursements on a timely basis to permit the Company to make all such reimbursement payments prior to the end of said period, and
(iii) the right to reimbursement or in-kind benefits shall not be subject to liquidation or exchange for another benefit. Notwithstanding
anything herein to the contrary, no amendment may be made to this Agreement if it would cause the Agreement or any payment
hereunder not to be in compliance with Section 409A.

8.14 Attorneys Fees. Should any litigation or arbitration occur between the parties relating to this Agreement, the
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorneys’ fees and other costs in connection with such litigation, including
reasonable attorneys’ fees, unless otherwise prohibited by statute or other applicable law, up to but not to exceed one hundred and fifty
thousand dollars ($150,000) which shall be due and payable no later than sixty (60) days following the date such judgment is entered.
Any judgment shall include an attorneys’ fees clause that shall entitle the judgment creditor to recover attorneys’ fees incurred to enforce
a judgment on this Agreement, which attorneys’ fees shall be an element of post-judgment costs. In addition to the recovery of the fee
provision above, if any party incurs costs in collecting any amounts due and payable under this Agreement, the collecting party shall be
entitled to recover from the paying party the full amount of all such costs (limited only by reasonability) and such costs shall be added to,
and made part of, the principal amount due and owing.

8.15 Arbitration.

8.15.1 Any claim, dispute, or controversy between the Executive and the Company (which, for this purpose, shall
include including any of the Company’s partners, affiliated companies, successors, assigns, owners, directors, officers, shareholders,
employees, managers, members and agents), including without limitation, those arising out of or relating to this Agreement, Executive’s
employment with the Company or the termination thereof shall be submitted to final and binding arbitration pursuant to the Federal
Arbitration Act (“FAA”). Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following shall not be subject to mandatory arbitration pursuant to this
provision: (i) applications by any Party for temporary or preliminary injunctive relief in aid of arbitration or for the maintenance of the
status quo pending arbitration; (ii) claims for workers’ compensation benefits; (iii) claims for unemployment insurance compensation
benefits; (iv) to the extent required by law, administrative claims or charges before applicable federal and state administrative agencies
(such as the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission or comparable state agency, and any unfair labor charge which is to be brought
under the NLRA); and (v) claims that may not be subject to pre-dispute mandatory arbitration agreements, such as claims for sexual
harassment or sexual assault to the extent Executive determines that Executive would prefer to proceed in a court of law. Further,
notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, to
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the extent permitted by applicable law and applicable JAMS rules and standards without invalidating this arbitration provision, either
Party shall be entitled to a court action for temporary equitable relief in accordance with Section 8.6.

8.15.2 To the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, the Parties agree that any claim each brings may not be
initiated, maintained, heard or determined on a class action, collective action, or representative action basis either in court or in
arbitration, and that each is not entitled to serve or participate as a class, collective or representative action member or representative or
to receive any recovery from a class, collective or representative action involving a claim against the other Party either in court or in
arbitration. Any claim brought by one Party may not be joined or consolidated with any other claim that does not involve precisely the
same parties. If a Party is included within any class action, collective action, or representative action in court or in arbitration involving a
claim against the other Party, such Party will take all steps necessary to opt-out of the action or refrain from opting in, as the case may be.

Insofar as any claim between the Parties is permitted to proceed on a class action, collective action, or representative action basis,
notwithstanding this Section, it must do so in court pursuant to Section 8.6.

8.15.3 The arbitration process shall be confidential and private and administered by JAMS pursuant to its
Employment Arbitration Rules & Procedures in effect at the time the dispute is submitted (the “Arbitration Rules”), which can be found
at http://www.jamsadr.com, a copy of which will be provided to Executive upon Executive’s request. Claims must be submitted to
JAMS for arbitration in accordance with the Arbitration Rules for commencing an arbitration, and within the applicable statute of
limitations. The arbitration shall be conducted on a strictly confidential basis, and Executive shall not disclose the existence or nature of
any claim or defense; any documents, correspondence, pleadings, briefing, exhibits, arguments, testimony, evidence, or information
exchanged or presented in connection with any claim or defense; or any rulings, decisions, or results of any claim or defense
(collectively, “Arbitration Materials™) to any third party, with the sole exception of Executive’s legal counsel, whom Executive shall
ensure complies with these confidentiality terms, and the arbitrator. The Parties may file and the arbitrator shall hear and decide at any
point in the proceedings any motion permitted by the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, including but not limited to motions to compel
discovery, motions for protective orders, motions to dismiss, motions for summary judgment, and motions in limine. In addition, the
arbitration shall be subject to the same burdens of proof and statutes of limitations as if the claim at issue was being heard in the federal
or state court provided by Section 8.6 above. The arbitration proceedings will be held before a single, neutral arbitrator in or close to Los
Angeles County, California. The fees of the arbitrator and all other costs that are unique to the arbitration process shall be paid by the
Company to the extent required by law. Each party shall be solely responsible for paying his/her/its own costs for the arbitration,
including, but not limited to attorneys’ fees. The arbitrator shall have the authority to award any damages or relief authorized by law,
except the arbitrator shall have no authority to award any punitive or exemplary damages and the Parties waive, to the full extent
permitted by law, any right to recover such damages in such arbitration. The award of the arbitrator shall be in writing and shall contain
the arbitrator’s factual findings, legal conclusions and reasons for the award. The award may be entered as a judgment in any court with
jurisdiction over either Executive or the Company. Either Party may bring an action in any court of competent jurisdiction to compel
arbitration under this Agreement, to enforce an arbitration award and to vacate an arbitration award. However, in actions seeking to
vacate an award, the standard of review to be applied by said court to the arbitrator’s findings of fact and conclusions of law will be the
same as that applied by an appellate court reviewing a decision of a trial court sitting without a jury. The Parties agree to take all steps
necessary to protect the confidentiality of the Arbitration Materials in connection with any court proceeding,
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agree to use their reasonable best efforts to file any court proceeding permitted herein and all Confidential Information (and all
documents containing Confidential Information) under seal, and agree to the entry of an appropriate protective order encompassing the
confidentiality terms of this Agreement. To the extent any of the terms, conditions or requirements of this Agreement conflict with the
Arbitration Rules, the terms, conditions or requirements of this Agreement shall govern.

8.15.4 Notwithstanding any provision of the Arbitration Rules to the contrary, any issue concerning the validity or
enforceability of any of the class action, collective action, and representative action waivers contained in this Agreement (“Waivers”)
shall be governed by and determined under and in accordance with the FAA and shall be decided by a court of competent jurisdiction
pursuant to Section 8.7. Any issue concerning arbitrability of a particular issue or claim pursuant to this Agreement (except for issues
concerning the validity or enforceability of any of the Waivers) must be resolved by the arbitrator, not the court. The Parties
understand that by agreeing to arbitration, they are giving up their right to a trial in a court of law.

8.16  Clawback Policy. Notwithstanding anything contained herein or in any incentive compensation plan, program or
arrangement sponsored by the Company, all incentive or performance based compensation shall be subject to reduction or repayment by
reason of a restatement of the Company’s financial statements if and to the extent such reduction or repayment is required by any
applicable law or the Company’s policy regarding clawbacks.

8.17 Limitation on Remedies. Executive acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement is being executed voluntarily,
knowingly and without duress. Executive’s exclusive remedy against the Company in the event the Company materially breaches this
Agreement shall be to invoke the provisions of Section 4.3.1 and Section 4.4 hereof. If Executive brings a claim based on breach of the
Company’s obligation to provide any of the benefits and compensation promised to him in this Agreement, and it is determined that the
Company breached such obligation, the amount of any award to Executive shall not exceed the amounts provided under Section 4.4 and,
except as specifically provided in Sections 4.4.2 and 8.13, shall not be reduced by alternative income or benefits he receives before or
after his separation from the Company, nor shall he otherwise be required to mitigate his damages based on breach of this Agreement.

14




Alan Edrick Amended and Restated Employment Agreement

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Employment Agreement to be effective as of the date first set
forth above.

EXECUTIVE
/s/ Alan Edrick
Alan Edrick

OSI SYSTEMS, INC.
/s/ Deepak Chopra
By: Deepak Chopra, CEO




EXHIBIT A
TO THE EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
SECTION 280G RULES

The following rules shall apply for purposes of determining the amounts payable under Section 4.4.2(b) of the
Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, in the event there is a conflict between the terms of any agreement relating
to payments of amount payable in the event of a 280G Event (including, but not limited to any equity, stock options
and incentive compensation agreements) and this Agreement, the terms of the Agreement (including this Exhibit A)
shall prevail.

Whether the payment under Section 4.4.2(b)(1) is greater than the amount of the Alternative Payment under Section
4.2.2(b)(2) shall be determined on a net after-tax basis after taking into account the Excise Tax, if any, on the amounts
described in Section 4.4.2(b)(1) and the amount of all applicable federal, state and local income and employment
taxes that would be payable by the Executive with respect to amounts described in Section 4.2.2 calculated at the
highest marginal income tax rate for each year in which the foregoing shall be paid to the Executive (based on the
rate in effect for such year as set forth in the Code as in effect at the time of the first payment of the foregoing).

All determinations under Section 4.4.2(b) of the Agreement and this Exhibit A will be made by an accounting firm or
law firm that is selected for this purpose by the Company prior to a 280G Event (the “280G Firm”). All fees and
expenses of the 280G Firm shall be borne by the Company. The Company will direct the 280G Firm to submit any
determination it makes under Section 4.4.2(b) of this Agreement and this Exhibit A and detailed supporting
calculations to both the Executive and the Company as soon as reasonably practicable.

If the 280G Firm determines that the Alternative Payment is to be made under Section 4.4.2(b)(2) and one or more
reductions are required under it to avoid the Excise Tax, the 280G Firm shall also determine which payments shall be
reduced (first from cash payments and then from non-cash benefits) to the extent necessary so that no portion thereof
shall be subject to the Excise Tax, and the Company shall pay such reduced amount to the Executive. The 280G Firm
shall make reductions required under Section 4.4.2(b) of this Agreement in a manner that maximizes the net after-tax
amount payable to the Executive.

As a result of the uncertainty in the application of Section 280G at the time that the 280G Firm makes its
determinations under Section 4.4.2(b)(2) of this Agreement, it is possible that amounts will have been paid or
distributed to the Executive that should not have been paid or distributed (collectively, the “Overpayments”), or that
additional amounts should be paid or distributed to the Executive (collectively, the “Underpayments”). If the 280G
Firm determines, based on either the assertion of a deficiency by the Internal Revenue Service against the Company
or the Executive, which assertion the 280G Firm believes has a high probability of success or controlling precedent
or substantial authority, that an Overpayment has been made, the Executive must repay to the Company the
Overpayment. If the 280G Firm determines, based upon controlling precedent or substantial authority, that an
Underpayment has occurred, the 280G Firm will notify the Executive and the Company of that determination and the
amount of that Underpayment will be paid to the Executive promptly by the Company.




The Executive will provide the 280G Firm access to, and copies of, any books, records, and documents in the
Executive’s possession as reasonably requested by the 280G Firm, and otherwise cooperate with the 280G Firm in
connection with the preparation and issuance of the determinations and calculations contemplated by Section 4.4.2(b)
of the Agreement and this Exhibit A.




Exhibit 10.2

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made and entered into as of April
29, 2024 (“Effective Date”) by and between OSI Systems, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), and Ajay Mehra ("Executive").

1. ENGAGEMENT AND DUTIES.

1.1 Commencing upon the Effective Date, and upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement, the
Company hereby engages and employs Executive with the title and designation of Executive Vice President of the Company and
President of OSI Cargo & Solutions Group business unit (the “OSI Solutions Business”) which shall consist of turnkey solutions using
the Company’s security and healthcare technologies and third party technologies, training and integration. Executive shall report to the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer.

1.2 Executive agrees to devote his primary business time, energies, skills, efforts and attention to his duties hereunder and
will not, without the prior consent of the Company, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld, render any material services to any
other business concern. Reasonable bases for the Company to withhold consent include, without limitation, unreasonable interference
with, or other incompatibility with, Executive’s duties to the Company, so long as such bases are stated in writing by the Company.

1.3 Except for routine travel incident to the business of the Company or the performance of his duties, Executive shall
perform services hereunder primarily at the Company's offices in Hawthorne, California, or at such other place as Executive and the
Company may from time to time agree.

2. TERM. The Term of this Agreement shall commence as of the Effective Date and shall continue until the first anniversary of
the Effective Date (“Initial Term”), unless sooner terminated as provided under Section 4, and shall automatically be extended for
successive one (1) year periods (“Renewal Periods”), unless either party delivers notice of non-renewal to the other party at least thirty
(30) days prior to the end of the Initial Term or any Renewal Period then in effect, or unless sooner terminated under Section 4. The
Initial Term and any Renewal Period(s) shall collectively be referred to as the “Term”. For purposes of this Agreement, the “Completion
Date” shall be defined as the Executive’s actual final date of employment and shall coincide with the Executive’s “Separation from
Service” as such term is defined in Section 8.13.

3. COMPENSATION. During the Term of this Agreement the Executive shall be provided with the following Compensation:

3.1 Base Salary. Executive’s Base Salary shall be Four Hundred and Ninety-Two Thousand, Three Hundred and Forty
Dollars ($492,340) per annum, less applicable withholdings (“Base Salary”). The Base Salary shall be payable at such times and in such
manner as the Company customarily pays other similarly situated executives but in no event less frequently than twice per month.
Executive’s Base Salary shall be reviewed annually.

32 Equity Participation.

321 To the extent that the Company or its Affiliates maintain one or more equity participation plans, Executive
shall be eligible to participate in such plans; provided, however, that
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Executive’s participation in such equity participation plans, and the extent of any such participation, shall be at the Company’s sole
discretion.

322 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, all stock options, equity awards and other incentive
compensation awards and any special incentive bonuses to which the parties mutually agree in writing (“Special Bonus Programs”)
granted to Executive by the Company shall become fully vested and nonforfeitable upon a Change in Control (as defined herein).

33 Bonuses. Executive shall participate in the Company’s bonus pool and Executive’s bonus (if any) shall be determined
and paid on the same or similar basis as the bonuses of other similarly-situated executives. Each bonus payment shall be made in the
calendar year that contains the last day of the fiscal year or performance year to which the bonus payment is attributable, no later than
September 14th,

34 Fringe Benefits. Executive shall be entitled to participate in and receive benefits under any plan of the Company
made available from time to time to any other similarly situated executive, provided he is otherwise eligible to participate. Such benefits
may include, without limitation, life insurance, disability insurance, medical/dental/vision insurance, and retirement benefits, including
participation in the Company’s deferred compensation plan. With respect to Executive’s life insurance benefits, the Company shall
during the Term facilitate the purchase by Executive of an individual term life insurance policy on the life of Executive having a death
benefit in the amount of no less than Two Million, Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($2,500,000) (the “Policy”), and the reasonable
premiums for such Policy shall be reimbursed to Executive by the Company during the period of time Executive is employed by the
Company. The Policy shall be owned by Executive or Executive’s permitted assigns. It shall be the responsibility of Executive to apply
for and obtain the Policy and the Company makes no representation or guarantee Executive will be eligible for any such life insurance
coverage. Upon termination of employment for any reason, the Company will have no further obligation to reimburse Executive for
such premiums; however, Executive shall be entitled to continue such Policy at his own expense.

3.5 Business Expenses/Car Allowance. Company shall advance to or reimburse Executive for all reasonable, ordinary
and necessary business expenses incurred by Executive as a result of Executive's services hereunder, in accordance with Company policy
as established from time to time. Company shall provide the Executive with the use of a Company car, subject to compliance with the
Company policy regarding the provision of allowances and in-kind benefits referenced in Section 8.13.

3.6 PTO. Executive shall be entitled to paid time off in accordance with the Company’s policy applying to other similarly-
situated executives, but in no event less than four (4) weeks of paid time off in each year during the Term.

3.7 Relocation Package. In the event of relocation, during the Term, of Executive’s principal office location more than 25
miles from its location as of the Effective Date (but not closer to the Executive’s principal residence), and, as a result thereof, Executive

relocates his principal residence, the Company shall offer Executive a reasonable relocation package.

4. TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT.

4.1 By the Company For Cause. The Company may terminate Executive’s employment under this Agreement for
“Cause" at any time upon notice to Executive. As used in this Agreement “Cause" shall be defined as: (a) Executive's admission or
conviction of, or
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entering of a plea of nolo contendere as to any felony, or any lesser crime involving fraud, embezzlement or theft; (b) Executive’s failure
to substantially perform his duties, which failure cannot be cured or is not cured within ten (10) business days after written notice from
the Company, as long as Executive is not prevented from performing or curing by actions outside his control; or (c) Executive’s material
breach of any provision of this Agreement, which breach cannot be cured or is not cured within thirty (30) business days after written
notice from the Company, as long as Executive is not prevented from performing or curing by actions outside his control.

4.2 By the Company Other Than For Cause. The Company may terminate the Executive’s employment under this
Agreement at any time other than for Cause, for any of the following reasons, under the following terms:

4.2.1 Death. In the event of Executive’s death, this Agreement shall automatically terminate and all rights of
Executive and his heirs, executors and administrators to compensation and other benefits under this Agreement shall cease; provided,
however, that Executive’s participation in the Company’s employee benefit plans or programs shall cease in accordance with the terms of
such plans or programs as then in effect.

422 Disability. The Company may, at its option, terminate the Executive’s employment upon written notice to
Executive if Executive, because of physical or mental incapacity or disability, fails to perform the essential functions of his position
required of him hereunder for an aggregate period of one hundred eighty (180) days within any twelve-month period. Upon such
termination, all obligations of the Company hereunder shall cease; provided, however, that Executive’s participation in the Company’s
employee benefit plans or programs shall cease in accordance with the terms of such plans or programs as then in effect.

423 Without Cause. The Company may terminate Executive’s employment without Cause upon 30 calendar
days’ written notice (“Notice Period”) to Executive. The Company may elect whether or not Executive shall perform duties under this
Agreement during all or a portion of the Notice Period but shall be required to pay Executive all wages and other compensation
(including but not limited to continued vesting of any equity awards) as provided for in Section 3 until the end of the Notice Period
(“Notice Period Compensation”). Any decision by the Company not to renew this Agreement at any time during the Term, or to
terminate this Agreement for any reason other than for Cause, death or disability, shall be treated as a termination without Cause.

43 Termination By Executive. Executive may terminate this Agreement at any time upon 30 calendar days’ notice
(“Executive Notice Period”) to the Company, whether or not such termination is for Good Reason as described below. The Company
may elect whether or not Executive shall perform duties under this Agreement during all or a portion of the Executive Notice Period but
shall be required to pay Executive all Notice Period Compensation as provided for in Section 3 until the end of the Executive Notice
Period.

43.1 Good Reason. Executive may terminate this Agreement for “Good Reason,” which shall mean the
occurrence of any of the following events, unless Executive specifically agrees in writing that such event is not Good Reason provided
that (x) Executive terminates this Agreement within six (6) months following the initial existence of one or more of the following events
that occur without Executive’s consent and (y) Executive provides written notice to the Company of the existence of one or more of the
following events within ninety (90) days of the initial existence of such event or events, the Company fails to remedy such event or
events within thirty (30) days of receiving such notice, and termination is effective within sixty (60)
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days following the end of such cure period:

(a) Substantial Change in Duties. Any substantial negative change in the nature and status of duties assigned to
Executive such that Executive is given duties not commensurate with Executive’s title. (For avoidance of doubt, duties may be changed
to comparable duties of similar importance and stature commensurate with the title of an Executive Vice President, without constituting
Good Reason. Furthermore, changes in service or participation on the Company’s Board of Directors (“Board”) shall not constitute Good
Reason.);

(b) Relocation. Following a Change in Control, the relocation of Executive’s principal office location more than
twenty-five (25) miles from its location as of the Effective Date (but not closer to Executive’s principal residence);

(c) Reduction in Salary. Executive's Base Salary is reduced by more than ten percent (10%) of Executive’s
initial Base Salary specified in Section 3.1. or, following a Change in Control, any reduction in Executive’s Base Salary (for avoidance of
doubt, a reduction of less than 10% of Base Salary from Executive’s initial Base Salary prior to a Change in Control shall not be
considered a breach of this Agreement);

(d) Material Breach. Any material breach of the Agreement by the Company;

(e) Change in Title. Any change in Executive’s titles such that Executive no longer holds the titles (and
privileges commensurate with such titles) set forth in Section 1.1 and instead is given a title or privileges of less importance and stature;

(€3} Change in Reporting Relationship. Any change in the reporting relationship, such that Executive no longer
reports to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer; and

(2) Change in Role. In the event that, for whatever reason, the Company is no longer the parent entity in its
organizational framework, such that Executive is no longer the Executive Vice President of the Company and President of OSI Cargo &

Solutions Group business unit of the parent entity.

(h) Company No Longer Public. The Company’s stock is no longer publicly traded.

432 Without Good Reason. Executive may terminate this Agreement without Good Reason as defined herein.

44 Payments Upon Termination. Upon expiration, non-renewal or termination of this Agreement for any reason by
either party as described in this Section 4, Executive shall be entitled to receive payment of (a) any unpaid Base Salary through the
Completion Date payable on such date; (b) any unused vacation and paid time off accrued through the Completion Date payable on such
date; and (c) vested incentive compensation and applicable employee benefits to which Executive is entitled upon Separation from
Service with the Company, payable in accordance with the terms of the plans or programs of the Company then in effect (a-c is referred
to together as “Accrued Compensation”). In addition to the above, and subject to Executive’s execution of a customary and reasonable
release of liabilities in favor of the Company and its Affiliates, all of the following shall apply:

44.1 Involuntary Termination. In the event of termination of Executive’s employment either by the Company
without Cause pursuant to Section 4.2.3 or by Executive for Good Reason pursuant to Section 4.3.1, subject to the provisions of Section
4.4.2 below,
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Executive shall also be entitled to the following in addition to the Accrued Compensation above; (i) a single lump sum payable as
provided in Section 4.4.5, equal to twenty-four (24) months of Base Salary at Executive’s then-current Base Salary (which shall be the
Base Salary before any temporary reduction pursuant to 4.3.1(c) or otherwise), plus two (2) times the cash bonus at target performance
for the then-current year; (ii) continuation of Executive’s car usage or allowance payments, as set forth in Section 3.5, for a period of six
(6) months after Separation from Service, (iii) a six thousand dollar ($6,000) allowance for outplacement services payable at the same
time as the severance payment provided under Section 4.4.1(a), and (iv) acceleration of vesting of all stock options and equity grants and
other cash incentive compensation awards from the Company to Executive as follows: (x) grants vesting over time shall be fully vested
on Separation from Service, (y) grants vesting based on performance shall be accelerated and fully vested on Separation from Service at
target performance levels without regard to whether the performance targets (excluding any overperformance provisions) have been met
for such performance period, and (z) cash incentives compensation for the then-current year shall be accelerated on the basis of the
assumption that the target performance has been met; and (iv) the time to exercise nonqualified stock options shall be extended such that
Executive’s right to exercise such stock options shall continue until the first anniversary of the Completion Date, but in no event later
than the Expiration Date of the options, as defined under the stock option agreement covering such options.

442 Change in Control. Within ninety (90) days prior to or twelve (12) months after a Change of Control, if there
is either (A) a notice of termination of this Agreement by the Company without Cause pursuant to Section 4.2.3, or (B) a notice of
termination of this Agreement by Executive for Good Reason pursuant to Section 4.3.1, and such notice under (A) or (B) results in a
Separation from Service of the Executive, then:

(a) Executive shall receive the payments and benefits set forth in Section 4.4.1, provided, however, that incentive
compensation, whether cash-based or equity-based, shall be calculated on the basis of maximum payment for individual, group and
Company performance, as applicable. contemplated under each planin lieu of, and not in addition to, any amount Executive receives
under Section 4.4.1(d).

(b) If a termination of this Agreement covered by this Section 4.4.2 is contingent upon a change in ownership or
effective control of Company or a change in the ownership of a substantial portion of the assets of the Company (within the meaning of
Section 280G(b)(2)(i) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), and the regulations thereunder (collectively, a
“280G Event”)), then Executive shall receive the greater of (on a net after-tax basis): (i) the compensation and benefits otherwise payable
under Section 4.4.2(a) , or (ii) the Alternative Payment (as defined below). For purposes of this Agreement, “Alternative Payment”
means a lump sum payment made by Company to Executive as provided in Section 4.4.5, in immediately available funds in an amount
equal to the product of 2.99 (or, if Code Section 280G(b)(2)(A)(ii) is amended providing for a multiple other than 3, then the multiple as
amended, less 0.01) multiplied by Executive’s “base amount” (as defined in Code Section 280G(b)(3)); reduced by the value of
acceleration of any equity, stock options and incentive compensation accelerated hereunder under Section 4.4.2(a) or the value of other
payment contingent upon the 280G Event that is not described in Section 4.4.2(a) above, in each case as valued and determined under
Code Section 280G and the regulations thereunder. Payments to Executive upon termination of this Agreement under this Section 4.4.2
shall be subject to mitigation as provided in Treasury Regulations Section 1.280G-1 Q&A 42(c)(5). The value (as determined under
Code Section 280G and the regulations thereunder) of acceleration of vesting of equity, stock options and incentive compensation and
any other amount granted by the
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Company to Executive shall be taken into account to the minimum extent necessary so as not to violate Treasury Regulations Section
1.280G-1 Q&A 42(c). Rules governing the determination and calculation of the Alternative Payment are set forth in Exhibit A, which
shall be enforceable as if set forth in this Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, it is the intention of the parties that the Alternative
Payment in no event shall be subject to the 20% excise tax under Section 4999 of the Code (the “Excise Tax”).

443 Definition of Change in Control. “Change in Control” means the occurrence of any of the following events
during the Term of the Agreement: (i) any sale, lease, license, exchange or other transfer (in one transaction or a series of related
transactions) of all, or substantially all, of the business and/or assets of the Company; (ii) a merger or consolidation of the Company and
the Company is not the surviving entity; (iii) a reorganization or liquidation of the Company; (iv) a merger, consolidation, tender offer or
any other transaction involving the Company if the equity holders of the Company immediately before such merger, consolidation,
tender offer or other transaction do not own, directly or indirectly, immediately following such merger, consolidation, tender offer or
other transaction, more than fifty percent (50%) of the combined voting power of the outstanding voting securities of the entity resulting
from such merger, consolidation, tender offer or other transaction; (v) Deepak Chopra ceases to be Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, unless his termination from employment with the Company is by reason of a voluntary termination; (vi) a change in the
composition of the Company’s Board as a result of which fewer than a majority of the directors are Incumbent Directors; or (v) the
consummation of any other transaction involving a significant issuance of the Company’s securities, or other material event, that the
Company’s Board determines to be a Change in Control. The term “Incumbent Directors” shall mean directors who either: (A) are
directors of the Company as of the Effective Date hereof; or (B) are nominated for election to the Board of the Company with the
affirmative votes of at least a majority of the directors of the Company who are Incumbent Directors ("Approved Successors") described
in (A) above at the time of such nomination; or (C) are nominated for election to the Board of the Company with the affirmative votes of
at least a majority of the directors of the Company who are Incumbent Directors or their Approved Successors. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, “Incumbent Directors” shall not include an individual whose election or nomination is in connection with an actual or
threatened proxy contest relating to the election of directors to the Company.

444 Benefit Continuation. Subject to the terms of the Company’s benefit plans, in the event of a termination of
this Agreement by the Company without Cause pursuant to Section 4.2.3 or by Executive for Good Reason pursuant to Section 4.3.1, if
at the Completion Date, the Executive was covered as an active employee under the Company’s group health plan(s), the Executive will
be entitled to purchase continuation coverage under Company’s group health plan pursuant to the provisions of the Consolidated
Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act, 29 U.S.C. Section 1161, et. seq. (“COBRA”) and applicable state law (“Continuation Coverage”)
for himself and his dependents, if such dependents constitute “qualified beneficiaries” under COBRA, and the following provisions will
apply thereto:

(a) The Company will pay the premiums for the Executive’s and, as applicable, his eligible dependents’
Continuation Coverage for coverage at the same level in which the Executive and, as applicable, his eligible dependents were enrolled as
of the day before the Executive’s termination of employment for the period beginning on his termination from employment and ending
on the last day of the twelfth calendar month after the Executive’s termination of employment (the “Continuation Period”). For purposes
of this Agreement, the amounts contributed by the Company for Continuation Coverage on behalf of the Executive and, as applicable, his
eligible dependents, are referred to as the “Premium Payments.”




Ajay Mehra Amended and Restated Employment Agreement

(b) In the event and on the date that the Executive becomes covered under another group health plan without any
preexisting condition limitations or exclusions, the Company’s obligation to pay the premiums for Continuation Coverage will cease.
The Executive acknowledges that he is not entitled to the Premium Payments except as a contribution for Continuation Coverage and
only as specifically provided herein. The Executive will promptly notify the Company in writing if he becomes covered under another
group health plan prior to the end of the Continuation Period.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Company’s payment of the cost of BeniComp (or other healthcare expense reimbursement plan) for the
Executive and his spouse and dependents with respect to the Company’s group medical coverage shall be treated as Premium Payments
for purposes of this Section 4.4.4.

445 Timing_of Severance Payments. Unless otherwise specified herein, amounts payable upon termination of
employment under this Section 4.4 shall be made in a single lump-sum cash payment, less appropriate deductions and withholding,
within forty-five (45) days of the Executive’s “Separation from Service” as such term is defined in Section 8.13 and subject to the
limitations thereof. The Company’s liability for wages and benefits upon termination of this Agreement is limited to the obligations set
forth herein. For avoidance of doubt, during the period of any severance benefits after the Completion Date, Executive shall not be
entitled to any Company provided matching with respect to any 401(k) plan of the Company. In the event of the acceleration of incentive
compensation awards such as restricted stock units and stock appreciation rights (other than equity or stock options) in connection with a
termination of Executive’s employment by the Company, the value of such accelerated incentive compensation shall be payable in
accordance with this Section 4.4.5.

5. PROTECTION OF CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; NON-SOLICIT.

5.1 Executive acknowledges that his work for the Company will bring him into close contact with many confidential
affairs of the Company not readily available to the public, and hereby agrees that he will not at any time (both during the Term and
thereafter) disclose to any person, including any legal entity (except the Company and its Affiliates), any Confidential Information, and
will only use Confidential Information for the Company’s benefit; provided, however, that Executive may use and disclose Confidential
Information to the extent necessary to assert any right or defend against any claim arising under this Agreement or pertaining to
Confidential Information or its use, to the extent necessary to comply with any applicable statute, constitution, treaty, rule, regulation,
ordinance or order, or if Executive receives a request to disclose all or any part of the information contained in the Confidential
Information under the terms of a subpoena, order, civil investigative demand or similar process issued by a court of competent
jurisdiction or by a governmental body or agency after giving prior notice to the Company so the Company can interpose any objection it
may have. “Confidential Information” includes but is not limited to information or documents Executive has access to during the Term
which relate to the Company’s or its Affiliates’ or related entities’ operations, marketing, sales, or product development including,
without limitation, records that are identified as, or that can reasonably be characterized as, confidential, employee names, duties and
contact information; customer identities and lists, customer contacts, information about customer requirements and preferences;
forecasts, budgets, and other financial information; plans, strategic, tactical or otherwise; data, computer programs, manuals, formulae,
specifications, processes, methods, intangible rights and other similar items; provided that "Confidential Information" does not include
information that at the time of disclosure has previously been made generally available to the public by any authorized action of the
Company or is otherwise available to the public. "Affiliate" is a person or
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entity that directly, or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the
Company.

52 Executive acknowledges that Executive has been notified in accordance with the federal Defend Trade Secrets Act (18
U.S. Code § 1833(b)(1)) that an individual shall not be held criminally or civilly liable under any federal or state trade secret law for the
disclosure of a trade secret that: (a) is made (i) in confidence to a federal, state, or local government official, either directly or indirectly,
or to an attorney; and (ii) solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation of law; or (b) is made in a complaint
or other document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding, if'such filing is made under seal.

5.3 Executive also acknowledges that nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to prohibit Executive from reporting
possible violations of law or regulation to any governmental agency or regulatory body or making other disclosures that are protected
under any law or regulation, or from filing a charge with or participating in any investigation or proceeding conducted by any
governmental agency or regulatory body. Additionally, Executive’s confidentiality obligations set forth herein shall not be interpreted or
applied in a manner that would conflict with Executive’s rights, if any, under the NLRA, as defined and further described in Section 8.5
below.

5.4 Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, Executive shall immediately return to the Company all
Confidential Information in his possession, custody or control.

5.5 Executive agrees that he will not, during the Term and for a period of eighteen (18) months thereafter, solicit, directly
or indirectly, (other than by means of general publication or advertisement) any individual who was an executive, supervisor or manager
of the Company as of the Completion Date, or within 90 days prior to the Completion Date, to terminate his/her employment with the
Company. Nothing herein shall prevent Executive from, at some point in the future, working for an entity which may also employ
former employees of the Company.

6. GRANT OF RIGHTS.

6.1 Executive hereby grants, transfers, conveys and assigns to the Company, its successors and assigns, all right, title, and
interest in and to all work, materials and intellectual property of any and all forms constituting or otherwise relating to his performance of
his duties hereunder, including the copyright, patent, trade secret rights, and all other right, title, and interest therein, and consisting of all
source code, object code, documentation, flow charts, design documents, and record and file layouts relating thereto, and all trademarks,
service marks, logos and trade dress associated therewith, and any discovery, concept or idea, whether or not patentable, made during
such performance including, but not limited to, processes, methods, formulae and techniques, improvements thereof and know-how
relating thereto (collectively, the “Property”). This exclusive conveyance shall include, but is not limited to, all rights to publish,
reproduce, transmit, adapt, prepare derivative works, sell, or otherwise make use of the Property (including all subsequent additions,
revisions, supplements to, and versions of the Property and derivatives, regardless of nature) throughout the world, in any form or
medium and in any language, and to license or otherwise transfer to others the rights commensurate herewith in connection with the
Property, to file copyright and patent applications in the United States and throughout the world for the Property in the name of the
Company, its successors and assigns. Executive hereby agrees that the Company, it successors and assigns may act as attorney-in-fact to
execute any document that the Company, its successors or assigns deem necessary to record this grant with the United States Copyright
Office, the United States Patent and Trademark Office, or elsewhere. If requested, Executive agrees to execute any and all copyright,
patent, or
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trade secret assignments, certificates, applications or documents requested by the Company, its successors and assigns related to the
Property. Executive's grant of rights in this Agreement is irrevocable and without right of rescission by Executive.

6.2 In furtherance of, and not in contravention, limitation and/or in place of, the provisions of Section 6.1 above, Company
hereby notifies Executive of California Labor Code Section 2870, which provides:

6.2.1 “(a) Any provision in an employment agreement which provides that an employee shall assign, or offer to
assign, any of his or her rights in an invention to his or her employer shall not apply to an invention that the employee developed entirely
on his or her own time without using the employer's equipment, supplies, facilities, or trade secret information except for those
inventions that either: (1) Relate at the time of conception or reduction to practice of the invention to the employer's business, or actual or
demonstrably anticipated research or development of the employer; or (2) Result from any work performed by the employee for the
employer.

6.2.2 (b) To the extent a provision in an employment agreement purports to require an employee to assign an
invention otherwise excluded from being required to be assigned under subdivision (a), the provision is against the public policy of this
state and is unenforceable."

6.3 Executive acknowledges that he has been notified by the Company of this law, and understands that this Agreement
does not apply to Property which is otherwise fully protected under the provisions of said Labor Code Section 2870. Therefore,
Executive agrees to promptly disclose in writing to the Company all Property, whether or not Executive personally considers it
patentable, which Executive alone, or with others, conceives or makes during his employment with Company or as is otherwise required
and set forth under this Section 6.2. Company shall hold said information in strict confidence to determine the applicability of California
Labor Code Section 2870 to said Property and, to the extent said Section 2870 does not apply, Executive hereby assigns and agrees to
assign all his right, title and interest in and to the Property which relates to business of the Company and Executive agrees not to disclose
any of such Property to others without the prior written express consent of Company. Executive agrees to notify Company in writing
prior to making any disclosure or performing any work during the term of his employment with Company which may conflict with any
proprietary rights or technical know-how claimed by Executive as his property. In the event Executive fails to give Company notice of
such conflict, Executive agrees that Executive shall have no further right or claim with respect to any such conflicting proprietary rights
or technical know-how.

7. EQUITABLE REMEDIES. The parties hereto intend that the covenants contained in Sections 5 and 6 shall be enforced to the
fullest extent permissible under the laws of the State of California. Executive acknowledges and agrees that his breach of any provision
of Sections 5 and 6 will result in irreparable harm and injury to the Company, and further acknowledges and agrees that in the event of
any such breach it would be extremely difficult to fix or assess actual damages resulting therefrom. In addition to any other remedy that
may be available to the Company at law or in equity, the Company shall be entitled, from any court of competent jurisdiction, to a decree
of specific performance and to a temporary and permanent injunction enjoining and restricting the breach, or a threatened breach, by
Executive of any such provision of this Agreement.




Ajay Mehra Amended and Restated Employment Agreement

8. MISCELLANEOUS.

8.1 Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the plans and policies referenced herein constitutes the entire agreement
between the parties pertaining to the subject matter hereof and supersedes and preempts any prior understandings, agreements or
representations by or between the parties, written or oral, which may have related in any manner to the subject matter hereof. No
supplement, modification or amendment of this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing by all the parties. The rule that a
contract is construed against the party drafting the contract is hereby waived, and shall have no applicability in construing this
Agreement or the terms hereof.

8.2 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

8.3 Successors and Assigns. Except as provided herein, this Agreement shall be binding on, and shall inure to the benefit
of, the parties to it and their respective heirs, legal representatives, and permitted successors and assigns.

8.4 Notices. All notices required under this Agreement shall be given in writing and shall be served in person, by express
mail, by certified mail, by overnight delivery, or by facsimile. Delivery shall be deemed conclusively made (i) at the time of service, if
personally served, (ii) five days after deposit in the United States mail, properly addressed and postage prepaid, if delivered by express
mail or certified mail, (iii) upon confirmation of delivery by the private overnight deliverer, if served by overnight delivery, and (iv) at
the time of electronic transmission (as confirmed in writing), provided a copy is mailed within 24 hours after such transmission. Notices
to the Company shall be delivered to the Company’s then-current principal offices, to the attention of the Chief Executive Officer.

Notices to the Executive shall be delivered to the address (or facsimile number, if any) provided to the Company by the Executive as his
principal residence, or such other address or facsimile number as Executive may designate by written notice.

8.5 NLRA Compliance. All terms of this Agreement shall be interpreted and applied in a manner that complies with the
National Labor Relations Act (“NLRA”), including without limitation, Section 7 thereof. Thus, to the extent Executive is covered by the
NLRA, no provision of this Agreement, notwithstanding the language thereof, shall prohibit Executive, alone or with other Company
employees, from (i) filing unfair labor practice charges; (ii) assisting others who are filing such charges; (iii) cooperating with the
investigative process of National Labor Relations Board (the “NLRB) and other government agencies; (iv) self-organizing, forming,
joining or assisting labor organizations; (v) bargaining collectively through representatives of their own choosing; (vi) discussing wages,
hours, working conditions, other labor policies, or unionism for the purpose of collective bargaining or other mutual aid or protection;
(vii) taking or posting pictures or videos of employees engaged in such activities or other activities involving collective bargaining or
other mutual aid or protection; (viii) taking other action with one or more co-workers to improve working conditions by, among other
means, raising work-related complaints directly with the Company or with a government agency, or seeking help from a union; or (ix)
choosing not to engage in any of the foregoing activities.

8.6 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of
California.
8.7 Venue. The Parties (i) agree that any dispute between the Parties, including, without limitation, any dispute concerning

or arising out of this Agreement or Executive’s
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employment hereunder (or termination thereof) that is not subject to the arbitration provisions of Section 8.15 shall be litigated
exclusively in an appropriate state or federal court in or closest to Los Angeles, California; (ii) hereby consent, and waive any objection,
to the jurisdiction of any such court; (iii) agree that service of process in any such litigation may be effected by mailing a copy of such
process by registered or certified mail (or any substantially similar form of mail), postage prepaid, to such Party at Executive’s or the
Company’s address as provided herein; and (v) agree that nothing in this Agreement shall affect the right to effect service of process in
any other manner permitted by the laws of California.

8.8 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement, as applied to any party or to any circumstance, shall be found by a
court or arbitrator of competent jurisdiction to be void, invalid or unenforceable, the same shall in no way affect any other provision of
this Agreement, the application of any such provision in any other circumstance, or the validity or enforceability of this Agreement, and
any provision which is found to be void, invalid or unenforceable shall be curtailed and limited only to the extent necessary to bring such
provision within the requirements of the law.

8.9 Headings. Titles or captions contained herein are inserted as a matter of convenience and for reference, and in no way,
define, limit, extend or describe the scope of this Agreement or any provision thereof. No provision in this Agreement is to be
interpreted for or against either party because that party or its legal representative drafted such provision.

8.10 Further Assurances. Each party agrees to execute and acknowledge such other instruments as may be reasonably
necessary to effect the transactions contemplated herein.

8.11 Remedies Cumulative. All remedies shall be cumulative and pursuit of any one shall not waive any other.

8.12 Waiver. No waiver by any party at any time of any breach by any other party of, or compliance with, any condition or
provision of the Agreement to be performed by any other party shall be deemed a waiver of any other provisions or conditions at the
same time or at any prior or subsequent time.

8.13 Application of Section 409A. To the extent applicable, it is intended that this Agreement comply with the provisions
of Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code and the guidance promulgated thereunder (“Section 409A”). This Agreement shall be
administered in a manner consistent with this intent, and any provision that would cause the Agreement to fail to satisfy Section 409A
shall have no force and effect until amended by the parties to comply with Section 409A (which amendment may be retroactive to the
extent permitted by Section 409A). Unless otherwise expressly provided, any payment of compensation by the Company to Executive,
whether pursuant to this Agreement or otherwise, shall be made no later than the 15th day of the third month (i.e., 2} months) after the
later of the end of the calendar year or the Company’s fiscal year in which Executive’s right to such payment vests (i.e., is not subject to a
“substantial risk of forfeiture” for purposes of Code Section 409A). For purposes of this Agreement, “Separation from Service” shall
have the meaning given to such term under Section 409A. Each payment and each installment of any severance payments provided for
under this Agreement shall be treated as a separate payment for purposes of application of Section 409A. To the extent that any
severance payments come within the definition of “short term deferrals” or “involuntary severance” under Section 409A, such amounts
shall be excluded from “deferred compensation” as allowed under Section 409A, and shall not be subject to the following Section 409A
compliance requirements. All payments of “nonqualified deferred compensation” (within the meaning of Section 409A) are intended to
comply with the requirements of Section 409A, and
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shall be interpreted in accordance therewith. Neither party individually or in combination may accelerate, offset or assign any such
deferred payment, except in compliance with Section 409A. No amount shall be paid prior to the earliest date on which it is permitted to
be paid under Section 409A and Executive shall have no discretion with respect to the timing of payments except as permitted under
Section 409A. Any payments to which Section 409A applies which are subject to execution of a waiver and release which may be
executed and/or revoked in a calendar year following the calendar year in which the payment event (such as Separation from Service)
occurs shall commence payment only in the calendar year in which the release revocation period ends if necessary to comply with
Section 409A. In the event that Executive is determined to be a “key employee” (as defined and determined under Section 409A) of the
Company at a time when its stock is deemed to be publicly traded on an established securities market, payments determined to be
“nonqualified deferred compensation” payable upon Separation from Service shall be made no earlier than (i) the first day of the seventh
(7th) complete calendar month following such termination of employment, or (ii) Executive’s death, if required and consistent with the
provisions of Section 409A. Any payment delayed by reason of the prior sentence shall be paid out in a single lump sum at the end of
such required delay period in order to catch up to the original payment schedule. All expense reimbursement or in-kind benefits subject
to Section 409A provided under this Agreement or, unless otherwise specified in writing, under any Company program or policy, shall be
subject to the following rules to the extent necessary to comply with Section 409A: (i) the amount of expenses eligible for reimbursement
or in-kind benefits provided during one calendar year may not affect the benefits provided during any other year; (ii) reimbursements
shall be paid no later than the end of the calendar year following the year in which Executive incurs such expenses, and Executive shall
take all actions necessary to claim all such reimbursements on a timely basis to permit the Company to make all such reimbursement
payments prior to the end of said period, and (iii) the right to reimbursement or in-kind benefits shall not be subject to liquidation or
exchange for another benefit. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no amendment may be made to this Agreement if it would
cause the Agreement or any payment hereunder not to be in compliance with Section 409A.

8.14 Attorneys Fees. Should any litigation or arbitration occur between the parties relating to this Agreement, the
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorneys’ fees and other costs in connection with such litigation, including
reasonable attorneys’ fees, unless otherwise prohibited by statute or other applicable law, up to but not to exceed one hundred and fifty
thousand dollars ($150,000) which shall be due and payable no later than sixty (60) days following the date such judgment is entered.
Any judgment shall include an attorneys’ fees clause that shall entitle the judgment creditor to recover attorneys’ fees incurred to enforce
a judgment on this Agreement, which attorneys’ fees shall be an element of post-judgment costs. The foregoing notwithstanding, if any
party incurs costs in collecting any amounts due and payable under this Agreement, the collecting party shall be entitled to recover from
the paying party the full amount of all such costs (limited only by reasonability) and such costs shall be added to, and made part of, the
principal amount due and owing.

8.15 Arbitration.

8.15.1 Any claim, dispute, or controversy between the Executive and the Company (which, for this purpose, shall
include including any of the Company’s partners, affiliated companies, successors, assigns, owners, directors, officers, shareholders,
employees, managers, members and agents), including without limitation, those arising out of or relating to this Agreement, Executive’s
employment with the Company or the termination thereof shall be submitted to final and binding arbitration pursuant to the Federal
Arbitration Act (“FAA”). Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following shall not be subject to mandatory arbitration pursuant
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to this provision: (i) applications by any Party for temporary or preliminary injunctive relief in aid of arbitration or for the maintenance
of the status quo pending arbitration; (ii) claims for workers’ compensation benefits; (iii) claims for unemployment insurance
compensation benefits; (iv) to the extent required by law, administrative claims or charges before applicable federal and state
administrative agencies (such as the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission or comparable state agency, and any unfair labor
charge which is to be brought under the NLRA); and (v) claims that may not be subject to pre-dispute mandatory arbitration agreements,
such as claims for sexual harassment or sexual assault to the extent Executive determines that Executive would prefer to proceed in a
court of law. Further, notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, to the extent permitted by applicable law and applicable JAMS
rules and standards without invalidating this arbitration provision, either Party shall be entitled to a court action for temporary equitable
relief in accordance with Section 8.6.

8.15.2 To the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, the Parties agree that any claim each brings may not be
initiated, maintained, heard or determined on a class action, collective action, or representative action basis either in court or in
arbitration, and that each is not entitled to serve or participate as a class, collective or representative action member or representative or
to receive any recovery from a class, collective or representative action involving a claim against the other Party either in court or in
arbitration. Any claim brought by one Party may not be joined or consolidated with any other claim that does not involve precisely the
same parties. If a Party is included within any class action, collective action, or representative action in court or in arbitration involving a
claim against the other Party, such Party will take all steps necessary to opt-out of the action or refrain from opting in, as the case may be.

Insofar as any claim between the Parties is permitted to proceed on a class action, collective action, or representative action basis,
notwithstanding this Section, it must do so in court pursuant to Section 8.6.

8.15.3 The arbitration process shall be confidential and private and administered by JAMS pursuant to its
Employment Arbitration Rules & Procedures in effect at the time the dispute is submitted (the “Arbitration Rules”), which can be found
at http://www.jamsadr.com, a copy of which will be provided to Executive upon Executive’s request. Claims must be submitted to
JAMS for arbitration in accordance with the Arbitration Rules for commencing an arbitration, and within the applicable statute of
limitations. The arbitration shall be conducted on a strictly confidential basis, and Executive shall not disclose the existence or nature of
any claim or defense; any documents, correspondence, pleadings, briefing, exhibits, arguments, testimony, evidence, or information
exchanged or presented in connection with any claim or defense; or any rulings, decisions, or results of any claim or defense
(collectively, “Arbitration Materials™) to any third party, with the sole exception of Executive’s legal counsel, whom Executive shall
ensure complies with these confidentiality terms, and the arbitrator. The Parties may file and the arbitrator shall hear and decide at any
point in the proceedings any motion permitted by the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, including but not limited to motions to compel
discovery, motions for protective orders, motions to dismiss, motions for summary judgment, and motions in limine. In addition, the
arbitration shall be subject to the same burdens of proof and statutes of limitations as if the claim at issue was being heard in the federal
or state court provided by Section 8.6 above. The arbitration proceedings will be held before a single, neutral arbitrator in or close to Los
Angeles County, California. The fees of the arbitrator and all other costs that are unique to the arbitration process shall be paid by the
Company to the extent required by law. Each party shall be solely responsible for paying his/her/its own costs for the arbitration,
including, but not limited to attorneys’ fees. The arbitrator shall have the authority to award any damages or relief authorized by law,
except the arbitrator shall have no authority to award any punitive or exemplary damages and the Parties waive, to the full extent
permitted by law, any right to recover such damages in
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such arbitration. The award of the arbitrator shall be in writing and shall contain the arbitrator’s factual findings, legal conclusions and
reasons for the award. The award may be entered as a judgment in any court with jurisdiction over either Executive or the Company.

Either Party may bring an action in any court of competent jurisdiction to compel arbitration under this Agreement, to enforce an
arbitration award and to vacate an arbitration award. However, in actions seeking to vacate an award, the standard of review to be
applied by said court to the arbitrator’s findings of fact and conclusions of law will be the same as that applied by an appellate court
reviewing a decision of a trial court sitting without a jury. The Parties agree to take all steps necessary to protect the confidentiality of
the Arbitration Materials in connection with any court proceeding, agree to use their reasonable best efforts to file any court proceeding
permitted herein and all Confidential Information (and all documents containing Confidential Information) under seal, and agree to the
entry of an appropriate protective order encompassing the confidentiality terms of this Agreement. To the extent any of the terms,
conditions or requirements of this Agreement conflict with the Arbitration Rules, the terms, conditions or requirements of this
Agreement shall govern.

8.15.4 Notwithstanding any provision of the Arbitration Rules to the contrary, any issue concerning the validity or
enforceability of any of the class action, collective action, and representative action waivers contained in this Agreement (“Waivers”)
shall be governed by and determined under and in accordance with the FAA and shall be decided by a court of competent jurisdiction
pursuant to Section 8.7. Any issue concerning arbitrability of a particular issue or claim pursuant to this Agreement (except for issues
concerning the validity or enforceability of any of the Waivers) must be resolved by the arbitrator, not the court. The Parties
understand that by agreeing to arbitration, they are giving up their right to a trial in a court of law.

8.16 Clawback Policy. Notwithstanding anything contained herein or in any incentive compensation plan, program or
arrangement sponsored by the Company, all incentive or performance based compensation shall be subject to reduction or repayment by
reason of a restatement of the Company’s financial statements if and to the extent such reduction or repayment is required by any
applicable law or the Company’s policy regarding clawbacks.

8.17 Limitation on Remedies. Executive acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement is being executed voluntarily,
knowingly and without duress. Executive’s exclusive remedy against the Company in the event the Company materially breaches this
Agreement shall be to invoke the provisions of Section 4.3.1 and Section 4.4 hereof. If Executive brings a claim based on breach of the
Company’s obligation to provide any of the benefits and compensation promised to him in this Agreement, and it is determined that the
Company breached such obligation, the amount of any award to Executive shall not exceed the amounts provided under Section 4.4 and,
except as specifically provided in Sections 4.4.2 and 8.13, shall not be reduced by alternative income or benefits he receives before or
after his separation from the Company, nor shall he otherwise be required to mitigate his damages based on breach of this Agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Employment Agreement to be effective as of the date first set
forth above.

EXECUTIVE
/s/ Ajay Mehra
Ajay Mehra

OSI SYSTEMS, INC.
/s/ Deepak Chopra
By: Deepak Chopra, CEO




EXHIBIT A
TO THE EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
SECTION 280G RULES

The following rules shall apply for purposes of determining the amounts payable under Section 4.4.2(b) of the
Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, in the event there is a conflict between the terms of any agreement relating
to payments of amount payable in the event of a 280G Event (including, but not limited to any equity, stock options
and incentive compensation agreements) and this Agreement, the terms of the Agreement (including this Exhibit A)
shall prevail.

Whether the payment under Section 4.4.2(b)(1) is greater than the amount of the Alternative Payment under Section
4.2.2(b)(2) shall be determined on a net after-tax basis after taking into account the Excise Tax, if any, on the amounts
described in Section 4.4.2(b)(1) and the amount of all applicable federal, state and local income and employment
taxes that would be payable by the Executive with respect to amounts described in Section 4.2.2 calculated at the
highest marginal income tax rate for each year in which the foregoing shall be paid to the Executive (based on the
rate in effect for such year as set forth in the Code as in effect at the time of the first payment of the foregoing).

All determinations under Section 4.4.2(b) of the Agreement and this Exhibit A will be made by an accounting firm or
law firm that is selected for this purpose by the Company prior to a 280G Event (the “280G Firm”). All fees and
expenses of the 280G Firm shall be borne by the Company. The Company will direct the 280G Firm to submit any
determination it makes under Section 4.4.2(b) of this Agreement and this Exhibit A and detailed supporting
calculations to both the Executive and the Company as soon as reasonably practicable.

If the 280G Firm determines that the Alternative Payment is to be made under Section 4.4.2(b)(2) and one or more
reductions are required under it to avoid the Excise Tax, the 280G Firm shall also determine which payments shall be
reduced (first from cash payments and then from non-cash benefits) to the extent necessary so that no portion thereof
shall be subject to the Excise Tax, and the Company shall pay such reduced amount to the Executive. The 280G Firm
shall make reductions required under Section 4.4.2(b) of this Agreement in a manner that maximizes the net after-tax
amount payable to the Executive.

As a result of the uncertainty in the application of Section 280G at the time that the 280G Firm makes its
determinations under Section 4.4.2(b)(2) of this Agreement, it is possible that amounts will have been paid or
distributed to the Executive that should not have been paid or distributed (collectively, the “Overpayments”), or that
additional amounts should be paid or distributed to the Executive (collectively, the “Underpayments”). If the 280G
Firm determines, based on either the assertion of a deficiency by the Internal Revenue Service against the Company
or the Executive, which assertion the 280G Firm believes has a high probability of success or controlling precedent or
substantial authority, that an Overpayment has been made, the Executive must repay to the Company the
Overpayment. If the 280G Firm determines, based upon controlling precedent or substantial authority, that an
Underpayment has occurred, the 280G Firm will notify the Executive and the Company of that determination and the
amount of that Underpayment will be paid to the Executive promptly by the Company.




The Executive will provide the 280G Firm access to, and copies of, any books, records, and documents in the
Executive’s possession as reasonably requested by the 280G Firm, and otherwise cooperate with the 280G Firm in
connection with the preparation and issuance of the determinations and calculations contemplated by Section 4.4.2(b)
of the Agreement and this Exhibit A.




Exhibit 10.3

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made and entered into as of April
29, 2024 (“Effective Date”) by and between OSI Systems, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), and Victor Sze ("Executive").

1. ENGAGEMENT AND DUTIES.

1.1 Commencing upon the Effective Date, and upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement, the
Company hereby engages and employs Executive with the title and designation of Executive Vice President and General Counsel of the
Company. Executive shall report to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer.

1.2 Executive agrees to devote his primary business time, energies, skills, efforts and attention to his duties hereunder and
will not, without the prior consent of the Company, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld, render any material services to any
other business concern. Reasonable bases for the Company to withhold consent include, without limitation, unreasonable interference
with, or other incompatibility with, Executive’s duties to the Company, so long as such bases are stated in writing by the Company.

1.3 Except for routine travel incident to the business of the Company or the performance of his duties, Executive shall
perform services hereunder primarily at the Company's offices in Hawthorne, California, or at such other place as Executive and the
Company may from time to time agree.

2. TERM. The Term of this Agreement shall commence as of the Effective Date and shall continue until the first anniversary of
the Effective Date (“Initial Term”), unless sooner terminated as provided under Section 4, and shall automatically be extended for
successive one (1) year periods (“Renewal Periods”), unless either party delivers notice of non-renewal to the other party at least thirty
(30) days prior to the end of the Initial Term or any Renewal Period then in effect, or unless sooner terminated under Section 4. The
Initial Term and any Renewal Period(s) shall collectively be referred to as the “Term”. For purposes of this Agreement, the “Completion
Date” shall be defined as the Executive’s actual final date of employment and shall coincide with the Executive’s “Separation from
Service” as such term is defined in Section 8.13.

3. COMPENSATION. During the Term of this Agreement the Executive shall be provided with the following Compensation:

3.1 Base Salary. Executive’s Base Salary shall be Four Hundred and Forty-Eight Thousand and Fifty Dollars ($448,050)
per annum, less applicable withholdings (“Base Salary”). The Base Salary shall be payable at such times and in such manner as the
Company customarily pays other similarly situated executives but in no event less frequently than twice per month. Executive’s Base
Salary shall be reviewed annually.

32 Equity Participation.

321 To the extent that the Company or its Affiliates maintain one or more equity participation plans, Executive
shall be eligible to participate in such plans; provided, however, that Executive’s participation in such equity participation plans, and the
extent of any such participation, shall be at the Company’s sole discretion.

322 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, all stock options, equity awards and other incentive
compensation awards and any special incentive bonuses to which the
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parties mutually agree in writing (“Special Bonus Programs”) granted to Executive by the Company shall become fully vested and
nonforfeitable upon a Change in Control (as defined herein).

33 Bonuses. Executive shall participate in the Company’s bonus pool and Executive’s bonus (if any) shall be determined
and paid on the same or similar basis as the bonuses of other similarly-situated executives. Each bonus payment shall be made in the
calendar year that contains the last day of the fiscal year or performance year to which the bonus payment is attributable, no later than
September 14th,

34 Fringe Benefits. Executive shall be entitled to participate in and receive benefits under any plan of the Company
made available from time to time to any other similarly situated executive, provided he is otherwise eligible to participate. Such benefits
may include, without limitation, life insurance, disability insurance, medical/dental/vision insurance, and retirement benefits, including
participation in the Company’s deferred compensation plan. With respect to Executive’s life insurance benefits, the Company shall
during the Term facilitate the purchase by Executive of an individual term life insurance policy on the life of Executive having a death
benefit in the amount of no less than Two Million, Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($2,500,000) (the “Policy”), and the reasonable
premiums for such Policy shall be reimbursed to Executive by the Company during the period of time Executive is employed by the
Company. The Policy shall be owned by Executive or Executive’s permitted assigns. It shall be the responsibility of Executive to apply
for and obtain the Policy and the Company makes no representation or guarantee Executive will be eligible for any such life insurance
coverage. Upon termination of employment for any reason, the Company will have no further obligation to reimburse Executive for
such premiums; however, Executive shall be entitled to continue such Policy at his own expense.

3.5 Business Expenses/Car Allowance. Company shall advance to or reimburse Executive for all reasonable, ordinary
and necessary business expenses incurred by Executive as a result of Executive's services hereunder, in accordance with Company policy
as established from time to time. Company shall provide the Executive with the use of a Company car, subject to compliance with the
Company policy regarding the provision of allowances and in-kind benefits referenced in Section 8.13.

3.6 PTO. Executive shall be entitled to paid time off in accordance with the Company’s policy applying to other similarly-
situated executives, but in no event less than four (4) weeks of paid time off in each year during the Term.

3.7 Relocation Package. In the event of relocation, during the Term, of Executive’s principal office location more than 25
miles from its location as of the Effective Date (but not closer to the Executive’s principal residence), and, as a result thereof, Executive

relocates his principal residence, the Company shall offer Executive a reasonable relocation package.

4. TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT.

4.1 By the Company For Cause. The Company may terminate Executive’s employment under this Agreement for
“Cause" at any time upon notice to Executive. As used in this Agreement “Cause" shall be defined as: (a) Executive's admission or
conviction of, or entering of a plea of nolo contendere as to any felony, or any lesser crime involving fraud, embezzlement or theft; (b)
Executive’s failure to substantially perform his duties, which failure cannot be cured or is not cured within ten (10) business days after
written notice from the Company, as long as Executive is not prevented from performing or curing by actions outside his control; or (c)
Executive’s material breach of any provision of this Agreement, which breach
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cannot be cured or is not cured within thirty (30) business days after written notice from the Company, as long as Executive is not
prevented from performing or curing by actions outside his control.

4.2 By the Company Other Than For Cause. The Company may terminate the Executive’s employment under this
Agreement at any time other than for Cause, for any of the following reasons, under the following terms:

4.2.1 Death. In the event of Executive’s death, this Agreement shall automatically terminate and all rights of
Executive and his heirs, executors and administrators to compensation and other benefits under this Agreement shall cease; provided,
however, that Executive’s participation in the Company’s employee benefit plans or programs shall cease in accordance with the terms of
such plans or programs as then in effect.

422 Disability. The Company may, at its option, terminate the Executive’s employment upon written notice to
Executive if Executive, because of physical or mental incapacity or disability, fails to perform the essential functions of his position
required of him hereunder for an aggregate period of one hundred eighty (180) days within any twelve-month period. Upon such
termination, all obligations of the Company hereunder shall cease; provided, however, that Executive’s participation in the Company’s
employee benefit plans or programs shall cease in accordance with the terms of such plans or programs as then in effect.

423 Without Cause. The Company may terminate Executive’s employment without Cause upon 30 calendar
days’ written notice (“Notice Period”) to Executive. The Company may elect whether or not Executive shall perform duties under this
Agreement during all or a portion of the Notice Period but shall be required to pay Executive all wages and other compensation
(including but not limited to continued vesting of any equity awards) as provided for in Section 3 until the end of the Notice Period
(“Notice Period Compensation”). Any decision by the Company not to renew this Agreement at any time during the Term, or to
terminate this Agreement for any reason other than for Cause, death or disability, shall be treated as a termination without Cause.

43 Termination By Executive. Executive may terminate this Agreement at any time upon 30 calendar days’ notice
(“Executive Notice Period”) to the Company, whether or not such termination is for Good Reason as described below. The Company
may elect whether or not Executive shall perform duties under this Agreement during all or a portion of the Executive Notice Period but
shall be required to pay Executive all Notice Period Compensation as provided for in Section 3 until the end of the Executive Notice
Period.

43.1 Good Reason. Executive may terminate this Agreement for “Good Reason,” which shall mean the
occurrence of any of the following events, unless Executive specifically agrees in writing that such event is not Good Reason provided
that (x) Executive terminates this Agreement within six (6) months following the initial existence of one or more of the following events
that occur without Executive’s consent and (y) Executive provides written notice to the Company of the existence of one or more of the
following events within ninety (90) days of the initial existence of such event or events, the Company fails to remedy such event or
events within thirty (30) days of receiving such notice, and termination is effective within sixty (60) days following the end of such cure
period:

(a) Substantial Change in Duties. Any substantial negative change in the nature and status of duties assigned to
Executive such that Executive is given duties not commensurate with Executive’s title. (For avoidance of doubt, duties may be changed
to
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comparable duties of similar importance and stature commensurate with the title of an Executive Vice President, without constituting
Good Reason. Furthermore, changes in service or participation on the Company’s Board of Directors (“Board”) shall not constitute Good
Reason.);

(b) Relocation. Following a Change in Control, the relocation of Executive’s principal office location more than
twenty-five (25) miles from its location as of the Effective Date (but not closer to Executive’s principal residence);

(c) Reduction in Salary. Executive's Base Salary is reduced by more than ten percent (10%) of Executive’s
initial Base Salary specified in Section 3.1. or, following a Change in Control, any reduction in Executive’s Base Salary (for avoidance of
doubt, a reduction of less than 10% of Base Salary from Executive’s initial Base Salary prior to a Change in Control shall not be
considered a breach of this Agreement);

(d) Material Breach. Any material breach of the Agreement by the Company;

(e) Change in Title. Any change in Executive’s titles such that Executive no longer holds the titles (and
privileges commensurate with such titles) set forth in Section 1.1 and instead is given a title or privileges of less importance and stature;

(63} Change in Reporting Relationship. Any change in the reporting relationship, such that Executive no longer
reports to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer; and

(2) Change in Role. In the event that, for whatever reason, the Company is no longer the parent entity in its
organizational framework, such that Executive is no longer the Executive Vice President and General Counsel of the parent entity.

(h) Company No Longer Public. The Company’s stock is no longer publicly traded.

432 Without Good Reason. Executive may terminate this Agreement without Good Reason as defined herein.

44 Payments Upon Termination. Upon expiration, non-renewal or termination of this Agreement for any reason by
either party as described in this Section 4, Executive shall be entitled to receive payment of (a) any unpaid Base Salary through the
Completion Date payable on such date; (b) any unused vacation and paid time off accrued through the Completion Date payable on such
date; and (c) vested incentive compensation and applicable employee benefits to which Executive is entitled upon Separation from
Service with the Company, payable in accordance with the terms of the plans or programs of the Company then in effect (a-c is referred
to together as “Accrued Compensation”). In addition to the above, and subject to Executive’s execution of a customary and reasonable
release of liabilities in favor of the Company and its Affiliates, all of the following shall apply:

44.1 Involuntary Termination. In the event of termination of Executive’s employment either by the Company
without Cause pursuant to Section 4.2.3 or by Executive for Good Reason pursuant to Section 4.3.1, subject to the provisions of Section
4.4.2 below, Executive shall also be entitled to the following in addition to the Accrued Compensation above: (a) a single lump sum
payable as provided in Section 4.4.5, equal to twenty-four (24) months of Base Salary at Executive’s then-current Base Salary (which
shall be the Base Salary before any temporary reduction pursuant to Section 4.3.1(c), or otherwise), plus two (2) times the average of the
highest three (3) annual bonuses paid by the Company to Executive over the five (5) calendar years preceding such termination; (b)
continuation of Executive’s car usage or allowance
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payments, as set forth in Section 3.5, for a period of six (6) months after Separation from Service, (c) a six thousand dollars ($6,000)
allowance for outplacement services payable at the same time as the severance payment provided under 4.4.1(a), and (d) acceleration of
vesting of all stock options, equity grants and other incentive compensation awards (excluding any cash bonus attributable to
performance in fiscal years that are not complete as of the Completion Date) from the Company to Executive as follows: (i) grants
vesting over time shall be fully vested on Separation from Service, (ii) grants vesting based on performance shall be accelerated and fully
vested on Separation from Service at target performance levels without regard to whether the performance targets are met for such
performance period, and (iii) the time to exercise nonqualified stock options shall be extended such that Executive’s right to exercise
such stock options shall continue until the first anniversary of the Completion Date, but in no event later than the Expiration Date of the
options, as defined under the stock option agreement covering such options.

442 Change in Control. Within ninety (90) days prior to or twelve (12) months after a Change of Control, if there
is either (A) a notice of termination of this Agreement by the Company without Cause pursuant to Section 4.2.3, or (B) a notice of
termination of this Agreement by Executive for Good Reason pursuant to Section 4.3.1, and such notice under (A) or (B) results in a
Separation from Service of the Executive, then:

(a) Executive shall receive the payments and benefits set forth in Section 4.4.1, provided, however, that incentive
compensation, whether cash-based or equity-based, shall be calculated on the basis of maximum payment for individual, group and
Company performance, as applicable. contemplated under each planin lieu of, and not in addition to, any amount Executive receives
under Section 4.4.1(d).

(b) If a termination of this Agreement covered by this Section 4.4.2 is contingent upon a change in ownership or
effective control of Company or a change in the ownership of a substantial portion of the assets of the Company (within the meaning of
Section 280G(b)(2)(i) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), and the regulations thereunder (collectively, a
“280G Event”)), then Executive shall receive, at his election, either of: (i) the compensation and benefits otherwise payable under
Section 4.4.2(a) , or (ii) the Alternative Payment (as defined below). For purposes of this Agreement, “Alternative Payment” means a
lump sum payment made by Company to Executive as provided in Section 4.4.5, in immediately available funds in an amount equal to
the product of 2.99 (or, if Code Section 280G(b)(2)(A)(ii) is amended providing for a multiple other than 3, then the multiple as
amended, less 0.01) multiplied by Executive’s “base amount” (as defined in Code Section 280G(b)(3)); reduced by the value of
acceleration of any equity, stock options and incentive compensation accelerated hereunder under Section 4.4.2(a) or the value of other
payment contingent upon the 280G Event that is not described in Section 4.4.2(a) above, in each case as valued and determined under
Code Section 280G and the regulations thereunder. Payments to Executive upon termination of this Agreement under this Section 4.4.2
shall be subject to mitigation as provided in Treasury Regulations Section 1.280G-1 Q&A 42(c)(5). The value (as determined under
Code Section 280G and the regulations thereunder) of acceleration of vesting of equity, stock options and incentive compensation and
any other amount granted by the Company to Executive shall be taken into account to the minimum extent necessary so as not to violate
Treasury Regulations Section 1.280G-1 Q&A 42(c). Rules governing the determination and calculation of the Alternative Payment are
set forth in Exhibit A, which shall be enforceable as if set forth in this Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, it is the intention of the
parties that the Alternative Payment in no event shall be subject to the 20% excise tax under Section 4999 of the Code (the “Excise
Tax”).
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443 Definition of Change in Control. “Change in Control” means the occurrence of any of the following events
during the Term of the Agreement: (i) any sale, lease, license, exchange or other transfer (in one transaction or a series of related
transactions) of all, or substantially all, of the business and/or assets of the Company; (ii) a merger or consolidation of the Company and
the Company is not the surviving entity; (iii) a reorganization or liquidation of the Company; (iv) a merger, consolidation, tender offer or
any other transaction involving the Company if the equity holders of the Company immediately before such merger, consolidation,
tender offer or other transaction do not own, directly or indirectly, immediately following such merger, consolidation, tender offer or
other transaction, more than fifty percent (50%) of the combined voting power of the outstanding voting securities of the entity resulting
from such merger, consolidation, tender offer or other transaction; (v) Deepak Chopra ceases to be Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, unless his termination from employment with the Company is by reason of a voluntary termination; (vi) a change in the
composition of the Company’s Board as a result of which fewer than a majority of the directors are Incumbent Directors; or (v) the
consummation of any other transaction involving a significant issuance of the Company’s securities, or other material event, that the
Company’s Board determines to be a Change in Control. The term “Incumbent Directors” shall mean directors who either: (A) are
directors of the Company as of the Effective Date hereof; or (B) are nominated for election to the Board of the Company with the
affirmative votes of at least a majority of the directors of the Company who are Incumbent Directors ("Approved Successors") described
in (A) above at the time of such nomination; or (C) are nominated for election to the Board of the Company with the affirmative votes of
at least a majority of the directors of the Company who are Incumbent Directors or their Approved Successors. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, “Incumbent Directors” shall not include an individual whose election or nomination is in connection with an actual or
threatened proxy contest relating to the election of directors to the Company.

444 Benefit Continuation. Subject to the terms of the Company’s benefit plans, in the event of a termination of
this Agreement by the Company without Cause pursuant to Section 4.2.3 or by Executive for Good Reason pursuant to Section 4.3.1, if
at the Completion Date, the Executive was covered as an active employee under the Company’s group health plan(s), the Executive will
be entitled to purchase continuation coverage under Company’s group health plan pursuant to the provisions of the Consolidated
Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act, 29 U.S.C. Section 1161, et. seq. (‘COBRA”) and applicable state law (“Continuation Coverage”)
for himself and his dependents, if such dependents constitute “qualified beneficiaries” under COBRA, and the following provisions will
apply thereto:

(a) The Company will pay the premiums for the Executive’s and, as applicable, his eligible dependents’
Continuation Coverage for coverage at the same level in which the Executive and, as applicable, his eligible dependents were enrolled as
of the day before the Executive’s termination of employment for the period beginning on his termination from employment and ending
on the last day of the twelfth calendar month after the Executive’s termination of employment (the “Continuation Period”). For purposes
of this Agreement, the amounts contributed by the Company for Continuation Coverage on behalf of the Executive and, as applicable, his
eligible dependents, are referred to as the “Premium Payments.”

(b) In the event and on the date that the Executive becomes covered under another group health plan without any
preexisting condition limitations or exclusions, the Company’s obligation to pay the premiums for Continuation Coverage will cease.
The Executive acknowledges that he is not entitled to the Premium Payments except as a contribution for Continuation Coverage and
only as specifically provided herein. The Executive will promptly notify the Company in writing if he becomes covered under another
group health plan prior to the




Victor Sze Amended and Restated Employment Agreement
end of the Continuation Period.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Company’s payment of the cost of BeniComp (or other healthcare expense reimbursement plan) for the
Executive and his spouse and dependents with respect to the Company’s group medical coverage shall be treated as Premium Payments
for purposes of this Section 4.4.4.

445 Timing_of Severance Payments. Unless otherwise specified herein, amounts payable upon termination of
employment under this Section 4.4 shall be made in a single lump-sum cash payment, less appropriate deductions and withholding,
within forty-five (45) days of the Executive’s “Separation from Service” as such term is defined in Section 8.13 and subject to the
limitations thereof. The Company’s liability for wages and benefits upon termination of this Agreement is limited to the obligations set
forth herein. For avoidance of doubt, during the period of any severance benefits after the Completion Date, Executive shall not be
entitled to any Company provided matching with respect to any 401(k) plan of the Company. In the event of the acceleration of incentive
compensation awards such as restricted stock units and stock appreciation rights (other than equity or stock options) in connection with a
termination of Executive’s employment by the Company, the value of such accelerated incentive compensation shall be payable in
accordance with this Section 4.4.5.

5. PROTECTION OF CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; NON-SOLICIT.

5.1 Executive acknowledges that his work for the Company will bring him into close contact with many confidential
affairs of the Company not readily available to the public, and hereby agrees that he will not at any time (both during the Term and
thereafter) disclose to any person, including any legal entity (except the Company and its Affiliates), any Confidential Information, and
will only use Confidential Information for the Company’s benefit; provided, however, that Executive may use and disclose Confidential
Information to the extent necessary to assert any right or defend against any claim arising under this Agreement or pertaining to
Confidential Information or its use, to the extent necessary to comply with any applicable statute, constitution, treaty, rule, regulation,
ordinance or order, or if Executive receives a request to disclose all or any part of the information contained in the Confidential
Information under the terms of a subpoena, order, civil investigative demand or similar process issued by a court of competent
jurisdiction or by a governmental body or agency after giving prior notice to the Company so the Company can interpose any objection it
may have. “Confidential Information” includes but is not limited to information or documents Executive has access to during the Term
which relate to the Company’s or its Affiliates’ or related entities’ operations, marketing, sales, or product development including,
without limitation, records that are identified as, or that can reasonably be characterized as, confidential, employee names, duties and
contact information; customer identities and lists, customer contacts, information about customer requirements and preferences;
forecasts, budgets, and other financial information; plans, strategic, tactical or otherwise; data, computer programs, manuals, formulae,
specifications, processes, methods, intangible rights and other similar items; provided that "Confidential Information" does not include
information that at the time of disclosure has previously been made generally available to the public by any authorized action of the
Company or is otherwise available to the public. "Affiliate" is a person or entity that directly, or indirectly, through one or more
intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the Company.

5.2 Executive acknowledges that Executive has been notified in accordance with the federal Defend Trade Secrets Act (18
U.S. Code § 1833(b)(1)) that an individual shall not be held criminally or civilly liable under any federal or state trade secret law for the
disclosure of a trade secret that: (a) is made (i) in confidence to a federal, state, or local government official, either
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directly or indirectly, or to an attorney; and (ii) solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation of law; or (b) is
made in a complaint or other document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding, if such filing is made under seal.

5.3 Executive also acknowledges that nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to prohibit Executive from reporting
possible violations of law or regulation to any governmental agency or regulatory body or making other disclosures that are protected
under any law or regulation, or from filing a charge with or participating in any investigation or proceeding conducted by any
governmental agency or regulatory body. Additionally, Executive’s confidentiality obligations set forth herein shall not be interpreted or
applied in a manner that would conflict with Executive’s rights, if any, under the NLRA, as defined and further described in Section 8.5
below.

5.4 Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, Executive shall immediately return to the Company all
Confidential Information in his possession, custody or control.

5.5 Executive agrees that he will not, during the Term and for a period of eighteen (18) months thereafter, solicit, directly
or indirectly, (other than by means of general publication or advertisement) any individual who was an executive, supervisor or manager
of the Company as of the Completion Date, or within 90 days prior to the Completion Date, to terminate his/her employment with the
Company. Nothing herein shall prevent Executive from, at some point in the future, working for an entity which may also employ
former employees of the Company.

6. GRANT OF RIGHTS.

6.1 Executive hereby grants, transfers, conveys and assigns to the Company, its successors and assigns, all right, title, and
interest in and to all work, materials and intellectual property of any and all forms constituting or otherwise relating to his performance of
his duties hereunder, including the copyright, patent, trade secret rights, and all other right, title, and interest therein, and consisting of all
source code, object code, documentation, flow charts, design documents, and record and file layouts relating thereto, and all trademarks,
service marks, logos and trade dress associated therewith, and any discovery, concept or idea, whether or not patentable, made during
such performance including, but not limited to, processes, methods, formulae and techniques, improvements thereof and know-how
relating thereto (collectively, the “Property”). This exclusive conveyance shall include, but is not limited to, all rights to publish,
reproduce, transmit, adapt, prepare derivative works, sell, or otherwise make use of the Property (including all subsequent additions,
revisions, supplements to, and versions of the Property and derivatives, regardless of nature) throughout the world, in any form or
medium and in any language, and to license or otherwise transfer to others the rights commensurate herewith in connection with the
Property, to file copyright and patent applications in the United States and throughout the world for the Property in the name of the
Company, its successors and assigns. Executive hereby agrees that the Company, it successors and assigns may act as attorney-in-fact to
execute any document that the Company, its successors or assigns deem necessary to record this grant with the United States Copyright
Office, the United States Patent and Trademark Office, or elsewhere. If requested, Executive agrees to execute any and all copyright,
patent, or trade secret assignments, certificates, applications or documents requested by the Company, its successors and assigns related
to the Property. Executive's grant of rights in this Agreement is irrevocable and without right of rescission by Executive.

6.2 In furtherance of, and not in contravention, limitation and/or in place of, the provisions of Section 6.1 above, Company
hereby notifies Executive of California Labor Code Section 2870, which provides:
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6.2.1 “(a) Any provision in an employment agreement which provides that an employee shall assign, or offer to
assign, any of his or her rights in an invention to his or her employer shall not apply to an invention that the employee developed entirely
on his or her own time without using the employer's equipment, supplies, facilities, or trade secret information except for those
inventions that either: (1) Relate at the time of conception or reduction to practice of the invention to the employer's business, or actual or
demonstrably anticipated research or development of the employer; or (2) Result from any work performed by the employee for the
employer.

6.2.2 (b) To the extent a provision in an employment agreement purports to require an employee to assign an
invention otherwise excluded from being required to be assigned under subdivision (a), the provision is against the public policy of this
state and is unenforceable."

6.3 Executive acknowledges that he has been notified by the Company of this law, and understands that this Agreement
does not apply to Property which is otherwise fully protected under the provisions of said Labor Code Section 2870. Therefore,
Executive agrees to promptly disclose in writing to the Company all Property, whether or not Executive personally considers it
patentable, which Executive alone, or with others, conceives or makes during his employment with Company or as is otherwise required
and set forth under this Section 6.2. Company shall hold said information in strict confidence to determine the applicability of California
Labor Code Section 2870 to said Property and, to the extent said Section 2870 does not apply, Executive hereby assigns and agrees to
assign all his right, title and interest in and to the Property which relates to business of the Company and Executive agrees not to disclose
any of such Property to others without the prior written express consent of Company. Executive agrees to notify Company in writing
prior to making any disclosure or performing any work during the term of his employment with Company which may conflict with any
proprietary rights or technical know-how claimed by Executive as his property. In the event Executive fails to give Company notice of
such conflict, Executive agrees that Executive shall have no further right or claim with respect to any such conflicting proprietary rights
or technical know-how.

7. EQUITABLE REMEDIES. The parties hereto intend that the covenants contained in Sections 5 and 6 shall be enforced to the
fullest extent permissible under the laws of the State of California. Executive acknowledges and agrees that his breach of any provision
of Sections 5 and 6 will result in irreparable harm and injury to the Company, and further acknowledges and agrees that in the event of
any such breach it would be extremely difficult to fix or assess actual damages resulting therefrom. In addition to any other remedy that
may be available to the Company at law or in equity, the Company shall be entitled, from any court of competent jurisdiction, to a decree
of specific performance and to a temporary and permanent injunction enjoining and restricting the breach, or a threatened breach, by
Executive of any such provision of this Agreement.

8. MISCELLANEOUS.

8.1 Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the plans and policies referenced herein constitutes the entire agreement
between the parties pertaining to the subject matter hereof and supersedes and preempts any prior understandings, agreements or
representations by or between the parties, written or oral, which may have related in any manner to the subject matter hereof. No
supplement, modification or amendment of this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing by all the parties. The rule that a
contract is construed against the party
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drafting the contract is hereby waived, and shall have no applicability in construing this Agreement or the terms hereof.

8.2 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

8.3 Successors and Assigns. Except as provided herein, this Agreement shall be binding on, and shall inure to the benefit
of, the parties to it and their respective heirs, legal representatives, and permitted successors and assigns.

8.4 Notices. All notices required under this Agreement shall be given in writing and shall be served in person, by express
mail, by certified mail, by overnight delivery, or by facsimile. Delivery shall be deemed conclusively made (i) at the time of service, if
personally served, (ii) five days after deposit in the United States mail, properly addressed and postage prepaid, if delivered by express
mail or certified mail, (iii) upon confirmation of delivery by the private overnight deliverer, if served by overnight delivery, and (iv) at
the time of electronic transmission (as confirmed in writing), provided a copy is mailed within 24 hours after such transmission. Notices
to the Company shall be delivered to the Company’s then-current principal offices, to the attention of the Chief Executive Officer.

Notices to the Executive shall be delivered to the address (or facsimile number, if any) provided to the Company by the Executive as his
principal residence, or such other address or facsimile number as Executive may designate by written notice.

8.5 NLRA Compliance. All terms of this Agreement shall be interpreted and applied in a manner that complies with the
National Labor Relations Act (“NLRA”), including without limitation, Section 7 thereof. Thus, to the extent Executive is covered by the
NLRA, no provision of this Agreement, notwithstanding the language thereof, shall prohibit Executive, alone or with other Company
employees, from (i) filing unfair labor practice charges; (ii) assisting others who are filing such charges; (iii) cooperating with the
investigative process of National Labor Relations Board (the “NLRB) and other government agencies; (iv) self-organizing, forming,
joining or assisting labor organizations; (v) bargaining collectively through representatives of their own choosing; (vi) discussing wages,
hours, working conditions, other labor policies, or unionism for the purpose of collective bargaining or other mutual aid or protection;
(vii) taking or posting pictures or videos of employees engaged in such activities or other activities involving collective bargaining or
other mutual aid or protection; (viii) taking other action with one or more co-workers to improve working conditions by, among other
means, raising work-related complaints directly with the Company or with a government agency, or seeking help from a union; or (ix)
choosing not to engage in any of the foregoing activities.

8.6 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of
California.
8.7 Venue. The Parties (i) agree that any dispute between the Parties, including, without limitation, any dispute concerning

or arising out of this Agreement or Executive’s employment hereunder (or termination thereof) that is not subject to the arbitration
provisions of Section 8.15 shall be litigated exclusively in an appropriate state or federal court in or closest to Los Angeles, California;
(ii) hereby consent, and waive any objection, to the jurisdiction of any such court; (iii) agree that service of process in any such litigation
may be effected by mailing a copy of such process by registered or certified mail (or any substantially similar form of mail), postage
prepaid, to such Party at Executive’s or the Company’s address as provided herein; and (v) agree that nothing in this Agreement shall
affect the right to effect service of process in any other manner permitted by the laws of California.

10
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8.8 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement, as applied to any party or to any circumstance, shall be found by a
court or arbitrator of competent jurisdiction to be void, invalid or unenforceable, the same shall in no way affect any other provision of
this Agreement, the application of any such provision in any other circumstance, or the validity or enforceability of this Agreement, and
any provision which is found to be void, invalid or unenforceable shall be curtailed and limited only to the extent necessary to bring such
provision within the requirements of the law.

8.9 Headings. Titles or captions contained herein are inserted as a matter of convenience and for reference, and in no way,
define, limit, extend or describe the scope of this Agreement or any provision thereof. No provision in this Agreement is to be
interpreted for or against either party because that party or its legal representative drafted such provision.

8.10 Further Assurances. Each party agrees to execute and acknowledge such other instruments as may be reasonably
necessary to effect the transactions contemplated herein.

8.11 Remedies Cumulative. All remedies shall be cumulative and pursuit of any one shall not waive any other.

8.12 Waiver. No waiver by any party at any time of any breach by any other party of, or compliance with, any condition or
provision of the Agreement to be performed by any other party shall be deemed a waiver of any other provisions or conditions at the
same time or at any prior or subsequent time.

8.13 Application of Section 409A. To the extent applicable, it is intended that this Agreement comply with the provisions
of Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code and the guidance promulgated thereunder (“Section 409A”). This Agreement shall be
administered in a manner consistent with this intent, and any provision that would cause the Agreement to fail to satisfy Section 409A
shall have no force and effect until amended by the parties to comply with Section 409A (which amendment may be retroactive to the
extent permitted by Section 409A). Unless otherwise expressly provided, any payment of compensation by the Company to Executive,
whether pursuant to this Agreement or otherwise, shall be made no later than the 15th day of the third month (i.e., 2} months) after the
later of the end of the calendar year or the Company’s fiscal year in which Executive’s right to such payment vests (i.e., is not subject to a
“substantial risk of forfeiture” for purposes of Code Section 409A). For purposes of this Agreement, “Separation from Service” shall
have the meaning given to such term under Section 409A. Each payment and each installment of any severance payments provided for
under this Agreement shall be treated as a separate payment for purposes of application of Section 409A. To the extent that any
severance payments come within the definition of “short term deferrals” or “involuntary severance” under Section 409A, such amounts
shall be excluded from “deferred compensation” as allowed under Section 409A, and shall not be subject to the following Section 409A
compliance requirements. All payments of “nonqualified deferred compensation” (within the meaning of Section 409A) are intended to
comply with the requirements of Section 409A, and shall be interpreted in accordance therewith. Neither party individually or in
combination may accelerate, offset or assign any such deferred payment, except in compliance with Section 409A. No amount shall be
paid prior to the earliest date on which it is permitted to be paid under Section 409A and Executive shall have no discretion with respect
to the timing of payments except as permitted under Section 409A. Any payments to which Section 409A applies which are subject to
execution of a waiver and release which may be executed and/or revoked in a calendar year following the calendar year in which the
payment event (such as Separation from Service) occurs shall commence payment only in the calendar year in which the release
revocation period ends if necessary to comply with Section 409A. In the event that Executive is determined to be a “key
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employee” (as defined and determined under Section 409A) of the Company at a time when its stock is deemed to be publicly traded on
an established securities market, payments determined to be “nonqualified deferred compensation” payable upon Separation from
Service shall be made no earlier than (i) the first day of the seventh (7th) complete calendar month following such termination of
employment, or (ii) Executive’s death, if required and consistent with the provisions of Section 409A. Any payment delayed by reason
of the prior sentence shall be paid out in a single lump sum at the end of such required delay period in order to catch up to the original
payment schedule. All expense reimbursement or in-kind benefits subject to Section 409A provided under this Agreement or, unless
otherwise specified in writing, under any Company program or policy, shall be subject to the following rules to the extent necessary to
comply with Section 409A: (i) the amount of expenses eligible for reimbursement or in-kind benefits provided during one calendar year
may not affect the benefits provided during any other year; (ii) reimbursements shall be paid no later than the end of the calendar year
following the year in which Executive incurs such expenses, and Executive shall take all actions necessary to claim all such
reimbursements on a timely basis to permit the Company to make all such reimbursement payments prior to the end of said period, and
(iii) the right to reimbursement or in-kind benefits shall not be subject to liquidation or exchange for another benefit. Notwithstanding
anything herein to the contrary, no amendment may be made to this Agreement if it would cause the Agreement or any payment
hereunder not to be in compliance with Section 409A.

8.14 Attorneys Fees. Should any litigation or arbitration occur between the parties relating to this Agreement, the
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorneys’ fees and other costs in connection with such litigation, including
reasonable attorneys’ fees, unless otherwise prohibited by statute or other applicable law, up to but not to exceed one hundred and fifty
thousand dollars ($150,000) which shall be due and payable no later than sixty (60) days following the date such judgment is entered.
Any judgment shall include an attorneys’ fees clause that shall entitle the judgment creditor to recover attorneys’ fees incurred to enforce
a judgment on this Agreement, which attorneys’ fees shall be an element of post-judgment costs. The foregoing notwithstanding, if any
party incurs costs in collecting any amounts due and payable under this Agreement, the collecting party shall be entitled to recover from
the paying party the full amount of all such costs (limited only by reasonability) and such costs shall be added to, and made part of, the
principal amount due and owing.

8.15 Arbitration.

8.15.1 Any claim, dispute, or controversy between the Executive and the Company (which, for this purpose, shall
include including any of the Company’s partners, affiliated companies, successors, assigns, owners, directors, officers, shareholders,
employees, managers, members and agents), including without limitation, those arising out of or relating to this Agreement, Executive’s
employment with the Company or the termination thereof shall be submitted to final and binding arbitration pursuant to the Federal
Arbitration Act (“FAA”). Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following shall not be subject to mandatory arbitration pursuant to this
provision: (i) applications by any Party for temporary or preliminary injunctive relief in aid of arbitration or for the maintenance of the
status quo pending arbitration; (ii) claims for workers’ compensation benefits; (iii) claims for unemployment insurance compensation
benefits; (iv) to the extent required by law, administrative claims or charges before applicable federal and state administrative agencies
(such as the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission or comparable state agency, and any unfair labor charge which is to be brought
under the NLRA); and (v) claims that may not be subject to pre-dispute mandatory arbitration agreements, such as claims for sexual
harassment or sexual assault to the extent Executive determines that Executive would prefer to proceed in a court of law. Further,
notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, to
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the extent permitted by applicable law and applicable JAMS rules and standards without invalidating this arbitration provision, either
Party shall be entitled to a court action for temporary equitable relief in accordance with Section 8.6.

8.15.2 To the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, the Parties agree that any claim each brings may not be
initiated, maintained, heard or determined on a class action, collective action, or representative action basis either in court or in
arbitration, and that each is not entitled to serve or participate as a class, collective or representative action member or representative or
to receive any recovery from a class, collective or representative action involving a claim against the other Party either in court or in
arbitration. Any claim brought by one Party may not be joined or consolidated with any other claim that does not involve precisely the
same parties. If a Party is included within any class action, collective action, or representative action in court or in arbitration involving a
claim against the other Party, such Party will take all steps necessary to opt-out of the action or refrain from opting in, as the case may be.

Insofar as any claim between the Parties is permitted to proceed on a class action, collective action, or representative action basis,
notwithstanding this Section, it must do so in court pursuant to Section 8.6.

8.15.3 The arbitration process shall be confidential and private and administered by JAMS pursuant to its
Employment Arbitration Rules & Procedures in effect at the time the dispute is submitted (the “Arbitration Rules™), which can be found
at http://www.jamsadr.com, a copy of which will be provided to Executive upon Executive’s request. Claims must be submitted to
JAMS for arbitration in accordance with the Arbitration Rules for commencing an arbitration, and within the applicable statute of
limitations. The arbitration shall be conducted on a strictly confidential basis, and Executive shall not disclose the existence or nature of
any claim or defense; any documents, correspondence, pleadings, briefing, exhibits, arguments, testimony, evidence, or information
exchanged or presented in connection with any claim or defense; or any rulings, decisions, or results of any claim or defense
(collectively, “Arbitration Materials™) to any third party, with the sole exception of Executive’s legal counsel, whom Executive shall
ensure complies with these confidentiality terms, and the arbitrator. The Parties may file and the arbitrator shall hear and decide at any
point in the proceedings any motion permitted by the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, including but not limited to motions to compel
discovery, motions for protective orders, motions to dismiss, motions for summary judgment, and motions in limine. In addition, the
arbitration shall be subject to the same burdens of proof and statutes of limitations as if the claim at issue was being heard in the federal
or state court provided by Section 8.6 above. The arbitration proceedings will be held before a single, neutral arbitrator in or close to Los
Angeles County, California. The fees of the arbitrator and all other costs that are unique to the arbitration process shall be paid by the
Company to the extent required by law. Each party shall be solely responsible for paying his/her/its own costs for the arbitration,
including, but not limited to attorneys’ fees. The arbitrator shall have the authority to award any damages or relief authorized by law,
except the arbitrator shall have no authority to award any punitive or exemplary damages and the Parties waive, to the full extent
permitted by law, any right to recover such damages in such arbitration. The award of the arbitrator shall be in writing and shall contain
the arbitrator’s factual findings, legal conclusions and reasons for the award. The award may be entered as a judgment in any court with
jurisdiction over either Executive or the Company. Either Party may bring an action in any court of competent jurisdiction to compel
arbitration under this Agreement, to enforce an arbitration award and to vacate an arbitration award. However, in actions seeking to
vacate an award, the standard of review to be applied by said court to the arbitrator’s findings of fact and conclusions of law will be the
same as that applied by an appellate court reviewing a decision of a trial court sitting without a jury. The Parties agree to take all steps
necessary to protect the confidentiality of the Arbitration Materials in connection with any court proceeding,
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agree to use their reasonable best efforts to file any court proceeding permitted herein and all Confidential Information (and all
documents containing Confidential Information) under seal, and agree to the entry of an appropriate protective order encompassing the
confidentiality terms of this Agreement. To the extent any of the terms, conditions or requirements of this Agreement conflict with the
Arbitration Rules, the terms, conditions or requirements of this Agreement shall govern.

8.15.4 Notwithstanding any provision of the Arbitration Rules to the contrary, any issue concerning the validity or
enforceability of any of the class action, collective action, and representative action waivers contained in this Agreement (“Waivers”)
shall be governed by and determined under and in accordance with the FAA and shall be decided by a court of competent jurisdiction
pursuant to Section 8.7. Any issue concerning arbitrability of a particular issue or claim pursuant to this Agreement (except for issues
concerning the validity or enforceability of any of the Waivers) must be resolved by the arbitrator, not the court. The Parties
understand that by agreeing to arbitration, they are giving up their right to a trial in a court of law.

8.16 Clawback Policy. Notwithstanding anything contained herein or in any incentive compensation plan, program or
arrangement sponsored by the Company, all incentive or performance based compensation shall be subject to reduction or repayment by
reason of a restatement of the Company’s financial statements if and to the extent such reduction or repayment is required by any
applicable law or the Company’s policy regarding clawbacks.

8.17 Limitation on Remedies. Executive acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement is being executed voluntarily,
knowingly and without duress. Executive’s exclusive remedy against the Company in the event the Company materially breaches this
Agreement shall be to invoke the provisions of Section 4.3.1 and Section 4.4 hereof. If Executive brings a claim based on breach of the
Company’s obligation to provide any of the benefits and compensation promised to him in this Agreement, and it is determined that the
Company breached such obligation, the amount of any award to Executive shall not exceed the amounts provided under Section 4.4 and,
except as specifically provided in Sections 4.4.2 and 8.13, shall not be reduced by alternative income or benefits he receives before or
after his separation from the Company, nor shall he otherwise be required to mitigate his damages based on breach of this Agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Employment Agreement to be effective as of the date first set
forth above.

EXECUTIVE
/s/ Victor Sze
Victor Sze

OSI SYSTEMS, INC.
/s/ Deepak Chopra
By: Deepak Chopra, CEO




EXHIBIT A
TO THE EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
SECTION 280G RULES

The following rules shall apply for purposes of determining the amounts payable under Section 4.4.2(b) of the
Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, in the event there is a conflict between the terms of any agreement relating
to payments of amount payable in the event of a 280G Event (including, but not limited to any equity, stock options
and incentive compensation agreements) and this Agreement, the terms of the Agreement (including this Exhibit A)
shall prevail.

Whether the payment under Section 4.4.2(b)(1) is greater than the amount of the Alternative Payment under Section
4.2.2(b)(2) shall be determined on a net after-tax basis after taking into account the Excise Tax, if any, on the amounts
described in Section 4.4.2(b)(1) and the amount of all applicable federal, state and local income and employment
taxes that would be payable by the Executive with respect to amounts described in Section 4.2.2 calculated at the
highest marginal income tax rate for each year in which the foregoing shall be paid to the Executive (based on the
rate in effect for such year as set forth in the Code as in effect at the time of the first payment of the foregoing).

All determinations under Section 4.4.2(b) of the Agreement and this Exhibit A will be made by an accounting firm or
law firm that is selected for this purpose by the Company prior to a 280G Event (the “280G Firm”). All fees and
expenses of the 280G Firm shall be borne by the Company. The Company will direct the 280G Firm to submit any
determination it makes under Section 4.4.2(b) of this Agreement and this Exhibit A and detailed supporting
calculations to both the Executive and the Company as soon as reasonably practicable.

If the 280G Firm determines that the Alternative Payment is to be made under Section 4.4.2(b)(2) and one or more
reductions are required under it to avoid the Excise Tax, the 280G Firm shall also determine which payments shall be
reduced (first from cash payments and then from non-cash benefits) to the extent necessary so that no portion thereof
shall be subject to the Excise Tax, and the Company shall pay such reduced amount to the Executive. The 280G Firm
shall make reductions required under Section 4.4.2(b) of this Agreement in a manner that maximizes the net after-tax
amount payable to the Executive.

As a result of the uncertainty in the application of Section 280G at the time that the 280G Firm makes its
determinations under Section 4.4.2(b)(2) of this Agreement, it is possible that amounts will have been paid or
distributed to the Executive that should not have been paid or distributed (collectively, the “Overpayments”), or that
additional amounts should be paid or distributed to the Executive (collectively, the “Underpayments”). If the 280G
Firm determines, based on either the assertion of a deficiency by the Internal Revenue Service against the Company
or the Executive, which assertion the 280G Firm believes has a high probability of success or controlling precedent or
substantial authority, that an Overpayment has been made, the Executive must repay to the Company the
Overpayment. If the 280G Firm determines, based upon controlling precedent or substantial authority, that an
Underpayment has occurred, the 280G Firm will notify the Executive and the Company of that determination and the
amount of that Underpayment will be paid to the Executive promptly by the Company.




The Executive will provide the 280G Firm access to, and copies of, any books, records, and documents in the
Executive’s possession as reasonably requested by the 280G Firm, and otherwise cooperate with the 280G Firm in
connection with the preparation and issuance of the determinations and calculations contemplated by Section 4.4.2(b)
of the Agreement and this Exhibit A.




EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

Certification required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a)
and under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Deepak Chopra, certify that:

I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of OSI Systems, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in
this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(%)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 30, 2024

/s/ Deepak Chopra
Deepak Chopra
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

Certification required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a)
and under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Alan Edrick, certify that:

I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of OSI Systems, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in
this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(%)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 30, 2024

/s/ Alan Edrick
Alan Edrick
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of OSI Systems, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2024, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Deepak Chopra, Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
the Company at the dates and for the periods presented in the Report.

Date: April 30, 2024

/s/ Deepak Chopra
Deepak Chopra
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, is not being filed as part of the Report or as a
separate disclosure document, and is not being incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (whether made before or after the date of the Report),
irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing. The signed original of this certification required by
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to
the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of OSI Systems, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2024, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Alan Edrick, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
the Company at the dates and for the periods presented in the Report.

Date: April 30, 2024

/s/ Alan Edrick
Alan Edrick
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, is not being filed as part of the Report or as a
separate disclosure document, and is not being incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (whether made before or after the date of the Report),
irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing. The signed original of this certification required by
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to
the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.




